

IDIS Center

Software Manual



This Operation Manual provides instructions for using Remote Administration System (referred to as IDIS Center hereinafter), which is a remote control software for network cameras, network video servers, network video recorders (NVR) and digital video recorders (DVR).

The **IDIS Center System** described in this Operation Manual refers to the PC running **IDIS Center** program and **Devices** refer to network cameras, network video servers, network video recorders (NVR) and digital video recorders (DVR).

Copyright

© 2024 IDIS Co., Ltd.

IDIS Co., Ltd. reserves all rights concerning this operation manual.

Use or duplication of this operation manual in part or whole without the prior consent of IDIS Co., Ltd. is strictly prohibited.

Contents of this operation manual are subject to change without prior notice for reasons such as functionality enhancements.

Registered Trademarks

IDIS is a registered trademark of IDIS Co., Ltd.

Other company and product names are registered trademarks of their respective owners.

The information in this manual is believed to be accurate as of the date of publication even though explanations of some functions may not be included. We are not responsible for any problems resulting from the use thereof. The information contained herein is subject to change without notice. Revisions or new editions to this publication may be issued to incorporate such changes.

The software included in this product contains some Open Sources. You may obtain the corresponding source code which we have to distribute according to the license policy. Go to Client Menu - About page for more information. This product includes software developed by the University of California, Berkeley and its contributors, and software developed by the OpenSSL Project for use in the OpenSSL Toolkit (http://www.openssl.org/). Also, this product includes cryptographic software written by Eric Young (eay@cryptsoft.com), and software written by Tim Hudson (tjh@cryptsoft.com).

Table of Contents

Part 1 – Introduction	7
Part 2 - Installation	8
Accessories	8
System Requirements	8
Installation	9
Uninstallation	

Part 3 - Getting Started	11
Start Program	11
Run as administrator	11
Login	11
Device Registration	12
Live Video Mode	15
Recorded Video Playback	16
System menu	17
Menu	18
Panel	

1		

Part 4 - Configuration	22
Device	22
Devices Management	24
Devices Password Reissue	
Login Failed Device Group	
User Management	
Panic Record	
System	
Screen Display	
Screen Menu	40
Video Enhancement	40
Report	

Instant Event	
Network	43
Playback	44
Site	44
Мар	45
Browser	45
Save	47
Backup/Restore	47

Part 5 - Operation	
Live Video Mode	
Panel Toolbar	49
Set Hotspot	50
Set Event Spot	
Set Map Event Spot	
Browser Screen Settings	
Screen Format	51
Lavout Monitoring	53

Set Event Spot	
Set Map Event Spot	50
Browser Screen Settings	50
Screen Format	51
Layout Monitoring	52
Layout Sequence	54
Camera Sequence	57
Map Monitoring	
Camera Control	60
PTZ Control	63
Remote Control	66
Fisheye Dewarping	66
Smart UX Quick Control	67
Recorded video playback control	67
Self-adjusting Video Mode	68
Zoom In	68
Image effect	69
Instant Playback	69
Video Analytics	70
Pixel Counter	71
Live Network Monitor	72
Text-In Viewer	72
Google Maps	72
Speed Graph	73

Vehicle Info	73
Map Control	74
Live Popup	76
Browser	76
Intercom	78
Bookmark	85
Thumbnail Search	86
Filter Settings	86
Motion/Object Search	87
Image Zoom	88
Image Effect	88
Pixel Counter	88
Smart Image Filter	89
Google Maps	89
Speed Graph	90
Vehicle Info	90
Text-In Report	91
Export Video File	92
Save as a Self-Player File	93
Save as AVI File	97
Live Video	100
Video Playback	100
System Status Monitoring	. 101
Device Status Monitoring	. 102
Self-Diagnosis	. 102
Log search	. 103
Browser	. 105
Browser Screen.	105
Browser Setup	106
MapVue Search	. 107
MapVue Search Screen	107
Goto and Options	110
History	110
Bookmark	112
Map Editor	. 114
· Map Registration	114
Map Settings	115

FEN Service Use Agreement	119
FEN Service Use Agreement	119
FEN Service Decline	120
Control Using Network keyboards	121
Registration	121
Connect	122
Run	123
Network Keyboard Buttons	125
System Menu	128
Monitoring	129
Screen	129
Sequence	
Hover Toolbar	130
Message Box	130
Smart UX	



Part 6 - Appendix	134
Troubleshooting	134

Part 1 – Introduction

IDIS Center is software for monitoring live videos and playing recorded videos acquired from compatible devices. It provides the following features.

- · Remote surveillance of live videos and remote playback of video recordings
- · Real-time notification of detected events and remote monitoring of event videos
- · Panic recording of live videos and playback of panic recordings
- Registration of up to 1,024 devices
- Remote software upgrade and remote system configuration
- Displays device's system logs
- Monitoring live video map
- H.264, MPEG-4, M-JPEG restoration algorithm support
- SSL support for security
- · Authority settings by user groups for security
- Intuitive and user-oriented GUI
- · Operation in a low bandwidth environment

The software included in this product contains some Open Sources. You may obtain the corresponding source code which we have to distribute according to the license policy. Go to Client Menu - About page for more information. This product includes software developed by the University of California, Berkeley and its contributors, and software developed by the OpenSSL Project for use in the OpenSSL Toolkit (http://www.openssl.org/). Also, this product includes cryptographic software written by Eric Young (eay@cryptsoft.com), and software written by Tim Hudson (tjh@cryptsoft.com).

Accessories

Operation Manual

System Requirements

	Recommended	Minimum
OS	Microsoft° Windows° 11, Microsoft° Windows° 10 64-bit (Home/Pro), Windows Server 2016 or higher	Microsoft [®] Windows [®] 10 (Home/Pro)
CPU	Intel [®] Core [™] i7-12700K 3.6GHz or better	Intel [®] Core [™] i3-2100 or better
RAM	16GB or more	2GB or more
VGA	NVIDIA GeForce GTX1060 or Quadro P2000 or better (1920x1080 or 2560x1440, 60Hz)	NVIDIA GeForce GT710 (1280x1024, 60Hz) or Intel [®] HD Graphic 530 or higher
HDD	8GB or more of available space SSD(Solid State Drive)	4GB or more of available space
LAN	Gigabit Ethernet or better	100 Mbps Ethernet

 \checkmark

IDIS Center program runs on 32-bit and 64-bit OS.

Installation

Prior to installing the software, click on to the Windows Start menu, open Control Panel, click on Power Management, and set options for Turn off monitor and Turn off hard disks as Never.

- Download the software from the IDIS website(www. idisglobal.com).
- 2 Browse to the Setup folder in the downloaded file andrun setup.exe.



On **Microsoft*** **Windows*** **Vista** or better, **User Account Control** window may appears. Click **Allow** and follow the instructions in the installation window to proceed with the installation.

3 Select a desired language.



4 When the installation window appears, click Next.



5 Select an installation path for the program, and click Next.

醇 IDIS Center			= 🗆 X
Select Installation Fold	ler		¥₹₹
The installer will install IDIS Center to	the following folde		
To intall in this folder, click "Next". To	install in a differen	t folder, enter it belov	v or click "Browse".
C:₩IDIS Center			Browse
	Cancel	< Back	Next >

6 When the install confirmation window appears, click **Next**.





NET Framework and Visual C++ Runtime Libraries will be installed automatically, and it may take a few minutes. If NET Framework and Visual C++ Runtime Libraries are already installed on the system, this step will be skipped automatically. **7** When the Installation Complete window appears, click **Close** and finish the installation.



8 This program does not have a password set by default. Please assign a password. Without setting a password, you will not be able to log in.



Uninstallation

Exit IDIS Center program if it is running.



- The program may not be uninstalled correctly if you attempt to uninstall the software while running.
- If the installation folder is deleted by the user without using the Uninstallation Wizard, you will not be able to properly uninstall or reinstall the software. Please be sure to follow the uninstallation steps in this manual.
- 2 Select IDIS Center in Windows Start Menu and click Uninstall IDIS Center.
- 3 When the uninstall confirmation window appears, click OK.



4 A data delete confirmation window will appear. To delete all the data stored on the system, including panic recordings and existing settings, click **Remove** all. If you do not wish to delete the data, click **Do** not remove.



5 Click **Close** to finish uninstallation.

Start Program

When IDIS Center software is installed, **IDIS Center** and **IDIS Center Run as administrator** shortcut icons will be created on the desktop. Run IDIS Center program by double-clicking on **IDIS Center** or **IDIS Center Run as administrator** shortcut icon. If a removable eSATA HDD or SD (SDHC) memory card are connected to the IDIS Center system, you must double-click on **IDIS Center Run as administrator**. Double-click the **IDIS Center for iHDP** shortcut icon to use iHDP exclusively in an easier way.

Run as administrator

If not using an administrator account to run **IDIS Center**, the device's detachable HDD, eSATA HDD, and/or SD (SDHC) memory card will not be recognized. In this case, you will need to launch the program by double-clicking on the **Run as administrator** icon.

Once the program launches, enter the administrator information.

Run as administrator	x
User ID : Administrator	
Password :	
No Password	
Save account information	
ОК Cancel	

- User ID: Choose an administrator account or enter it manually.
- Password: Enter the account password.
- No Password: Check if there is no password for the account.
- Save Account Information: Saves the current account info for automatic login.

Login limitations may exist depending on the OS specifications or the user account settings of the computer running the IDIS Center program.

Login

This program does not have a password set by default. Leaving the admin account unassigned with a password poses a security risk. Please assign a **Password** at your earliest convenience.



Once the program is running, you must login. Enter a User ID and Password.



- Remember my ID on this computer: Remembers the ID used to login.
- Restore last Live sessions: Restores the previous Live session on the current Live panel (Not supported for Load user specific layout).
- \checkmark
 - Default User ID is "admin" without a password.
 - You can change User ID and Password in the User menu.
 - For more details, refer to <u>User Management on</u> page 34.

Device Registration

To use the functions provided by IDIS Center, you must first register a device and add the device to a device group.

Select System > IDIS Center Setup > Device in the menu at the top of the screen.



2 On the Site panel, click on All Devices, then click on the + button at the bottom of the Site List panel on the right. A Device Scan window will appear on the screen.

1				P,	
Ste Allocations Dence Group Compile Largost Compa Sequence Compa Sequence Compa Sequence Compa Sequence Compa Sequence Compa Sequence	lame	Croup	Address vere is no Device.	Type D	escription
+ - C	(+) – ø				ОК
Device Scan Scan Mode : Arm S Select Al Devices Print Sched @ Print Sched Print Sched Pr	0 / Max 1024 Address 10.0.112.205 10.0.114.235 10.0.101	▼ Type NR (16 cł) NT 4000 MK(-1100	Description	Status P. Not registered Not registered	tt Scan
Device Scan Scan Made : 19 Add 10 - Select Al Devices Name Rame	ress 0 .127 .130 ~ 0 /Max 1024 Address 10.0.127,130	Type DVR (9 dt)	Port Description	Status Not registered	rt Scan
Device Scan Scan Mode : FRN Inside Select Al Devices: Name Oran rame >	0 / Max 1024 Address 10.0.127.130	Type DVR (8 ch)	Description	C. Status Not registered	*
Device Scan Scan Mode : Domain Trakée	Name 0 / Max 1024 Address 10.0.127.130	Type DVR (8 dt)	Port Description	P. Status Not registered	rt Scan

- Scan Mode: After selecting a scan mode, click on Start Scan button and the scan results will be displayed on the list. If the IP address range of the device is different from the one of IDIS Center System, the IP address of the device will be considered invalid by IDIS Center software. In this case, the device's IP address must be changed before registering it to the system.
 - **Auto Scan (LAN)**: Shows the list of devices within the LAN. (DVR is not supported.)
 - IP Address: Enter the device's IP address. When registering multiple devices, you can enter a range of IP addresses to scan for multiple devices at once. When setting up network connections on the device, it is recommended that you disable DHCP. If DHCP is enabled, changes in the WAN connection may cause the connection to the device to fail. When manually scanning with an IP, the device name is displayed as <no name> before its user authentication.
 - FEN: If the device uses FEN, enter the device name that is registered on the FEN server. Make sure that the device's FEN server information is entered correctly. (System > IDIS Center Setup > Network Setup > FEN) The device will not be detected if the FEN server information is incorrect.
 - **Domain Name**: If the device uses Domain Name Service (DNS), enter the device's domain name registered on the DNS server.
 - Device Information File: Loads an .xml or .dat file containing device connection information and displays the corresponding devices on the list.
 Select System > IDIS Center Setup > Save As File > Device Information option and then select All Devices or Device Group to save the current device information of selected range and create a .dat file. For more information about XML files, contact your IDIS Center software retailer.
 - To select the devices to register, check on the box next to the names of each device on the list. Click **Select All** to select all the devices on the list at once.

3 Click Add Devices at the bottom of the Device Scan window.

ce Scan					
Scan Mode : Auto SC	an (LAN)	×			
	II (LAII)				
				Start S	scan
Select All Devices:				ρ.	
Name				Status	-
🕅 🖈 [Aging] [NT4000	10.0, 114.235	INT4000		Not registered	
DQA-JINI] AMBER 2 (11)					
DQA-JINI] JADE 1 (101)					
IQQA-JINI] JADE 6 (106)					
QA]NC-5220-12WH #4					
#* <no name=""></no>					
set <no name=""></no>					
🗌 📾 <no name=""></no>					
□= 0310-VIP#3					
EP220-0P #1					
EP220IDP #1					
EP220IDP #2					
ESSEMS					
□ \$ HD_3174000_139		INT4000			×
Clear List 44 de				Add Devices	Close
er Authentication	Name :	<no name<="" th=""><th>></th><th></th><th></th></no>	>		
	t dross t	10.0.107	100		
	Address :	10.0.127.	130		
C	evice Type :	DVR (8 ch)			
	TD :				
	10.				
	and a				
	Password :				
		Apply to	o All Device	S	

A user authentication window will appear.

- Name / Address / Device Type: Shows the name, IP address and type of the selected device. If Sync Device Names option was selected when setting up the device, the device name displayed will be automatically updated to the name entered in device's settings.
- **ID / Password**: Enter the User ID and Password set up on each device for remote access.
- Apply to All Devices: If multiple devices sharing the same User ID and password are selected, you can check this option to apply the same User ID and password to all selected devices.



 If the selected device is a DVR, entering port numbers may be required depending on the DVR's specification and version.

 If the selected device is a 4-channel network video server, all 4 cameras will be registered automatically regardless of whether the camera is enabled on the network video server. 4 Click Device Group on the Site panel and click + at the bottom. Add Device Group window will appear.





- Name: Enter a name for the device group.
- Location: Select a location for the device group.

When you select a device from the device List on the left, it will be added to the **Selected Device List** on the right. Click **OK** to register the device group. 5 Make sure that the device has been added to the device group correctly. Click **Device Group** on the **Site** panel and click on ▶ m next to **Device Group**. When you click on a registered device group, a list of devices added the selected device group will be displayed on the right. Check video analysis (m) from the device group in the case of a device with a video analysis device.



To modify a device group that has been registered, select a device group and click at the bottom of the **Site** panel. A **Modify Device Group** window will appear. You can modify the selected device group from this window. For more details, refer to **Devices Management on page 24**.

Live Video Mode

EKS Contras Remote Advisational Advisational Advisational (James 1)						
ter System Here						*iois
R I III Norece IIII Norece						"IDIS
d James Ingeren E Ing € 47 - 5 N Denar						"IDIS
						"IDIS
Dest A						""IDIS
Un Pape + Carea Deca						515

- 1 In the **Site** List, make sure that the device has been added to the device group.
- 2 In the panel tabs, click the Live tab. In the Site list, select a site you wish to connect to. Then, drag & drop the selected site on the Live screen using your mouse. The live video of the selected site will be displayed on the screen. For more information, refer to the Live Video Mode on page 48.

		EV3 Carder	Render Albereick alor: System adven		
Debes Ven L					10
0.					
E	="idis				
intractioname intra					
Test A Too Too Too Too Too Too Too Too Too T					
Line Paper					

Recorded Video Playback

		Real Content	Permitte Administration System (admin) 1			
2 Inten sier						- 100 S
-						
C. • E Alteroit • E State State • E State State • E State State • E State State						eficis
 System System System General Streament Mac Mac Streament 						+*iois
						*lois
test (2)						Millions -
Seet 90 New 0 ● (462,^2) - (462,^2773, 172,000,03, 9 (462,^2), 1642,2743, 172,000,03, ■ (462,^2), 1642,2743, 172,000,03, ■ (460, 172,000,00,00,00,00,00,00,00,00,00,00,00,0	101 [°] 210 [°]					
Un Popo - Cenera Deara						

1 In the **Site** List, make sure that the device has been added to the device group.

2 In the panel tabs, click on the Play tab. In the Site list, select a site you wish to connect to. Then, drag & drop the selected site on the playback screen using your mouse. The recorded video of the selected site will be displayed on the screen. For more information, refer to the <u>Recorded Video Playback</u> on page 80.



System menu

		IDIS Center	Remote Administration System admin	Live 1	
Site	Live Playback About)			-"IDIS
> → A Devices > → B Crock 1 > ● B Crock 1 > ■ B Crock 2 → ■ B Crock 2 → ■ B Crock 2 → ■ B Crock 2	- IDIS				•"IDIS
Announce					"IDIS
Event A. V Event Size Trme A			- IDIS	- IDIS	- "IDIS
3			- IDIS	" IDIS	"IDIS
Live Popup	- "idis				 חופ
Lamera Device					510
				5	

0	Menu	This is the menu bar. Refer to below for more details.
2	Site List	Used to connect to a registered site using drag & drop.
3	Live Event List	Shows instant events and callback events of registered devices. Click we button and then Emergency Event Panel will be displayed. For more details, refer to Event Handling on page 98 .
4	Live Popup List	Shows the list of current popup screens on IDIS Center. For more details on live popups, refer to Live Popup on page 76 .
5	Panel Toolbar / Timetable	Shows toolbar or timetable depending on the panel. For more details, refer to Camera Control on page 60 or Recorded Video Playback on page 80 .
6	Panel	Shows videos or list of the selected tab. For more details, refer to Panel on page 20 .

Menu

System



- New Tab: Create a new panel. Up to each 6 and 4 panels can be created in total, including Live and Playback panels. Up to 2 Map panels and 1 Report, Operational Status, Device Status and Self-Diagnosis panel can be created, respectively.
- **Remove**: Removes selected device, camera or all cameras from the Live screen or Playback screen.
- Export, Print: Saves or prints the videos or list displayed on the panel of the selected tab. (Some panels are not supported.)
- IDIS Center Setup: Changes basic settings.
- Login/Logout: Logs in or out of the program.
- Lock: Locks IDIS Center Program. Once the program is locked, it will no longer be accessible and a password entry field will appear. Enter password to unlock.
- Exit: Exits or restarts the program.

View

	System	V	iew	Liv	e	Playba
Live 1	Live 2	Sa	ave to Use	r Layout		
CAM1		Fu	ull Screen		Ctrl+E	inter
O/INT		Fu	Il Screen +	- ToolBar	Ctrl+Alt+E	inter
				ig Tabs		
CA147		So	creen Form	at	C	trl+F
CAM7		Sł	now Previo	us Group	Ctrl+P	gDn
		Sł	now Next (Group	Ctrl+P	gUp
		Sł	now Forma	t1×1	Shift+E	inter
CAM13		Se	elect Previe	ous Pane	P	gDn
		Se	elect Next	Pane	P	gUp
		So	creen Refre	esh		
		So	creen Magr	nifier		F3
		Pi	xel Counte	r	Ctrl+Q+	Drag
	T IDIS	Er	mergency I	Event Pan	el Ctrl+A	lt+E
			NPR Event	Panel		•
		Re	emote Site	Panel		
		Т	ext-In Pan	el		

- Save to User Layout: Register the screen division and device connection status of the selected Live or Plays panel as a user layout.
- **Full Screen**: Shows the selected Live or Plays panel in full screen.
- Full Screen + Toolbar: Shows the selected Live or Plays panel with toolbar in full screen.
- Reset Floating Tabs: Place all floating tabs on the main tab.
- Screen Format: Change screen layout.
- Show Previous/Next Group: Switch to previous or next camera group.
- Show Format 1x1: Shows as a 1x1 format and turn it off.
- Select Previous/Next Pane: Select the previous or next pane.
- Screen Refresh: Refresh the video in the screen pane in the Live or Plays tab.
- Screen Magnifier: Magnifies the area near the mouse cursor.
- **Pixel Counter:** Shows the information of the pixel of the selected area in Live or Plays.
- Emergency Event Panel: Shows Emergency Event Panel.
- **ANPR Event Panel:** Shows a pop-up window of the ANPR events panel.
- **Remote Site Panel**: Shows or hides Site List from floating panel or full screen. This function only supports certain panels.

• **Text-In Panel**: Shows the text-in panel. It also displays the text results on the panel.

Live



- Set Hotspot: Set the selected camera screen as hotspot screen.
- Set Event Spot: Set the selected camera screen as event spot screen.
- Set Map Event Spot: Set the selected camera screen as map event spot screen.
- Set Browser: Sets the selected screen as the browser screen.
- Layout Sequence: Starts or ends a layout sequence.
- Two-way Audio On/Off: Activates or deactivates two-way audio (receiving and transmitting audio) function.
- MultiStream: Desired stream can be selected if multi-stream mode is enabled for the live video of the device.
- **PTZ Control:** Controls PTZ for selected or all PTZ camera devices.
- Live Freeze: Freezes all screens of the selected live tab.
- Live Network Monitor: Shows bandwidth for each device on a graph by time.
- **Recorder Storage Monitor:** Provides storage device information to the recorder added on the site.

Playback

				IDIS Co	enter Remote Admi
	System	View	Live	Playback A	bout
		Play 1	× MapVue S	Play/Pause Play/Pause on Tab	Ctrl+Space Ctrl+Shift+Space
CAM1		CAM2		Playback Speed Fast Forward Play Fast Backward Play	► Ctrl+H Ctrl+G
CAM7		CAM8		Go To Step Playback Export Video File	> > >
CAM13		CAM14		Thumbnail Search	

- Play/Pause: Plays or pauses playing recorded video of the selected device.
- **Play/Pause on Tab:** Plays or pauses playing recorded video of all devices displayed on the current screen.
- Go to: Skips to the designated time.
- **Step Playback**: Skips to previous or next video by frame or time.
- Export Video File: Saves video recording as a proprietary viewer file(.exe) or an AVI file(.avi).
- Thumbnail Search: Shows freeze-frame images of videos recorded during events (Event and pre-event) in the Play panel. For more details, refer to <u>Recorded</u> <u>Video Playback on page 80</u> and <u>Thumbnail</u> <u>Search on page 86</u>

About

IDIS Center Remote Administr					
Playback	About				
rch Health	Privacy Policy Keyboard Shortcuts F1				
CAM4	About				

- Privacy Policy: Choose whether to agree to the IDIS Privacy Policy. Agreed devices can use FEN services.
- **Keyboard Shortcuts:** Displays a keyboard shortcut description pop-up.
- **About**: Shows software version and copyright information.

Site List

Shows a list of registered sites.



- $\mathcal{P}_{\mathbf{v}}$: Search registered sites. When a search query is entered, matching results are shown as the query is typed.
- All Devices: Shows a list of registered devices. By clicking a device on the list and dragging it to the desired position on the screen, you can view live video from the camera connected to the device or the camera's video recordings.

This function is only supported for users in Administrator group.

- Device Group: Shows a list of registered device groups. By clicking a device on the list and dragging it to the desired position on the screen, you can view live video from the camera connected to the device or the camera's video recordings.
- Layout: Shows a list of registered layouts. By clicking a layout on the list and dragging it to the screen, you can perform layout monitoring or playback.
- Layout Sequence: Shows a list of registered layout sequences. By clicking a layout sequence on the list and dragging it to the screen, you can perform layout sequence.
- Camera Sequence: Shows a list of registered camera sequences. By clicking a camera sequence on the list and dragging it to a desired position on the screen, you can perform camera sequence.

- Map: Shows a list of registered maps. By clicking a map on the list and dragging it to a desired position on the screen, you can monitor videos on a map.
- HDP: If a removable eSATA HDD or SD (SDHC) memory card is connected to the IDIS Center system, it shows the list of HDD or SD (SDHC) memory cards. Connecting the removable HDD of a device to the IDIS Center System requires a SATA ↔ USB 2.0 converter or an IDE ↔ USB 2.0 converter. Connecting an eSATA HDD requires an eSATA cable, and connecting an SD (SDHC) memory card requires an SD (SDHC) memory card reader. For more information, contact your IDIS Center software retailer. When you right-click on the list, the storage information of the selected HDD or SD (SDHC) memory card is displayed. Folder path, drive type, device model, recording range, and capacity are shown in the storage information.
- Browser: Shows a list of registered browsers. Clicking a browser on the list and dragging it to a desired position on the screen launches the browser.
- **Panic**: If there is a device that has created a panic recording, it shows the list of corresponding devices.



- Live: Shows live video.
- Play: Used to play video recordings stored on the device or panic recordings created by IDIS Center program.
- Map: Shows map.
- Report: Shows IDIS Center Program's log.
- Health: Checks the status of devices registered in the device group and shows the results.
- Status: Shows the status of selected device in realtime
- Self-Diagnosis: Shows and reports the status of a recorder.
- Browser: Allows the Internet browser function.

In the Panel tab, you can right-click to rename the tab.

Add or Delete Panels



To select a new tab click the **System** menu > **New Tab**. To delete a panel, click **X** next to each tab.

Floating & Attaching Panels

You can make a panel tab float on top of other windows by dragging the tab. You can click and drag the tab of the floating panel to their original position to attach it back. You can also use drag & drop to change the order of the panel tabs.



- To maximize or restore panels, click on the Maximize/Restore buttons at the upper left corner of floating panels.
- Right click on the screen of the floating panel and select **Remote Site Panel** to show or hide Site list in the floating panel. Not every panel supports this function.

Part 4 - Configuration

Device

Configure the device-related settings. Select **System** menu > **IDIS Center Setup** > **Device**.



• Always On Top: Keeps the Setup window always displayed in the foreground.

0	Multiple Firmware Upgrade	Upgrades the software of multiple devices at once.
2	Multiple Remote Setup	Changes settings of multiple devices using settings file.
3	Network Keyboard Setup	Register, delete or modify network keyboards. Network keyboard can be used to control IDIS Center program. For more details, refer to <u>Control Using Network</u> <u>keyboards on page 121</u> .
4	Site Panel	Shows a list of site groups supported by IDIS Center program.
6	Site List Panel	Shows the list of sites registered in each site group and related information. Click on the ▶ 📦 button next to the name of each device to view video inputs, alarm input/output and audio input/output details supported by the device.
6	Search	Searches sites registered in each group. Select Device Group in Site panel and enter the search query. When there is a match to the search query within the selected group, matching results are shown as the query is typed.
0	Add, delete, modify	Adds, deletes, or modifies a site. Right click on Site and use the menu to delete the site from the selected group or modify properties. If the selected site is a device , you can connect to the device and change device settings or upgrade device's software.

V If a device is deleted from **All Devices**, then registered again, IDIS Center will consider it as a new device.

Devices Management

Modify properties or delete a device from the list. You can remotely change the device's settings or upgrade the device's software.

- Select Device Group on the Site panel. Then, click
 Device on the Site List panel.
- 2 To bring up the **Device** menu, right-click on the device or click on the



- Edit Device: Modifies device's connection details.
- Remote Setup Device: Changes device's settings remotely.
- Firmware Upgrade: Upgrades the device's software remotely.
- **DirectNDC**: You can use VNC (Virtual Network Computing) to connect to the device.



VNC must be enabled on the device to establish this connection. When registering a device on IDIS Center program, the port number and password for VNC remote connection must be registered. This function may not be supported depending on device's specifications and version.

- Clone Device: You can clone the registered device. Device information is cloned identically when cloning the device. You can change the device information by selecting Edit Device from the device menu of the cloned device. The device's authentication procedure, which is entering the user ID and password of the device, is not required when changing the device information. A clone icon (b) is displayed at the device icon in the device list to distinguish the cloned device.
- **Update Device Information**: Shows the newest information of the selected device.
- Edit Identifier: Edits the identifier of the selected device.
- **Preview Video**: Shows preview of video from the device.
- Delete Device: Deletes the device from IDIS Center program.

Editing a Device: Information Tab

Click **Edit Device** on the device menu. The device information can be modified.

Edit Device		x
Information Network	DirectNDC	
Name :		
	Disable Device	
	✓ Device Name Sync	
	✓ Device Real-Time Monitoring	
	Device Low Bandwidth Communication	
Group :		
Device Type :		
Description :	*	
	OK Cancel	

Name: Renames the device. Names used by other devices cannot be used.

Disable Device	The device is considered as not registered.	
Device Name Sync	Automatically updates device name depending on the device's settings.	

Device Real-Time Monitoring	Automatically updates event and device information displayed on IDIS Center program for all registered devices. When multiple IDIS Center systems attempt to connect to the device simultaneously, connection may fail depending on the number of simultaneous users supported by the device. If this option is not selected, event and device information of the device currently being monitored are updated automatically.
Device Low Bandwidth Communication	The client operates according to the low bandwidth environment.

- **Group**: Shows the registered device group list.
- Device Type: Shows device type.

Editing a Device: Network Tab

Click Edit Device on the device menu.

The basic information for connecting to the device can be modified. The device's authentication procedure, which is entering the user ID and password of the device, is required.



• Address Type: Choose device's address type.

Auto Scan (LAN)	The mDNS number can be entered when modifying device's address.
IP Address	The IP address can be entered when modifying device's address.
FEN	If the device uses FEN, a device name registered on FEN server can be entered when modifying device's address. The name entered must be identical to the name set in device's FEN settings.
Domain Name	If the device uses domain name service, a domain name registered on DNS server can be entered when modifying device's address.

- Address: The device's address can be modified depending on the address type chosen above.
- Port: Port number can be modified. The port number entered must be identical to the ports set for Remote Access(Admin), Remote Watching(Watch), Recording(Record) and Two-way Audio(Audio) on the device.
- ID, Password, Connection Test: The device's authentication procedure is required to change the information above. Enter the user ID and password of the device and click the Connection Test button.
 When the connection test succeeds, you can click the OK button to apply the changes.
- **Password Reissue:** Reissue the remote device password (Only for the products that support this function).

Editing a Device: Live Tab

You can set a live time limit.



• Live Time Limit: After accessing a live session on the selected device, video and audio will no longer be received after the set time has passed.

Editing a Device: DirectNDC Tab

You can register port number and password for VNC (Virtual Network Computing) remote access.



- **Port, Password**: Enter the port number and password for VNC remote access.
- Scale to window size: Resizes the VNC viewer screen to the window size.
- Auto Reconnect: Automatically reconnects when VNC remote access is lost.

• Enable Toolbar: Enables the toolbar of the VNC viewer.

Editing a Device: Privacy Zone Tab

You can set up the privacy zone.



- **Draw**: Create a new privacy zone by drawing it with a rectangle.
- **Erase**: Erase the existing privacy zone by drawing it with a rectangle.
- **Select Channel**: Select the channel of the device for which you set the privacy zone.
- **Stream:** When setting a privacy zone, specify the stream of the screen that is previewed.

Remote Setup Device

The device's settings can be changed remotely by selecting **Remote Setup Device** in the device menu. Certain settings items may not be supported by remote setup. For more information on device setup, refer to the device's operation manual. Settings of multiple devices can be changed using settings file.

Click on the image (Multiple Remote Setup) button at the top of the Site panel.

Multiple Remote Setup *						
Load Setup File :):₩info.dat					
Name		Address			Status	
🗆 Info.Desk			AURA_SD 2808			
<u> </u>						
						Close

- 2 Click on the button on the upper right corner and select a setup file. A list of devices applicable to the selected setup file will be displayed.
 - \checkmark

This feature may not be supported depending on the device model. Even if the setup file can be applied to the registered device, Remote Setup feature may not be supported. In such case, the device is not displayed on the list.

3 Select a device and click on **Apply** button to change the settings of the device.

Firmware Upgrade

The software of multiple devices can be upgraded remotely by selecting **Firmware Upgrade** in the device menu.

 Click on the A (Multiple Firmware Upgrade) button at the top of the Site panel.



- 2 Click on the **b** button on the upper right corner and select an upgrade file. If the device is a PC-based DVR, select **PC-Based DVR** and click **b**.
- 3 A list of devices that can be upgraded using the selected file will be displayed. Click Show All Devices.
- 4 A list of all registered devices will be displayed. Select a device and click on **Upgrade** button at the bottom to upgrade the device.

Clone Device

The cloned device is listed in the left side. Select a device group in the right side to add the cloned device to the selected device group.

Clone Device	x
Select devices to done.	Select group to add cloned device to.
Name 🔺	Site
🗹 📲 Inside 1	▼ 🗊 Device Group IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
	Lobby
	I I
	I I
	I I
	I I
	I I
	OK Cancel

Edit Device's I/O Information

- Select All Devices on the Site panel and click on the arrow button ► mtextor next to the device name on the Site List panel.
- 2 Select an I/O device on the list of Video Input, Alarm Input/Output and Audio Input/Output supported by the device.
- 3 To bring up the Edit Device window, click on the button at the bottom of the Site List panel or right click and select Edit Device.





- Device Name: Renames an I/O device.
- Associated Device: Select the camera channel to display camera videos to the event spot screen by connecting it to the I/O device. When Alarm In, Detect Audio, or Detect Event are selected, the video of the selected camera channel will be displayed on the event spot screen.
 - Names used by other I/O devices cannot be used. If the I/O device updates the name of the connected device, the changes are updated automatically.
 - Only supported if the I/O device is an Alarm In or Audio Input device.

Devices Password Reissue

Reissue the remote device password. This function is only for the products that support the device password reissue function.

Device Password Initialization

When registering a device, the User Authentication window pops up to ask whether to reset the password in the case of the devices that need the password initialization. For the device that needs the password initialization, device registration is enabled after the initialization. Click Yes to display the password initilization window.



2 Enter the information for the initialization and click OK to reset the device password.

Pa	ssword initialization	x
	The device password reset is requ Reset the device to enter your pa	ired. ssword.
	New password :	
	Confirm password :	
	Phone Number (without '-') :	
	Email :	
		OK Cancel



- New Password/Confirm Password: Enter the new password.
- **Phone Number:** Enter the phone number that allows SMS for receiving the One Time Password (OTP) when resetting the password.
- **Email**: Enter the email address for receiving the One Time Password (OTP) when resetting the password.

Changing Device Password

Select **Edit Device** from the device menu, and click **Passsword Reissue** on the **Network** tab.

Edit Device			
Information Network			
Address Type :	IP Address	~	
Address :	10 . 0 . 127 . 149		
Port :	Туре	Port	
	Remote Port	8016	
m.	- duin		
December 1	aumin		
Passworu :	No Password		
	Password Reissue		
			Cancel

 Select an authentication method and enter the email address or phone number. Click
 Authentication and enter the new password.

Pa	ssword Reissue	x
	Deleguing a pareword for <no name=""></no>	
	Please select an authentication method.	
	Authentication method : Email 🗸 🗸	
	Email Address :	
	Authentication Cancel	

Authentication method :	SMS 🗸
Phone Number (without '-') :	0101234
	Authentication



2 Enter the information for the initialization and click OK to reset the device password.

Pas	ssword Reissue		x
	Enter a new password.		
	New password :		
	Confirm password :		
		OK Cancel	
Р	assword Reissue	2	×



New Password/Confirm Password: Enter the new password.

3 Click the Connection Test button from Edit Device to check the user authentication with the reissued password.

Edit Device			x
Information Network			
Address Type :	IP Address	~	
Address :	10 . 0 . 127 . 149		
Port :			
ID :	admin		
Password :	•••••	Connection Test	
	No Password		
	Password Reissue		
			Cancel
Connection Test			x

Connection Test	x
(iverside) ' <no name="">' connected successfully.</no>	
ОК	

Click OK when the connection test is complete.

Device Password Reissue

The password reissuance works only when the customer service connection is available, since One Time Password (OTP) is issued through the customer service. Ask your dealer or retailer for more information.

If the user authentication fails (password error) during the device registration, the window pops up to check whether to reissue the password or not.

Select All	Devices: 29 / Max 1	024			۶.
Name		Address	Type	Description	Status
🗹 🎫 <no name=""></no>					
	User	Authentication		2	۲ <u> </u>
	?	Address : 10.0. Name : <no nam<="" th=""><th>r ID or Password. t to reissue the do 127.149 ne> Yes</th><th>evice password?</th><th></th></no>	r ID or Password. t to reissue the do 127.149 ne> Yes	evice password?	
_					

2 Click Request to reissue the password.

Pa	ssword Reissue	x
	Reissuing a password for <no name="">.</no>	
	Select an authentication method, and then request an authentication number.	
	ID: admin	
	Authentication method : SMS 🗸 🗸	
	Phone Number (without '-') : 0101234	
	Request Cancel	
Pas	ssword Reissue	x
	Reissuing a password for <no name="">.</no>	
	Select an authentication method, and then request an authentication number.	
	ID: admin	
	Authentication method : Email	
	Email Address : admin@xxx.xxx	
	Request Cancel]

- **ID:** Enter the user ID that requests the password reissuance.
- Authentication Method: Select an authentication method between the email address/phone number.
- Email Address/Phone Number: Enter the email address or phone number that allows SMS for receiving the One Time Password (OTP) when resetting the password.

Login Failed Device Group

If you fail to log in to the registered device for the certain number of times, a **Login Failed** device group is created and the device is deactivated.



- Login failure cases include the following:
 - System > IDIS Center Setup > Device > Edit
 Device > Device Real-time Monitoring activated
 - System > IDIS Center Setup > Report > Update Interval setup
 - Registering a device on the Live or Play tab
 - Registering a device under device related log on the **Report** tab
- The Login Failed device group is automatically created when you fail to log in for the certain number of times, and the device becomes deactivated.
- In order to remove the device from the **Login Failed** device group, deselect **Disable Device**.
- The Login Failed device group is not deleted even if all of login failed devices are removed from the group.
- The devices are not deleted even if you delete the **Login Failed** device group.

Notification Popup

The following notification popup is displayed when the device is registered under the Login Failed device group.



- The notification popup is displayed when you log in again if a device is registered under the **Login Failed** device group.
- If a user does not have **Device Setup** authority, the notification popup is displayed with the following message: "You don't have the device setup authority. Ask the administrator."

Password Change Period Expiration Notification

Users are notified of password renewals when their password renewal cycle expires or is approaching in the near future. Supported on devices that provide the ability to periodically refresh passwords.

Change Password

Among the devices added to the site tree, when the set password renewal cycle expires or the expiration cycle arrives in the near future, a password renewal notification window is displayed on the screen.



2 Click Change Now to appear the change password window.

Change Password - 124 MINT S1	x
User	admin
Current Password	
New password	
Confirm new password	
Site	<no name=""></no>
Address	10.0.132.124:8016
?	OK Cancel

- User: Display the user ID of the device.
- Current Password: Enter the current password.
- New password, Confirm new password: Enter the password to change. For Confirm new password, enter the same characters as the New password.
- **Site, Address:** Display the name and the address of the device.



Click? button to see the password rules.

1	All password should observe the following guide line.
	- It should be different from User ID - It should have a least 8 characters, and 16 at most. - It should be a combination of uppercase, lowercase, number, or special characters, consisting of at least 3 types of characters. (For instance JA38/2C4, at##8032)
	* following etrings cannot be used. Strings that contain continuous animbers. (For instance 123, 321) Strings that contain continuous abhabets. (For instance abc, dba, ASC, GBA) Strings that contain negated characters more than or equal to 3 times (For instance 111, asa, AAA) Strings that contain whitespace characters.

3 Click OK to complete the password change, and if it fails, a failure message is displayed.



Extend password change period

Among the devices added to the site tree, when the set password renewal cycle expires or the expiration cycle arrives in the near future, a password renewal notification window is displayed on the screen.



2 Click Change Later to extend the password change period, and if it fails, a failure message is displayed.

User

Registers and manages users or user groups. Click on **System** menu > **IDIS Center Setup** > **User**.

				3 🔎	
Group	Name	▲ ID	Email	Phone	Description
All UserGroup	Administrator	admin			
1			2		
+ - 0	+ - 0	4			

0	Group Panel	Shows a list of registered device user groups.
2	User List Panel	Shows the list of users registered in each user group and related information.
3	Search	Searches users registered in each group. Select a user group in Group Panel and enter the search query.
4	Add, delete, modify	Adds, deletes, or modifies user group or user.

User Management

The authority for each function of IDIS Center can be set differently by each user.

When you click on the + button at the bottom of the User Group panel, an Add User Group window will appear.

dd User Group				
Information Device Access Aut				
Name :				
Description :				-
dd User Group				
Information Device Access Aut	ority Authori	by		
Select List				
P.			Site	
			Device Group	
Vingrouped Devices			Aisle 🖉	
dd User Group				
Information Device Access Aut	ionity Authori	ay		
▼ Device Setup	•	۲	Device Setup can be accessed	

- Information Tab: Enter a name for the user group.
- **Device Access Authority** Tab: Grant or restrict access authority for each device.
- **Authority** Tab: Grant or restrict authority for each function.
- 2 Click **OK** to add the user group.



Administrators group is authorized to use all functions, and cannot be modified.

When you click on the new user group and click the
 + button at the bottom of the user group panel, an
 Add User window will appear.

Add User		x
Information User Specific L	ayout	
	Disable	
Group :	Administrators	
	No Password	
	Password Expiration Setup	
Email :	PEROU[INITO] .	
Phone :		
Description :		
	OK Cancel	

- **Disable:** Check the box to disable the user.
- Name: Enter a name for the user.
- **ID, Password, Confirm Password**: Enter a unique user ID and password for running IDIS Center software.

Passwords can be set from 8 to 16 letters without spaces.

- **No Password**: Allows user to log in without a password when logging on to IDIS Center .
- **Password Expiration Setup**: Sets an expiration date for the password. The user is notified upon logging in if the password is expired.
- User Specific Layout: Selects the user layout when logging in to the IDIS Center.
- Email: Enter an email address. The email address must contain a "@".
- **Phone, Description**: Enter a phone number and description. Only digits and "-" can be entered in the phone number field.



• User Specific Layout: Select a user layout for each Live tab when operating IDIS Center.

4 Click OK.

- By selecting a registered user group or user and clicking the button, you can modify the information about the selected user group or user.
- Show all registered users in the IDIS Center system regardless of the user group if you select **All UserGroup**.
- Select a registered user and drag & drop it in the other user group to change the group. Monitoring group is also changed when changing the user group.

Panic Record

Allows user to manually start or stop a recording while monitoring live videos.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Panic Record.

	Total Space : 0 Recorded Time :		
Recorded Free Space		Clear	
	Reconstruct Abnormally Recorded Timetable * You can reconstruct Imetables with abnormal recording which might occur because of slow network connections or hard disk errors. It may take from a fee hours to several days depending on the size of your storage.	Reconstruct	
	Use Panic Recording Storage Path : Coelect divrage Folder > Capacity : d GB GB]	
		ОК	Cancel

- **Total Space**: Shows the total space and available space allocated for panic recordings.
- **Recorded Time**: Shows the total duration of panic recordings in the allocated storage space.
- **Overwrite**: Shows whether Recycle is enabled or not.
- Clear All Recorded Data: Deletes all panic recordings.
- Reconstruct Abnormally Recorded Timetable: If an error occurs while recording, the recorded data, and therefore timetable information may become out of sync and timetable in IDIS Center software may display incorrect information. You can click Reconstruct to restore the timetable information and view the correct recorded data.
- Overwrite recorded data when the disk is full : When the allocated storage space becomes full, the system overwrites existing data with new data, starting with the oldest first.
- Use Panic Recording: Enables Panic Recording.
- **Storage path**: Set folder path of the storage space for Panic Recordings.
- **Capacity**: Allocates storage space for panic recordings. From 4 GB to 64 GB can be selected.



A live video must be displayed on the screen to create a panic recording. If you switch to playback panel or another panel in the middle of a panic recording, the live video will no longer be displayed on the screen and panic recording will stop automatically.

Panic Recording

- 1 On the Live screen, select a camera that shows the video you wish to record.
- 2 Click (Panic Record) button in the control toolbar on camera screen.
- 3 A Panic Record icon
 will be displayed on the upper right corner of the camera's image and recording will begin.
- 4 To stop recording, click
 (Panic Record) button again.



System

Configure the system language, automatic connection, date, and time.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > System.

General	
Language : English	
Device Real-Time Monitoring : Device Specific Setup	
Disable display scaling on high DPI settings	
✓ Use hardware acceleration when available	
Adjust windows visual effects	
✓ Disable display power management at login	
Auto run IDIS Center at Windows startup	
Popup login notification	
✓ Load user specific layout	
Startup Hull Screen Setup	
CPU Usage Popup : Disabled 🔽	
Number of Processors to use : All(8)	
Auto Connect	
Auto login at startup	
Restore last Live sessions at auto login	
Auto Lock I hour	
Date/Time	
Date/Time : 10/11/2022 10:45:27 PM	
Date Format : MM/DD/YYYY	
Time Format : 12 hours (AM/PM)	
Start Week On : Sunday	
Reset Apply OK	Cancel

- Language: Select the language for IDIS Center. Changed settings will take effect when the program is restarted.
- **Reset Tab Name**: This option is displayed when a language different from the current language is selected. When restarting the system after selecting this option, every tab name is reset to the selected language including the name entered by the user.
- Device Real-Time Monitoring: Select the range of the Device Real-time Monitoring. This setting changes the real-time monitoring status of the devices. If All Devices Deactivated is selected, the Device Real-Time Monitoring is removed from the Edit Device window of each device.
- Disable display scaling on high DPI settings: Uncheck to change the size of the client program according to the DPI scale.
- Use GDI DPI Scaling: Makes text more visible on high DPI displays. This function is activated only when the operating system supports Use GDI DPI Scaling and "Disable display scaling on high DPI settings function is disabled.
- Use hardware acceleration when available: Use this function in an environment that meets certain conditions.
- Adjust windows visual effects: Choose whether to change the window visual effects settings.
- Disable display power management at login: Display power management option includes Turn off the display and Put the computer to sleep.
- Auto run IDIS Center at Windows startup: Runs IDIS Center automatically at Windows start-up.
- Pop up login notification: A message box will pop up notifying login when logging into the IDIS Center program.
- Load user specific layout: Display the specific layout which the user has set when restarting the program.
- **Startup Full Screen:** Displays the full screen when the program is restarted. You can click the **Setup** button to select the panel displayed on each monitor.
- **CPU Usage Popup**: Shows a warning if the IDIS Center system's CPU usage exceeds a set value and notifies the user.
- Number of Processors to use: Set up the number of processors to use during the IDIS Center program running. It allows you to limit the CPU usage for the IDIS Center program running.
- Auto login at startup: Uses the previous login information to login automatically upon IDIS Center program startup. If Restore last Live sessions at auto login option is enabled, previous Live session is restored in the current Live panel.
- Auto: Automatically logs out of IDIS Center program or locks IDIS Center system if a mouse or keyboard input is not detected for a set period of time while logged in.
- Date/Time: Displays current date and time.
- Date Format, Time Format: Sets the format for displaying date and time.
- Start Week On: Sets the first day of the week.

Screen Format

Configure the camera screen and layout-related settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Screen Format.

General				
	Right V			
	Left 🗸			
	Left 🗸			
Screen Format				
	Format Setup			
	Format Setup			
	Format Setup			
Change the screen format based				
Format expansion automatically				
Use Full Screen Desktop Mode				
Reset		Apply	ОК	Cancel

- **General**: Sets the position of side panel, position of root map list in the panel, and position of text-in panel.
- Screen Format : Shows the basic layout of live screen, playback screen and map screen. The screen layout can be changed by clicking the Format Setup button.
- Change the screen format based on the selected camera: If enabled, the camera selected in the current screen is positioned at the first camera screen when the layout is changed.
- Format expansion automatically: Layout expands automatically depending on the number of devices to connect to.
- Use Full Screen Desktop Mode: When full screen is activated, the full screen of the tab is additionally displayed on the taskbar separately from the current client S/W.

Screen Display

Sets OSD(On Screen Display) display method on the camera screen and enables / disables OSD.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Display OSD.



- **Opacity**: Adjusts the opacity of OSD using a slider.
- Selected Pane No Border: Hides the border of the selected pane.
- Selected Pane Title Bar Only: Displays the title bar of the selected pane.
- Live, Playback: Configures OSD information displayed on the screen.
 - **Camera Title**: Displays the camera name set in IDIS Center program.
 - **Title bar**: Separates the title display area at the top of the camera screen.
 - **Recorded Title**: Displays the name of the camera configured during video recording.

- Status Icon: Displays status OSD.

	Panic Record in progress
P	PTZ
٥	Camera Sequence
÷	Zoom In
	Device record in progress
Ð	Talk
¢	Listen

- **PTZ**: Adjusts pan & tilt control buttons on the screen when controlling a PTZ.
- **Date, Time**: Displays current date and time of IDIS Center system.
- Event Alert, Event Alert Dwell Time Turns the title bar of a camera to red when an event occurs on the device. The event warning is displayed for the duration set for event warnings and disappears. If Manual Off is selected, event warning disappears when the user selects the camera screen.
- **Motion Block**: If a motion detection event occurs on a device, the part of the screen where motion is detected is displayed as a red block. Only supports network video servers.
- **ePTZ:** Displays the guide GUI (Graphic User Interface) when you control PTZ in the fisheye camera.
- **Site Name**: Displays the name of the device. Displays only if camera name and device name are different.
- Text-In, Text-In Dwell Time: If a text-in event occurs on a device, text-in information is displayed on the screen. Only supports 1x1 layout. The Text-In information will be removed after the Text-In Dwell Time from the time an event occurred.
- Message: Displays message on the screen. For more information on screen messages, refer to the Network section on page <u>Network on page 43</u>
- **Position**: Used to adjust the OSD's position, text size, and margin.
- **Text-In**: Used to change the color and size of the text-in.

• **Control ToolBar**: Adjusts the opacity of control toolbar on camera screen using the **Opacity** slider.



Camera title, Status icon, Date/Time



Event Alert



Motion Block



Control ToolBar

- **Popup on the Hover Zone:** Toggles on/off the toolbar by a mouse cursor position in the hover zone.

OSD on each camera screen in Live screen



2009-06-04 18:02:02

- Camera Title: Indicates the camera's title.
- ↓ ↓ ↓ (Listen or talk): Indicates that IDIS Center program is receiving audio from the device or sending audio to the device.
- P (PTZ): Indicates that PTZ can be controlled.
- 🗇 (Camera Sequence): Indicates that camera sequence is in progress.
- (Panic Record): Indicates that panic record is in progress by IDIS Center system.
- (Device Record): Indicates that device record is in progress by IDIS Center system.
- (Zoom): Indicates that the video is zoomed in.
- (Freeze-frame): Indicates that freeze-frame function is used on the live video when connecting to INK.
- (Color Control) : Indicates that color control is in use.
- 🚺 (Image Effect): Indicates that image effect is in use.
- **Date, Time**: Displays current date and time of IDIS Center system.
- Event Alert: Indicates that an event has been detected.
- Motion Block: A block is displayed over the area of video in which motion event was detected.

Only supports network video servers.

Screen Menu

Add or remove the context menu items on the live tab.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Screen Menu.



• Remove disabled menu items: Removes the disabled menu items from the context menu.

Video Enhancement

Configure the video-related settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Video Enhancement.



· Aspect Ratio: Sets the aspect ratio of video output.

- **Original Ratio**: Resizes camera screen to original aspect ratio of the video.
- Fit to Screen: Resizes video to camera screen regardless of original aspect ratio.
- Fit to Screen(Smart): Resizes video according to the extra spaces, to the Fit to Screen or Actual Size.
- **Fit to Screen(Aspect ratio)**: Resizes video to camera screen while maintaining original aspect ratio.
 - Left and right part of the video may be cropped depending on size of camera screen. When using **Zoom, Hotspot, Event Spot, Show Motion Block** features, **Original Ratio** is applied instead of camera screen aspect ratios.
- Actual size (1x): Displays the video in actual size.
- Drawing Mode: Choose the drawing mode for video display on the screen. The overall color and display performance may vary depending on drawing mode settings.
- Maximum Frame Size: Select the maximum frame size to display on screen.
- Frame Skipping: Select the frame skipping to enhance video performance if the video exceeds the decoding specification.
 - Level 1 Based on system specifications: Apply frame skipping in decoder configurations that exceed video decoding specifications.
 - Level 2 Include when the pane size is smaller than the video resolution: Apply frame skipping if the size of the target camera pane is smaller than the size specified by the original video resolution.
 - Level 3 Turn off loop filter: Applies codec's loop filter off when skipping frames.
- Low Latency Mode: Minimizes frames to be decoded in parallel to reduce DPB (Decoded Picture Buffer).



- **Deinterlacing**: If the video is encoded in interlaced mode, this option removes horizontal stripes or noise that may occur during movement to improve video output quality. Select the desired de-interlacing filter.
- Important Video Performance: Puts speed over quality of video output when displaying videos on the screen.
- **Anti-Aliasing**: Removes stair step (blocks) artifacts that are caused when zooming a video to improve overall quality of video output.

- **High-Quality Downscaling/Upscaling:** Maintains the quality of video output when downscaling/ upscaling the video.
- Trim The Black(noise) Edges: Removes black borders (noise) around videos.
- Monitor Vertical Sync: Improves tearing artifacts caused when the monitor's refresh rate is low.



Only supports 1x1 layout. CPU usage may increase if this option is enabled.

• Dynamic MultiStream Control: IDIS Center can be set to use different streams depending on layout. If Auto is chosen, IDIS Center will automatically set the most appropriate stream for the layout.

Only supports devices that use more than one stream.

- Interactive Bandwidth Control: Changes resolution and frame rate of the device depending on layout to control network bandwidth. It allows more efficient use of network bandwidth and prevents performance drops in IDIS Center System caused by network overloads.
 - **1x1 layout**: Maximum resolution and transfer speed supported by the device.
 - **Multiple layout**: Resolution and frame rate lowered to an appropriate level for each layout

• This function must be supported by the device to operate properly.

- · This function only applies to Live videos.
- Use H/W Acceleration iGPU: Enables hardware acceleration for high-quality video processing. This option is only available if the user's PC supports hardware acceleration.
- Use GPU Decoding DXVA2: Enables GPU decoding in the IDIS Center program. It may enhace processing of HD (High-Definition) video. This option is available only when GPU decoding is enabled in your PC.

Video Analysis

Configure video analysis-related settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Video Analysis.



- **Color Settings**: Set the color of the image analysis result overlaid on the image by object type.
- **Display Object Type**: Displays the object type in the image analysis result.
- **Display Accuracy**: Displays the accuracy of the video analysis results.
- **Display Colors**: Displays the colors of the video analysis results.

Report

Configure log output-related settings. Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Report.



 Number of results displayed on the list: Set the number of logs to be displayed per page.

> For Device Log, default is 100 regardless of above settings.

- Update Interval: Configure the update interval of status displayed in the operational status panel. Select Not Use to disable the Health status panel.
- Connection Retry Count: Set up the maximum number of connection retries.
- Status Request Timeout: Set up the maximum waiting time for device status request.
- Save problem status as: Save the log of the selected problem items as PDF or CSV according to the update interval. Set up the storage folder with a title and password (PDF only).
- Popup problem status notification: Display a popup notification when a problem occurs from the selected problem items according to the update interval. The popup notification displays issue related information, and click Self-Diagnosis to start the self-diagnosis.
- Popup Timeout: Set the time for automatic closing of the problem status popup window. Select Infinite for a user to manually close the popup.

Instant Event

Configure Live event-related settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Instant Event.

Instant Event			
Use Event Panel			
Time Range : 1 Hour			
* The Instant Event list shows recent events within the selected time range. (The Instant Event List will retain 100 items or less.)			
Column : 🗹 Event 🖉 Site 🖉 Time			
Calback Port : 8201 🔄 (1024~65535)			
Live Text-In Time Range : 1 Hour			
✓ Treat <device disconnection=""> Event as Emerger</device>			
Event Sound			
Motion Detection C:\starNet\Client\EventSound.wav			
Object Detection C:/starNet)Clent/EventSound.wav			
Wideo Loss C: \starNet\Client\EventSound.wav			
Video Blind			
Auto disable when Two-way Audio is on.			
Event Spot			
Event monitoring dwell : 20 🚔 Sec			
Minimum monitoring dwell : 2 Seconds			
Intercom			
Call Nedgest Nederving - Notification			
Reset	Apply	ОК	Cancel

- Use Event Panel: Displays the Instant Event List panel. Unchecking the box hides the panel.
- **Time Range**: Sets the duration in which each event is displayed in the Instant Event list.



If the event list is less than 100, event notification does not disappear from the live event list even if the duration passes.

- **Column**: Selects the information to be displayed on the live event list.
- Callback Port: Set the port number for receiving callback messages from the device. Port number must be identical to the port number set on the device for remote callbacks.
- Live Text-In Time Range: Set the duration in which text-in data is displayed when text-in event is detected. Text-in data can be checked in the text-in viewer window during the set duration after text-in event has occurred. For more details, refer to Text-In Viewer on page 72.
- Treat <Device Disconnection> Event as Emergency Event: When a device is disconnected, the disconnection event is treated as an emergency event.
- Event Sound: Enable audio notification when an event occurs. Select the desired event, and click III to set the audio file (.wav) to be played. You can preview the selected audio file by clicking **D**.

- **Auto disable when Two-way Audio is on.:** Set up to automatically turn off the event sound when using the two-way audio.
- **Event Spot**: Shows the camera video in which an event occurred on the event spot screen.
 - **Event monitoring dwell**: Set the duration in which video is displayed on the event spot screen.
 - **Minimum monitoring dwell**: Set the watch duration of current event when another event is detected while current event is being displayed. The camera video of the latter event is displayed after the set duration has passed.
- **Intercom**: When the intercom call is received, when an event is detected, a pop-up screen appears.
 - Not Use: Do not specify the setting when a call request is received.
 - **Notification:** Display the intercom notification popup.
 - Intercom Popup: Display the intercom popup.

Network

Configure network-related settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Network.



- **Buffering for HD Live**: When monitoring a HD video, short term/long term buffering can be used to smoothen video playback. Buffering may be delayed or live video may be delayed depending on network conditions.
- Live image no frames detect interval: Set the interval for transmission of video frames. If a video frame is not transmitted to IDIS Center system for the set duration, a message is displayed on the corresponding camera

screen.

- Disconnection Message: The on-screen messages for indicating lost connection to the device or camera status can be changed. Click Setup..., then check the boxes next to each message and change the message.
- FEN: If there is a device that uses FEN, enter the device name that is registered on the FEN server. If the device name entered is incorrect, system will not be able to register and connect to a device that uses FEN. The client NAT type is displayed.
- Use FEN: Check Use FEN to use FEN.
- **RTP Incoming Port Range**: Set the inbound RTP port range if a device that transmits video using RTP protocol is registered.

If network firewall or local area network only allows certain UDP/RTP ports, the RTP port range must be set to those ports allowed. Make sure that the port numbers do not overlap with general streaming programs. Overlapping port numbers may result in failure to monitor videos.

- **Don't display broken frames**: When using RTP protocol, frames may be corrupted or lost depending on network conditions. In such case, this option allows user to choose whether to display corrupted frames on Live or Playback panels.
- **Buffering Frame Count**: Set the number of buffered frames to be used in RTP protocol. Higher number will result in smoother video playback, but also causes a delay in the video.
- Use Network Keyboard: IDIS Center program can be controlled using network keyboards. Set the port to be used by IDIS Center program. Enabling Use large mouse cursor increases the size of the mouse cursor. Enabling Use the arrow buttons to select a pane selects a pane with the arrow buttons of keyboard. Use Enabling MFZ camera control controls MFZ cameras using the network keyboard.

Playback

Configure playback settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Playback.



- Event Time Shift: Set up to search the frame before the specific time based on the event-related frame time.
- Dual-Stream Playback Priority: Set up to select the default stream for the dual-stream playback. Playback is performed from the 2x2 layout for Dynamic Control, from layouts under 2x2 for Main Stream Priority, and from the other layouts for Sub Stream Priority.
- Prefer Responsiveness When Searching Time Overlap: When searching for a section in which many segments exist, the search is performed by limiting the number of the latest segment.
- **Playback without Time Overlap:** Displays without segmentation on the time table when a time overlap occurs. Sections with time overlap use the recording data of the latest segment.
- Prefer Responsiveness to Time-Precision: Displays the closest time frame possible while reducing the loss of responsiveness, preferred than time-precision, when performing the GoTo function on a Long-GOP image.
- Key-Frame mode forced on Long-GOP backward playback: Set up to play the key-frame only on Long-GOP backward playback.
- **Timetable:** Specify the color to be displayed in the timetable for each recording format.

Site

Configure site settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Site.

Site Tree					
	Expand Device Groups				
	Display Disabled Devices				
		Icon	×		
		Video Analytics			
	Alarm-In	🗹 Alarm-Out			
	Alarm Box	ANPR .			
	Audio-In	Audio-Out			
	Text-In	PIR PIR			
Reset				Apply	Cancel

- Expand Device Groups: Displays the devices in the device group of the Site list when monitoring video or playing recorded video.
- Show Disabled Devices: Displays or hides the disabled devices in the Site list.
- Show Device Real-Time Monitoring: Set up the way of displaying device real-time monitoring (Not use, icon , green overlay) on the site tree.
- **Item**: Displays or hides the list of input/output devices supported by the device in the Site list when monitoring video or playing recorded video.

Мар

Configure map-related settings. Click on **System** menu > **IDIS Center Setup** > **Map**.

Map Setup —					_
	I has I in a Damin Danal				
	Vise Event Sound Multiple				
	Cole Event adund Harapie				
Focusing Event :	Motion Detection	Object Detection	🗹 Auto Tracking		
	Video Loss	Video Blind	Video Analytics		
	Face Detection	✓ TripZone	Tampering		
	Audio Detection	Network Alarm-In			
	🗹 Alarm-In	Alarm-Out	🗹 Text-In		
	PIR Detection	Path Sequence			
	Activate Auto Focusing				
		5 Seconds			
		3 Seconds			
		Auto 🗸			
Map Event Spot					
		20 🚭 Sec			
		2 Seconds 🛛 🗸			
Instant viewer					
		10 Seconds V			
				Apply	Cancel

- Use Live Popup Panel: Displays the Live Popup List panel. Unchecking the box hides the panel.
- Use Event Sound Multiple Play: Simultaneously plays each camera's sound file when events occur at multiple camera sites at the same time. Uncheck the box to play the first event's sound file.
- Activate Auto Focusing: Zooms in on the zone where the device is located on the map when a designated event occurs.
 - **Focusing Event**: Designate an event to auto-focus on.
 - Focusing Duration: Set the duration of auto-focus.
 - **Focus Minimum Dwell**: Set the minimum autofocus duration for the first event when consecutive events are detected on different devices. The autofocus will switch to latter event after the set duration has passed.
- **Zoom Finder**: Shows or hides PIP screen. The square of PIP screen displays the zoomed area. If **Auto** is selected, PIP screen is only displayed when canvas is zoomed in.
- **Map Event Spot**: Shows the camera video in which an event occurred on the map event spot screen.
 - **Event monitoring dwell**: Set the duration in which video is displayed on the map event spot screen.
 - **Minimum monitoring dwell**: Set the watch duration of current event when another event is detected while current event is being displayed. The camera video of the latter event is displayed after the set duration has passed.



Instant viewer is displayed when the camera is clicked on the map.

Browser

General	
Browser Start Page : http://www.idisglobal.com	
Browser Setun	
* The following default setting applies to the runtime browser. After running the browser, the setting can be channed by using the boolbar or context menu.	
Fit to Pane	
Z Enable Popup	
Popup All New Window	

- Browser Start Page: Specify the browser's start page.
- Fit to Pane: Adjusts the web page to fit the size of the browser screen.
- Enable Popup: Allows popup pages.
- **Popup All New Window:** Displays the web page's popup screens as separate screens.

• Instant viewer: Set the duration of instant viewer.

Action

Configure action-related settings.

Click on System menu > IDIS Center Setup > Action.



- General: Set the general action on the live popup.
 - Use Ctrl+Popup Pane Drag: Press Ctrl button and drag the live popup to a pane on the Live tab to display the image on the pane.
 - Use Multiple Two-way Audio: Speaking and listening functions only work for a single camera when it is unchecked.
 - Use Listen when changing to screen Format 1x1: The listening is worked when changing to 1x1 screen format. (Enable Multi-Way Audio function cannot be used simultaneously with this.)
 - Enable PTZ Automatically: Set PTZ control function automatically.
- Live Popup: Double-click on the pane to practice the following fuctions.
 - Maximize or Restore
 - 1x1 Pane on Live Screen
 - Maximize on Application Monitor
- **Instant Viewer:** Double-click on the predefined button, between the middle or the right button, of the mouse to perform the following functions.
 - 1x1 Pane on Live Screen
 - Turn (e)PTZ Functions On: Set PTZ control function on default.
 - **Disable Time Out:** Disables the popup dwell time out after Action.

- **Fisheye:** Set up the default Action when accessing a fisheye camera.
 - **Startup Preset:** Set up the preset name to be used when accessing a fisheye camera. If each camera's format is saved under the same preset name, it is easier to change the format.
 - Default View Mode: Set the default view mode.
 - Image Ratio: Set the image ratio.
 - ePTZ Frame Rate: Set the ePTZ frame rate. High (Over average of 60 Fps), Normal (Over average of 30 Fps), Low (Average of 15 Fps), Very Low (Average of 5 Fps) - a PC with a low specification is appropriate.
 - **Auto Pan Frame Rate:** Set the auto pan frame rate. High (Over average of 60 Fps), Normal (Over average of 30 Fps), Low (Average of 15 Fps), Very Low (Average of 5 Fps) - a PC with a low specification is appropriate.
 - **Use ePTZ:** Uses ePTZ when accessing a fisheye camera.

Save

Configure still image saving-related settings. Click on **System** menu > **IDIS Center Setup** > **Save**.



- Still Image: Set still image related options.
 - Folder: Select a folder to save the still image.
 - **Filename:** Set a name of the folder for saving the still image. Supported extensions include JPG, WebP, PNG, TIF, BMP and PDF.
 - Include Image Information: Include image information in the saved still image file.
- Clip-Copy: Set video related options.
 - **Include Digital Signed Player:** Select to save the recorded image including the digital signed player. This option is activated when saving the video.
 - **Use Default File Path:** A video is automatically saved in the pre-set default file path with the default filename.
 - **Folder:** Set the default folder to use when saving a video.
 - **Filename:** Set the default filename to use when saving a video.
 - Prompt for Case Number when saving: Displays the Case Number input window when saving a video, and the entered Case Number is filled in the \$(CaseNumber).
 - **Create new folder using Case Number:** Displays the Case Number input window when saving a video, and a folder of the entered Case Number is created in the default file path. The video is saved in the created folder.

Backup/Restore

IDIS Center program's settings can be saved as ".iexp" file or saved settings can be imported and applied to current IDIS Center program.

Live Video Mode

Live videos of registered sites can be monitored. IDIS Center program receives videos according to the device's settings and displays live videos. Up to 4 Live panels are supported for monitoring live videos. If Live tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add it by clicking **New tab** > **Live** in **System** menu.



V		s	ystem	View	Playback
	live 1		Live 2	Play 1	Play 2
1					

- 1 In the panel tabs, click the **Live** tab.
- 2 In the Site list, select a site you wish to connect to. Then, drag & drop the selected site on the live screen using your mouse.
- **3** The live video of the selected site will be displayed on the screen.
 - You can select and move a camera to a desired position on the Live screen without disconnecting by selecting the camera being monitored and moving it using drag & drop with your mouse.
 - Monitoring or playing 2 or more camera videos on a PC with a low specification may cause the performance of IDIS Center system to drop.

Panel Toolbar

The Live panel can be controlled by using the panel toolbar at the bottom.

	49 64							
1								
0	Save to User Layout	Saves current screen layout and device connection status as a user layout.						
2	Screen Format	Change layout. Various layouts can be selected by clicking $+$ button. You can switch to previous or next camera group by clicking \bigcirc or \bigcirc .						
3	Hotspot	Sets the selected screen as hotspot screen.						
4	Event Spot	Sets the selected screen as event spot screen.						
6	Map Event Spot	Sets the selected screen as map event spot screen.						
6	Layout Sequence	Starts or stops layout sequence.						
0	Additional Menu	 Remote Site Panel: Shows or hides a site list in the floating panel or full screen. Not every panel supports this function. Text-In Panel: Shows the Text-In panel. 						
8	Export Image	 Save Still Image: Saves the current frame of the video on the screen as an image file in actual size. Export Image File, Print Image: Save or print current image on the screen. Export Panorama Screen: Save the image currently shown on the screen and the floating panels. 						
9	Audio Broadcast	Broadcasts audio to all devices in the current Live tab.						
0	NVR Two-Way Audio	Receives audio from the NVR device or sends audio to the NVR device.						
0	Panic Recording	Starts panic recording of videos from all devices in the current Live tab.						
Ø	Text-In Panel	Shows the Text-In panel. The Text-In panel shows the text-in data of the devices currently connected to the IDIS Center. If a camera is associated with the text-in device and the video of the associated camera is displayed on the current Live screen, the text-in data is displayed on the video on the camera screen, too. You can change the length of time that the text-in data is displayed by using the Live Text-In Time Range setting. For more details about the Live Text-In Time Range setting, refer to Instant Event on page 42 .						
13	Browser	Sets the selected screen as the browser screen.						

Set Hotspot

Hotspot is a camera screen designated by the user to be emphasized while monitoring a video. A hotspot screen is marked by red border.

- Select a camera screen to set as hotspot screen from the screens currently being monitored.
- 2 Click at the bottom of the Live panel. Program will be connected to the selected camera screen and previous connection will be terminated. A hotspot screen is marked by red border.
- 3 When a camera is selected on the screen, the selected camera will be displayed in the hotspot screen and the selected camera can be controlled.

Set Event Spot

Event Spot is a camera screen designated to emphasize the videos in which events occur while monitoring a video. An event spot screen is marked by blue border.

- Select a camera screen to set as event spot screen from the screens currently being monitored.
- 2 Click at the bottom of the Live panel. Program will be connected to the selected camera screen and previous connection will be terminated. An event spot screen is marked by blue border.
- 3 When an event occurs on the screen, the camera in which the event occurred will be displayed in the event spot screen.

Set Map Event Spot

Map Event Spot is a camera screen designated to emphasize the videos in which events occur on a map while monitoring a video. A map event spot screen is marked by gray border.

- Select a camera screen to set as map event spot screen from the screens currently being monitored.
- 2 Click at the bottom of the Live panel. Program will be connected to the selected camera screen and previous connection will be terminated. A map event spot screen is marked by gray border.
- 3 When an event occurs on the screen, the camera in which the event occurred will be displayed in the map event spot screen.

Browser Screen Settings

- Select a camera screen to set as browser screen from the screens currently being monitored.
- 2 Click at the bottom of the Live panel. Program will be connected to the selected camera screen and previous connection will be terminated.
- 3 Web browser page appears on the browser screen.



- \equiv (Menu): Displays the browser menu.
 - (Previous page, Next page): Navigate to the previous/next page.
 - (URL entry): Used to enter a URL (Uniform Resource Locator) address. Click I on the right after entering an address to load the URL.
 - (**X** (Refresh/Stop): Refreshes/stops the web page.
 - [] (Fit to Pane): Adjusts the web page to fit the size of the browser screen.
 - Enable Popup: Allows popup pages.

- **Popup All New Window:** Displays the web page's popup screens as separate screens.
- Print: Prints current web page.
- Remove: Releases the setting of as browser screen.

Screen Format

Screen Format in the IDIS Center program indicates the divided image pane arrangement on the live or play panel. Select from screen formats on the panel toolbar or click the C (Screen Format) button to select from additional screen formats and apply to the panel.

Screen Format includes default **Normal Format**, **Wide Format** and customized **User Screen Format**. Clicking the left mouse button on the screen format applies the selected format to the panel, and clicking the right mouse button selects the chosen screen format. Hovering the mouse over a screen format item displays a tooltip with screen format information. **User Screen Format** items are arranged in alphabetical order and in order of number of panels.

Screen Format	x
User Screen Format	
Normal Format	
Wide Format	

- + (Add): Adds a user screen format.
- 🗹 (Modify): Edits user screen format information.

User Screen Format Add/Modify

Click the + (Add) or (Modify) buttons of **User Screen Format** to add a new format or edit the format information. Select a format item using the right mouse button or arrow keys to activate the (Modify) button.



- Name: Enter a name for user screen format.
- **Sharing:** Select user range for the chosen screen format.
 - Public: Displayed to all users.
 - Group: Displayed to the users in the owner group.
 - Private: Displayed to the owner only.
- **Column, Row:** Indicates the number of column and rows of the screen format.
- **Ratio:** Displays the horizontal, vertical ratio of the panel. Selecting **Auto** uses the ratio of the monitor displaying the Client. Selecting **Default** indicates the panel ratio configured before the screen format modification.
- 🛄 (Merge): Merges the selected panes into a single pane.
- Image: (Unmerge): Splits the selected pane into panels in default size.
 - Clicking the middle mouse button on the panel merges, and clicking the right mouse button unmerges the pane.
 - Up to 64 panes are available on the panel in maximum.

Layout Monitoring

Videos from multiple cameras can be monitored using a predefined layout. A layout must be registered to use layout monitoring.

- 1 In the Layout list, select a layout you wish to to use. Then, drag & drop the selected layout on the live screen using your mouse, or double-click on the Layout Device to display on the selected monitoring tab.
- 2 The camera videos added the layout will be displayed according to the predefined layout.



Registering an User Layout

Saves current screen layout and device connection status as a user layout. Click the 🛃 (Save to User Layout) button on the panel toolbar of the Wall Control tab to create user layout information.

User Layout				x
*tois	"IDIS	"IDIS	+"IDIS	
Name :	Wall#2			
Sharing :	Group			~
Group :	Group			~
Description :	Layout1			
		_	_	
		Save	Cance	əl

- Name: Enter a name for user screen format.
- **Sharing:** Select user range for the chosen screen format.
 - Public: Displayed to all users.
 - Group: Displayed to the users in the owner group.
 - Private: Displayed to the owner only.
- **Group:** Select the layout group containing the user layout.
- Description: Enter the description for the user layout.

Registering a Layout Group

- Select Settings in System menu and select the Device menu.
- On the Site panel, click on Layout, then click on the
 + button at the bottom of the Site panel on the
 left. An Add Layout Group window will appear on
 the screen.

1 ô 🖆				
Site		Name	Layout	Cameras
🖈 All Devices				
🕨 🗊 Device Group				
Layout				
Jayout Sequence				
🗇 Camera Sequence				
👧 Мар				
e Browser				
			There	
(+ - 2	-	- 0		

Add Layout G	aroup	x
Name:		
Description:		•
	OK Car	ncel

- Name: Enter a name for the layout group.
- **Description**: Enter the description for the layout group.

Registering a layout

- Select Settings in System menu and select the Device menu.
- On the Site panel, click on Layout, then click on the
 + button at the bottom of the Sites List panel on
 the right. An Add Layout window will appear on the
 screen.

초 중 🖆			
Site	Nam		Cameras
R All Devices			
🕨 📖 Device Group			
E Layout			
I Layout Sequence			
Camera Sequence			
👥 Мар			
😑 Browser			
+			

Name :		Description :		
Sharing I Public	×		Owner : admin(Administrat	ora) 🛩
Ex 2 d Unics 2 d Unics 2 mot 3 mot 4 mot 4 mot 4 mot 5 mo	Soren Format : E For	44 V		
				OK Cancel

- Name: Enter a name for the layout.
- **Sharing:** Specify the users who can see the layout being registered. The **admin** user can see all layouts.
 - Public: Shows the layout to all users.
 - **Group:** Shows the layout to a specific group of users. You can select the group from the **Owner** list.
 - **Private:** Shows the layout to the individual users selected from the **Owner** list.
- **Owner:** Allows you to show a different layout to different users.
- Site: Shows the registered devices, cameras, camera sequences and map list. A registered device or camera sequence can be searched by entering a query in Q, field.
- Screen Format: Select the layout. In Site list, select the device, camera, or camera sequence you wish to allocate and drag & drop them to the desired position in the layout screen using your mouse.
- Image: Constant of the selecting of the selected screen in the layout and pressing the delete button, you can delete the camera allocated to the selected screen from the layout.
- III (Hotspot) : By selecting a specific screen in the layout and pressing the hotspot button, you can set the selected screen as a hotspot.
- III (Event Spot) : By selecting a specific screen in the layout and pressing the event spot button, you can set the selected screen as an event spot.
- Image: (Map Event Spot) : By selecting a specific screen in the layout and pressing the map event spot button, you can set the selected screen as a map event spot screen.
- Image: Camera Sequence): By selecting a specific screen in the layout and pressing the camera sequence button, you can create a new camera sequence. The new camera sequence is allocated to the selected screen.

3 Click **OK** to finish adding a layout.

Layout Sequence

Videos from multiple cameras can be monitored sequentially using two or more predefined layouts. A layout sequence must be registered to use layout sequence function.

In the layout sequence list, select a layout sequence you wish to to use. Then, drag & drop the selected layout sequence on the live screen using your mouse. The camera videos added to the layout sequence will be displayed sequentially in each layout.

		DE Center	Namoke Administration System admin 1	Lee 1	A +#X
an linn linn f					° IO S
C. 1 # Alexa * Breche 2 # set 2 # set 6 # set 4 # setmer	"IDIS	"IDIS	"IDIS	"IDIS	"IDIS
€ Green Agarca 12 No 18	P IDIS	P IDIS	" IDIS	"IDIS	"IDIS
					" IDIS
6mt A					"IDIS
					חופ
Unites + Grea Succ					510
				_	

2 You can stop or resume a layout sequence by clicking 👩 in the toolbar at the bottom of the panel.

Example of layout sequence

CAM	CAM		M 5	CAM 2
3	4	CAM 4	CAM 5	CAM 6

Layout 1



Layout 2



Registering layout sequence

- **1** Select **Settings** in **System** menu and select the Device menu.
- 2 On the **Site** panel, click on **Layout Sequence**, then click on the 🕂 button at the bottom of the Site List panel on the right. An Add Layout Sequence window will appear on the screen.



3 If a layout for sequential monitoring is not registered, click **Add Layout**.



4 Click Add Layout and register layouts for sequential monitoring. Two or more layouts must be registered to use layout sequence.

Add Layout				×
Name :		Description :		
Sharing : Public	×		Owner: admin(Administrat	urs) 💌
ρ.	Screen Format : 🛄 Form	at 4x4 🗸		
Site Mail Devices				
▼				
► 📾 Info.Desk				
🗇 Camera Seguence				
I I	<u> </u>			
				Cancel



- Name: Enter a name for the layout sequence.
- **Sharing:** Specify the users who can see the layout sequence being registered. The **admin** user can see all layout sequences.
 - **Public:** Shows the layout sequence to all users.
 - **Group:** Shows the layout sequence to a specific group of users. You can select the group from the **Owner** list.
 - **Private:** Shows the layout sequence to the individual users selected from the Owner list.
- **Owner:** Allows you to show a different layout sequence to different users.
- Layout List: Shows a list of registered layouts. Registered layouts can be searched by typing search query in the *Q*, field.
- Selected Layout Sequence List: Shows a list of layouts registered for layout sequence.
- **Duration (sec)**: Shows the display duration for each layout. Double clicking the number will allow you to change the duration time for this specific layout. The set duration can be applied to all layouts by clicking **Apply all**.
- 5 Select a layout from the Layout List and click ≥ to add the selected layout to Selected Layout Sequence List.
- 6 Click **OK** to finish adding a layout sequence.

Camera Sequence

Videos from multiple cameras can be monitored sequentially on the same camera screen. A camera sequence must be registered to use camera sequence function.

1 In the camera sequence list, select a camera sequence you wish to use. Then, drag & drop the selected camera sequence on the live screen using your mouse. The video from cameras added to the camera sequence will be displayed on the screen sequentially.

	ICBS Contex Plannin Administration Typicm admin Line 🔬 👘 🕸						
💭 tjeten view U						1005	
sa Ø 1 ∰4 Gross + ∰ Fores Sno P ∰ Snack P ∰ Snack E land.				"IDIS		"IDIS	
Constant	"IDIS	"IDIS	"IDIS	"IDIS		"IDIS	
						P IDIS	
0mmt A 1mmt 2m 1mm 0 ♦ (mai), pta (Ne, naiwena), ≰ (mai), pta (Ne, naiwena), ≰ (mai), pta (Ne, naiwena),						" ¹ idis	
untre +						010	
				_			

2 You can stop or resume a camera sequence by clicking in the control toolbar at the bottom of the camera screen.



Example of camera sequence



CAM 5	

Camera 1

Camera 5



Registering a camera sequence

- Select Settings in System menu and select the Device menu.
- 2 On the Site panel, click on Camera Sequence, then click on the + button at the bottom of the Sites List panel on the right. An Add Camera Sequence window will appear on the screen.

1 ô 🖆			
Site	Name	Cameras	Duration
🦈 All Devices			
Device Group			
Eayout			
🗐 Layout Sequence			
Camera Sequence			
🐅 Мар			
😑 Browser			
		There is	
+ - 7	- [7		



- Name: Enter a name for the camera sequence.
- **Sharing:** Specify the users who can see the camera sequence being registered. The **admin** user can see all camera sequences.
 - **Public:** Shows the camera sequence to all users.
 - **Group:** Shows the camera sequence to a specific group of users. You can select the group from the **Owner** list.
 - **Private:** Shows the camera sequence to the individual users selected from the Owner list.
- **Owner:** Allows you to show a different camera sequence to different users.
- Device list: Shows a list of registered devices. Registered devices can be searched by typing search query in the *Q*, field.
- Selected Camera Sequence List: Shows a list of camera registered for camera sequence.
- **Duration (sec)**: Shows the duration in which video from each camera is displayed on the screen. Double clicking the number will allow you to change the duration time for this specific camera. The set duration can be applied to all cameras by clicking **Apply all**.

Select a camera from the device list and click is to add the selected camera to Selected Camera Sequence List.

3 Click **OK** to finish adding a camera sequence.

Map Monitoring

The camera videos of registered devices, events, and status of connection I/O devices can be monitored on a map.

For more details on map registration, refer to **Map Editor on page 114**.



A map must be registered to use map monitoring.

- Map monitoring supports up to 4 Live panels and Map panels.
- If a Live tab or Map tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Live** or **Map**.
- In the Map list, select a map you wish to to use. Then, drag & drop the selected layout on the live screen using your mouse.



- **2** The selected map will be displayed on the screen.
 - You can select and move a map to a desired position on the Live screen without disconnecting by selecting the map being monitored and moving it using drag & drop with your mouse.
 - Select I/O Device from the map and drag & drop the subject device to the Live screen, Play panel or Device Status Panel to view live or recorded videos from the subject device, or monitor the device's status.



Place the mouse cursor over the I/O device on the map to view the event detection and status of the I/O device. If an event has been detected on the I/O device or if the device is not operating properly, it will be indicated by the following icons.

\oslash	Disconnected	×	Not configured
0	Abnormal operations	SF-	Motion detected
	Video blind	a	Video loss
3	Museum search	sf.	Video-analytic detection
4	Trip zone		Tampering
	Alarm-in	ŧ	Alarm-out

• Up to 4 icons may be displayed at once.

• Certain event icons may not be supported depending on device's specifications and version.

- Event Detection icons will be displayed depending on the event detection settings of the device in which I/O device is connected to.
- Abnormal Operation icons will be displayed depending on the system check settings of the device in which I/O device is connected to.
- If a status color was set when registering the map, events and statuses will be displayed by the corresponding colors.
- When two or more events or status changes occur simultaneously, the colors that correspond to each event or status will be displayed one after the other.

Path sequence

When using Map monitoring, videos from multiple cameras registered to the map can be monitored sequentially on the same camera screen. A sequence route must be registered to use route sequence. For more information, refer to the **Path Sequence on page 117**.

- 1 On the map, select a sequence route you wish to to use. Then, drag & drop the selected sequence route on the live screen using your mouse.
- 2 Videos from cameras in the route sequence will be displayed sequentially on the screen for the set duration.

Camera Control

Controls the camera using the control toolbar and screen menus.

Control toolbar

Select a camera screen and place the cursor over the camera screen to bring up control toolbar. The control toolbar can be used to control the selected camera. Place the cursor over each button to view tooltips for the button. If the control toolbar is downsized, you can move the toolbar left or right by scrolling the mouse wheel.



- or (PTZ Control): If the camera supports PTZ control, the camera's PTZ can be controlled.
- **(Remote Control): Directly remote controls the** HDMI encoder image using a keyboard or mouse.
- (Self-adjusting Video Mode): Allows you to selfadjust the video mode.
- Ocolor Control): Adjust the brightness, contrast, saturation and color of the current video. Click G to reset all changes and restore the image to original settings.



- 🚺 (Image Effect): Applies image effects.
- 🕀 (Zoom): Zooms the video.
- Camera Sequence): Starts or stops layout sequence.

- (Alarm-Out On/Off): Turns on or off the alarm-out connected to camera devices. Alarmout connected devices can be configured in each camera's Edit Device setting.
- (Text-in Viewer): Brings up text-in viewer window. Turns the title bar of a camera to blue when a text-in event is detected.



Only supported when text-in event is detected.

- (Instant Playback): Activates the Instant Playback for the section with the recording information.
- (Panic Recording): Starts or stops panic recording. When panic recording is in progress, a panic recording icon will be displayed on the upper right corner of the camera screen.
- (Google Maps): This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/NVRs.
- Context (Speed Graph): This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/NVRs.
- 🚔 (Vehicle Info): This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/NVRs.

Live Screen Menu

Select a camera screen and right-click to bring up the screen menu. The screen menu can be used to control the selected camera.

Instant Playback	•
Playback History	+
Play 1 Minute Before	Ι
Misc.	•
Play Recorded Data	
Color Control	
Image Zoom	•
Image Processing	+
Alarm-Out	+
Listen	L
Talk	
NVR Listen	
NVR Talk	
Audio Broadcast	
MultiStream	×
Hotspot	
Event Spot	
Map Event Spot	
VA Overlay	×
Aspect Ratio	×
Still Image	+
Browser	
Stream Information	Tab
Device Information	+
Remove	۱.

- Fisheye Dewarping: Dewarp the fisheye camera image.
- **Instant Playback:** Activates the Instant Playback for the section with the recording information.
- **Playback History:** Saves 8 instant playback history in maximum for each camera device and plays the history.
- Play 30 Seconds/180 Seconds Before: Activates the Instant Playback of images from 30/180 seconds before.
- Misc.: Sets the Instant Playback options.

- Play Recorded Data: Displays the recorded image of the selected screen on the play tab.
- PTZ Control, Self-adjusting Video Mode, Color Control, Image Zoom, Listen, Talk, Panic Recording: Functions identically to the corresponding buttons in control toolbar.
- Camera Sequence Monitoring: Allows you to move, start, stop, pause and exit the camera sequence monitoring (supported only for sequence monitoring).
- Image Processing: Applies image effects.
- Alarm Out: Activates or deactivates alarm output.
- **Text-In Viewer**: Brings up text-in viewer window. Turns the title bar of a camera to blue when a text-in event is detected.

Only supports when text-in event is detected.

- NVR Listen/Talk: Receives audio from the NVR device or sends audio to the NVR device.
- Audio File List: Controls(play/stop) audio file included in the device (only available for devices which support audio alarm file).
- Audio Broadcast: Broadcast audio to all devices in the current Live tab.
- MultiStream: Desired stream can be selected if multi-stream mode is enabled for the live video of the device.
- Hotspot: Set the selected camera screen as hotspot screen.
- Event Spot: Set the selected camera screen as event spot screen.
- Map Event Spot: Sets the selected screen as map event spot screen.
- VA Overlay: Displays video analysis data over the monitoring video.
- Draw Motion Block: If a motion detection event occurs on the selected camera, the part of the screen where motion is detected is displayed as a red block.



Only supports network video servers.

- Aspect Ratio: Sets the aspect ratio of video output.
 - **Fit to Screen**: Resizes video to camera screen regardless of original aspect ratio.
 - Fit to Screen(Aspect ratio): Resizes video to camera screen while maintaining original aspect ratio.

- **Original Ratio**: Resizes camera screen to original aspect ratio of the video.
- Half Size (x0.5) 4 Times Bigger (x4): Displays the camera videos in the selected size based on the original size of the video.

 \checkmark

The menu is activated only when there is sufficient space to display the camera video in the selected size.

Up, down, left, and right part of the video may be cropped depending on size of camera screen. When using Zoom, Hotspot, Event Spot, Show Motion Block features, aspect ratio of camera screen does not apply and original ratio is applied.

- **Still Image**: Saves the current frame of the video on the screen as an image file in actual size.
- **Browser**: Sets the selected screen as the browser screen.
- **Stream Information:** Shows the stream information of the selected camera.
- **Device Information:** Shows the device information of the selected camera in sub-items.
- **Remove**: Terminates current connection.

PTZ Control

Click on or (PTZ Control) button in the control toolbar to bring up PTZ control toolbar. The buttons on the PTZ toolbar can be used to control PTZ. Some features may not be supported depending on the PTZ camera model.



- L (Directional control): Shows or hides (Directional control panel). Click on the arrow keys in the Directional Control Panel or drag the camera screen to control the directional movement of PTZ camera.
- 😪 (Slingshot): Controls Pan-Tilt to move the user's point to the center of the screen.

Only certain network camera models are supported.

- Image (Area Zoom): Specifying a certain area on the image to zoom in the selected area. Dragging the mouse specifies the area, and the magnification is displayed on the drag area. Refer to <u>PTZ Area Zoom /</u> <u>Area Zoom History on page 64</u> for details.
- (Area Zoom History): Displays the area zoom history. Refer to <u>PTZ Area Zoom / Area Zoom History</u> <u>on page 64</u> for details.
- 式 (PTZ Manual Control): Allows camera control by manually entering pan, tilt, zoom and focus values.
- ⊕ ⊖ (Zoom in/out): Zoom in and out of current video.
- () (Focus far/near): Adjust camera focus to far or near.
- (c) (Open/close aperture) Open or close aperture of camera lens.
- 🗟 🗹 (Set Preset/ View Preset): Set or view presets.
- [1] (Auto-focus): When the camera loses the focus after zooming in or out, click the auto-focus button to adjust autofocus.

- **1** (Focus/Lens/PTZ reset): Initializes the focus/lens/ PTZ settings according to the camera type.
- (Autorun on/off): Moves the camera to the preset position at regular intervals.
- (Advanced menu): Controls the advanced features supported by the camera. For more details on advanced features, refer to the PTZ camera's operation manual.
- X (Close): Closes PTZ mode and returns to control toolbar.

PTZ Preset Control

Sets the current camera position as a **Preset** to quickly move the camera to the preset position.

- On the camera screen, move the PTZ camera to the desired direction.

Set Pre	set			x
#	Title			
1	test1			
2				
3				
4				
5				
6				
7				
8				
9				
10				
11				
12				
13				-
	Title	_		
			Cancel	



3 Click ∑ (View Preset) on the PTZ toolbar to bring up View Preset window. Select the desired preset to move the PTZ camera to the preset position.



ePTZ Control

Controls Pan, Tilt, and Zoom function more accurately.



Control Pan, Tilt, and Zoom function. Dragging the mouse, the size of dragging indicates the speed of PTZ.

- Left button drag: Left/Right (Pan control), Up/Down (Tilt control)
- Right button drag: Zoom control

Slingshot

Controls Pan-Tilt to move the user's point to the center of the screen.



Press 🛐 (Slingshot) in the control toolbar and click any point of PTZ camera pane to move anywhere you want. Dragging the mouse zooms the selected part of the screen.

PTZ Area Zoom / Area Zoom History

Drag the mouse over the image to draw the specific area to zoom in. The area zoom history is displayed in thumbnail formats.



This feature is only supported with some models of camera.

Click the 🔄 (Area Zoom) button on the control toolbar, and drag the mouse over the image to zoom in the selected area.





Clicking the 💽 (Area Zoom History) button displays previous area zoom history in a thumbnail list as the following image. Click a thumbnail to locate the camera to the selected position.



Hovering the mouse over each item displays the zoom magnification value on the thumbnail.

- **Sort by distance:** Sorts the items in an ascending order by zoom magnification value. Disable to sort by latest.
- **Close after goto item:** Closes the area zoom history window after item selection and camera relocation.
- Delete All: Deletes all of items.

PTZ Manual Control

Click the 💐 (PTZ Manual Control) button on the control toolbar displays the following window. The user can manually enter pan, tilt, zoom, focus values to control the camera. Each specific position can be saved in the list and selected to move the camera position.

PTZ Manua	l Control -	11,004	DC 1601	BH00. *	1	= = X
Pan	161.92			ilt 68.3	33	Go To
Zoom	1.64		Focu	ıs 1		
No Nam	9	Pan	Tilt	Zoom	Focus	Get Position
		161.92 179.93	68.33 68.33	1.64 2.64	0.2857	Go To
						Edit
						2 / 128

Absolute Position

- 🖸 (Refresh): Displays the camera's current pan, tilt, zoom and focus values.
- **Go To:** Moves the camera to the position of entered pan, tilt, zoom and focus values.
- **Get Position:** Adds the camera's current pan, tilt, zoom, focus values as one fixed position to the list.
- **Go To:** Moves the camera to the selected position from the list.
- **Edit:** Edits the name or each pan, tilt, zoom, focus value of the selected position from the list.

PTZ AI Tracking

Select PTZ AI Tracking and configure PTZ AI Tracking settings. With PTZ AI Tracking event enabled, an event occurs and tracks the moving object(or designated object) when motion is detected in the video.



- Object Selection Mode: Selects to track objects of supported types by specifying them.
- **Tracking Stop:** Stops tracking the selected object in **Object Selection Mode**.
- Auto Tracking On/Off: If movement is detected in the video, the moving object is tracked.
- Run Auto Tracking Now: Turns on Auto Tracking and starts tracking immediately.

Remote Control

For the live image with the is icon on the OSD, press is (Remote Control) in the control toolbar to bring up the Remote Control toolbar, and to check the status through the OSD and use the control buttons.



- Imput Device Status): Displays the input device in action.
- 📕 (Disable Remote Control): Disables the remote control.
- Initialize Mouse Cursor Position): Move the mouse cursor to the top left position.

Fisheye Dewarping

Press
 (Fisheye Dewarping) in the control toolbar to bring up the fisheye dewarping toolbar. The buttons on the fisheye dewarp toolbar can be used to dewarp fisheye image.



The mount type set in the device is a default.



- Mount Type): Choose a position that the camera is mounted. The available Screen Type changes depending on this setting.
- 🛐 (Image Ratio): Select the proper image aspect ratio.
- Image: Clayout): Select the layout, Main View and Main + 1~7 panes mode.
- 🥅 (Panoramic): Select the panoramic mode.
- (Selection Mode): Drag and drop the area in the main view screen.
- Spot Mode): Move and select the area with the dewarp finder in the main view screen.
- (Drag and Drop): Move and copy the main view and camera pane.
- Image: Main PIP): Shows or hides PIP screen.



PIP stands for Picture in Picture, and it refers to the small screen displayed within the bigger screen.

- **L** (ePTZ): Control Pan, Tilt, and Zoom function. Dragging the mouse, the size of dragging indicates the speed of PTZ.
 - **Left button drag:** Left/Right (Pan control), Up/ Down (Tilt control)
 - Right button drag: Zoom control
- Auto Pan): Set to pan the camera automatically.
 +,- for direction and numbers for speed.
- 🗟 🗹 (Load/Save Preset): Load the saved preset of fisheye video control and save the current fisheye video control as preset.
- G (Display Source Image): Cancel all changes and restore image to original.

Smart UX Quick Control

Combine the keyboard and mouse in the video, and you can quickly control video enlargement, dewarping, and PTZ without changing the mode of a specific function.

Quick Zoom

- Ctrl + Mouse left button drag (Original Image): Zoom in the area selected by the mouse drag.
- Ctrl + Mouse left button drag: Moves the zoomed in image to the position where the mouse drag moves.
- Ctrl + Mouse wheel click: Exits the zoom image view and returns to the original image.
- Ctrl + Mouse wheel scroll: Zoom control
- Quick Dewarping
 - Ctrl + Mouse left button drag (Original Image): Dewarps the area selected by the mouse drag.
 - Ctrl + Mouse left button drag: Pan/Tilt control in the mouse drag directions.
 - Ctrl + Mouse wheel click: Exits the dewarping image and returns to the original image.
 - Ctrl + Mouse wheel scroll: Zoom control
 - Ctrl + Mouse right button drag: Zoom control

Quick PTZ

- Ctrl + Mouse left button drag: Pan/Tilt control in the mouse drag directions.
- Ctrl + Mouse wheel scroll: Zoom control
- Ctrl + Mouse right button drag: Zoom control
- Ctrl + Shift + Mouse left click/drag: Move the image to the position where you click becomes the center, or move the image following the mouse drag.

Instant Playback

- After selecting a pane, click I: Easy Play.
- After selecting a pane, Page Up/Down: Moves to the previous/next playback section.
- Wheel scroll on the or during the instant playback: Jog play is performed according to the direction of wheel scroll input.
- (Ctrl +) J: Decrease the playback speed.
- (Ctrl +) K: Reset the playback speed.
- (Ctrl +) L: Increase the playback speed.
- (Ctrl +) .: Executes high-speed reverse playback.
- (Ctrl +) ,: Executes high-speed playback.

Recorded video playback control

By combining the keyboard and mouse in the recorded video, you can quickly control the playback of the recorded video without switching the mode of a specific function.

- Mouse
 - It moves to the previous/netx video by the specified time interval when wheel scroll is input in the previous/next frame widget.
 - The jog function works when wheel scroll is input from the play button.
 - Playback is controlled in the shuttle lock state when wheel scroll is input in the shuttle widget.
 - Playback stops when you click the right mouse button on the shuttle widget.
 - The shtuule lock is released and playback stops when you click the middle mouse button on the shuttle widget.
 - The recording section moves left/right when pressing Shift + wheel scroll in the timetable widget.
 - The recording section is enlarged/reduced when pressing Ctrl + wheel scroll in the timetable widget.
- Hotkey
 - Ctrl + Space: Controls play/stop.
 - Ctrl + Shift + Space: Controls play/stop of all cameras included in the tab.
 - Ctrl + T: The time shift panel pops up.
 - Ctrl + Home: Moves to the beginning of the video.
 - Ctrl + End: Moves to the end of the video.
 - Ctrl + J: Decrease the playback speed.
 - Ctrl + K: Reset the playback speed.
 - Ctrl + L: Increase the playback speed.
 - Ctrl + ,: Executes high-speed playback.
 - Ctrl + .: Executes high-speed reverse playback.
 - Ctrl + left/right keyboard button: Moves to the previous/next frame.
 - Shift + left/right keyboard button: Moves to the previous/next video in 1 minute increments.
 - Alt + left/right keyboard button: Moves to the previous/next video in 10-minute increments.

Self-adjusting Video Mode

Press I (Self-adjusting Video Mode) in the control toolbar to set or preset the video mode for each daytime/nighttime.

Self-adjusting Vi	ideo Mode			×
Daytime 🔺				
Natural		-		
O Vivid	Contrast	•		
O De-Noise	Colors	—		
OCustom	Brightness	-		
Nighttime				
Natural	Sharpness	-		
O Vivid	Contrast	•		
O De-Noise	Colors	•		
OCustom	Brightness	-		

- The preset includes Natural, Vivid and De-Noise.
- The Custom allows setup for each value. The values include Sharpness, Contrast, Colors and Brightness.
- When this feature is activated, the setup window is overlaid, and the image is displayed in the 1x1 format.

Zoom In

Press \oplus (Zoom in) in the control toolbar to zoom in on the current video.



- (Slider): Adjust magnification.
 Magnification can also be adjusted using the mouse scroll wheel.
- Image: Actual Size Zoom): Enters Actual Size Zoom mode. In Actual Size Zoom mode, the video is zoomed in based on actual size of the video regardless of the size of camera screen or magnification.
- (Zoom Finder): Shows or hides PIP screen. The square of PIP screen displays the zoomed area.

PIP sma

PIP stands for Picture in Picture, and it refers to the small screen displayed within the bigger screen.

Image effect

Click on 🚺 (Image effect) on the control toolbar to bring up image effect control toolbar.

- · · 🍐 🔺 🎩 🔛 🗛 💪 · ×

- (Blur): Softens the image.
- \triangle (Sharpen): Sharpens the image.
- (High-Boost): Enhance image clarity by increasing brightness and sharpness.
- Mil (Histogram Equalization) : Makes image more natural by adjusting brightness.
- A (Edge Detection): Detect outline in the image.
- G (Revert): Cancel all changes and restore image to original.

These settings are only applicable to images of IDIS Center program and do not apply to images of devices.

Instant Playback

Press Instant (Instant Playback) on the control toolbar and select a playback time on the popup menu to activate Instant Playback for the section with the recording information.





Hovering the mouse cursor over the screen allows you to use Exit, Bookmark, Play, and Forward/Backward buttons.

Using the left/right arrow buttons and PageUp/ PageDown buttons allows moving the playback point. Select reverse playback and slow playback from the context menu of the image.

- Hotkey (Ctrl + Hotkey can also be used.)
 - J/K/L: Decrease / reset / increase the playback speed.
 - ,: Executes high-speed playback.
 - .: Executes high-speed reverse playback.

Part 5 - Operation



The status of playback appears on the camera title bar. Clicking the inverted triangle image beneath the camera title bar displays a thumbnail image. When the thumbnail image is enabled, hovering the mouse cursor on the camera title bar displays the image of the corresponding site.

Clicking a specific point on the camera title bar moves to the corresponding site.

Video Analytics

Select a monitoring video and click the right mouse button to see the display menu. Select **VA Overlay** from the display menu to activate the menu according to the current video analysis type.

People Counting



Selecting **People Counting** displays real-time In/Out and occupancy information over the selected video. Select **Count Adjust** to change the In/Out information displayed over the image.

If the occupancy exceeds the set limit, check the limit occupancy event.

Queue Management



Selecting **Queue Management** displays queue information (the number of people, waiting time) for each area over the selected video.

In the case of **Queue Management**, checking Exceed People Limit and Exceed Time Limit events is available.

Heat Map



Selecting a **Heat Map** live icon displays a heat map image over the selected video.

Select options of Heat Map live to change a heat map image setting (image spectrum color, transparency, image interpolation option).

Queue monitoring / swarm detection / social

distance violation / mask rule violation



70

Selecting **queue monitoring / swarm detection / social distance violation / mask rule violation** displays the set image analysis area.

Up to 5 areas are displayed for queue monitoring. If the set limit is exceeded, an event is raised and the area of the offending object is highlighted.

Pixel Counter

Displays the pixel information in the selected area in the image. The number of pixels of the object's size as the distance can be calculated with the constant-sized object.

It provides quantitative information about object recognition by specifying the area of a specific type of object and measuring the density of the pixel (number of pixels per unit length). Go to **View > Pixel Counter**.





It is displayed a notification pop-up as shown below running the pixel counter. It provides how to use the pixel counter and quick control shortcuts.





The information provided by the pixel counter is shown below.



- · Width and height pixels
- · Total pixels within the area
- The pixel coordinates of the upper left corner of the area
- Area width and height ratio to pane (UV coordinates)
- · Pane-to-area width ratio
- UV coordinates of the upper left of the area

UV coordinates represent the minimum coordinate as 0 and the maximum coordinate as 1. The upper left is represented by (0, 0), and the lower right is represented by (1, 1).

Live Network Monitor

Selecting **Live Network Monitor** from the menu displays real-time bandwidth (network traffic) for each device. 16 devices are supported in maximum, and select a legend to check the specific device only.



Text-In Viewer

Shows text-in data live.

Click ① (Text-In Viewer) in the Control Toolbar to bring up **Text-In Viewer** window.

Turns the title bar of a camera to blue when a text-in event is detected.

CAM1 Text-In Vie	wer				• ×
Mint Gum		0,75	9 (s)	6,75	-
Candy		0,25		1,25	_
Fanta		2,20	6(3)	13,20	_
Sprite		2,00		4,00	
			total :	27,90	
Thank you~~					
Item	Un	it price	Qty	amount	
Hotdog		3,50	6(s)	21,00	
Hamburger		4,25		38,25	_
Chocolate				7,00	_
Mint Gum		0,75		1,50	_
Sprite		2,00		14,00	_
Chocolate				7,00	_
Pepsi		1,95	5 (s) I	9,75	
Thank you~~			total :	98,50	

Click on the title bar of the **Text-In Viewer** window to bring up text-in popup menu.

All Attach	
Save As	
Time Range	۱.

- All Attach: Gathers Text-in Viewer windows into one panel.
- Save As...: Saves text-in data as a text file(.txt).

• **Time Range**: Set the duration in which text-in data is displayed when text-in event is detected. Text-in data can be checked in the text-in viewer window during the set duration after text-in event has occurred.



Only supported when text-in event is detected.

Google Maps

Click 🕜 (Google Maps) on the Control Toolbar to load the Google Maps panel as a popup.



This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/ NVRs.



If the video contains GPS info, the vehicle's location (\heartsuit) and direction of travel (\clubsuit) are shown on the map. "Map" and "Satellite" (Terrain On/Off) are Google Maps' display modes.



When checking the vehicle's location and direction of travel, the vehicle's speed is shown on the Speed Graph panel.
Speed Graph

Click 🖂 (Speed Graph) on the Control Toolbar to load the Speed Graph panel as a popup.



This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/ NVRs.

<no name=""></no>			:	x
unit : Mile/h	GPS (GMT+0)	: 2005-03	8-31 09:5	0:51
	Lat: 4 Lon:	47° 29' 12 19° 04' 51	.6764" N .9342" E	80
				60
				40
				20
2	1 1	0	0	-0
18:19:30	18:19:35	1	8:19:43	Č.

If the video contains GPS data, the vehicle's speed is shown on the Speed Graph. The speed is shown in the middle of the graph. The red, vertical line in the middle indicates the vehicle's current location.

Right-click on the Speed Graph panel to configure graph type, graph unit, GPS info display, and HD output settings.



When checking the vehicle's speed, the vehicle's location and direction of travel are shown on the Google Maps panel.



Click 🚘 (Vehicle Info) on the Control Toolbar to load the Vehicle Info panel as a popup.



This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/ NVRs.

<no name=""></no>		x
Device	📼 <no name=""></no>	
Time		

Vehicle information is shown if contained in the video file.

Map Control

Controls the map using the control toolbar and screen menus.

Control toolbar

Select a map and place the cursor over the map to bring up control toolbar. The control toolbar can be used to control the selected map. Place the cursor over each button to view tooltips for the button.



- (Previous Map, Next Map): Go to previous or next map after going to another map by a link or connecting to another map by selecting a map in the map list and dragging & dropping to the current map screen.
- AF (Auto Focusing): Zooms in on the zone where the device is located on the map when an event occurs. For more details on auto focusing settings, refer to <u>Map on page 45</u>.
 - When events occur simultaneously on multiple devices, the canvas is expanded so that all the devices are displayed. If events are detected sequentially in different devices, the auto-focus will switch to latter event after the set duration has passed.
- *G* (Focusing Event): Designate an event to autofocus on.
- 🙀 (Actual size): Shows the map in actual size of canvas.
- (Zoom Finder): Shows or hides PIP screen. The square of PIP screen displays the zoomed area. If **Auto** is selected, PIP screen is only displayed when canvas 74 is zoomed in.

• ⊕ (Zoom slider): Changes magnification of the canvas.

Example of magnification finder settings

If set as Off;





Event Detected



Auto Focusing



• If set as Auto or On;

Map Monitoring



t





Auto Focusing



Map screen menu

Select a map screen and right-click to bring up the screen menu. The screen menu can be used to control the selected map.

Previous
Next
List
Reload
Auto Focusing
Focusing Event
Focusing Duration
Actual Size (x1)
Zoom Finder
Zoom In
Save Still Image

- Previous, Next, Auto Focusing, Actual Size (x1), Zoom Finder, Zoom In: Functions identically to the corresponding buttons in control toolbar. For more details, refer to <u>Control toolbar on page 60</u>.
- List: Shows the list of maps connected previously or to connect to next. Select a map on the list to go to the selected map.
- **Reload**: Refreshes connection to the current map.
- Focusing Event, Focusing Duration: Set focus events and focus duration for auto-focus feature.
- Save Still Image: Saves the current image on the screen as an image file at its original size.
- Remove: Terminates current connection.

Live Popup

When an event is detected during map monitoring, a live screen is displayed as a popup according to the settings in **Map Editor**.



Live popup list displays the list of current popup screens on IDIS Center .

Popup screen



Select a screen and place the cursor over the screen to bring up control toolbar. The control toolbar can be used to control the camera. Place the cursor over each button to view tooltips for the button.

Right-click on the pop-up screen to bring up popup screen menu. The menu can be used to change popup screen settings or control the camera. Menus related to camera control have identical features as Live menu. For more information, refer to the **Live Screen Menu on page 61**.

Live popup list

Live Popup		-
Camera	Device	
🔤 CAM6	Info.Desk	
🛋 CAM5	Info.Desk	
≡l CAM4	Info.Desk	
■I CAM3	Info.Desk	

Click on the arrow button at the upper right corner to bring up live popup menu. The menu can be used to change popup screen settings.

Layout	►
Monitor	►
Ignore Live Popup Disable Time Out	•
Remove All	

- Layout: Changes layout of popup screen. Select Use Single Live Popup to display a single popup on the screen.
- **Monitor**: When using dual monitors, the monitor for displaying popup screen can be selected.
- Ignore Live Popup: When a duration is entered, live popup feature is suspended for the duration entered regardless of Live Popup Duration entered in event activities in Map Editor.
- **Disable Time Out**: Closes popup screen manually regardless of the defined popup screen duration.
- Remove All: Removes the entire list.

Browser

It's possible to launch registered browsers. It must first be registered to the administration service to launch a browser. For more details on browser registration, refer to the following section.

In the Browser list, select a browser you wish to launch. Then, drag & drop the selected browser on the live screen using your mouse. This launches the selected browser.



Browser Registration

- Select Settings in the System menu and select the Device menu.
- On the Site panel, click on Browser, then click on the + button at the bottom of the Site List panel on the right. Add Browser window will be shown.

5	IDIS Center Setup					
		186			Q.	
ľ	Device	Ste	Name		Address	
	Liser	Al Devices				
		Device Group				
		I Layout Sequence				
	System	Carrier a Sequence				
	Screen Format	Map				
	Screen Display					
	Screen Menu					
	Video Analitica					
	Report					
	Instant Event					
	Network					
	Playback					
		+ - 17	+ - 27			
	Always On Top					
8	Always On Top					OK
	A July Descuses				~	oĸ
,	Add Browser			-	x	
	Add Browser				x	OK
	Add Browser URL Setup				×	ox
•	Add Browser URL Setup Name				×	ox
	Add Browser URL Setup Name :				×	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL :		,		×	OK
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL :				×	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL :				×	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup				×	ox
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup				×	OK
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL s Name : URL : Browser Setup Sharing :	I Public	,	Select	X	ox
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :	Public	re) v	Select	X	ox
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :] Public admin(Administrato	vrs) v	Select	Target	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :	Public admin (Administrator	ors)	Select	Target	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :	I Public admin (Administrato	ors)	Select	Target	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :	Public admin(Administrato Fit to Pane Cable Popup	ors) 🗸	Select	Target	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :	Public admin(Administrato Fit to Pane ✓ Enable Popup Popup All New U	ors) v	Select	Target	
	Add Browser URL Setup Name : URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :	Public admin (Administrato Fit to Pane C Enable Popup Popup All New V	ors)	Select	Target	
	Add Browser URL Setup URL Setup URL : Browser Setup Sharing : Owner :	I Public admin(Administrato Fit to Pane Cable Popup Popup All New V	ors) 🗸	Select	Target	

- **URL Setup**: Enter the name and address of a URL (Uniform Resource Locator).
- Fit to Pane: Adjusts the web page to fit the size of the browser screen.

- Enable Popup: Allows popup pages.
- **Popup All New Window**: Displays the web page's popup screens as separate screens.

Intercom

By connecting the intercom device, you can monitor video and make calls, and control the opening and closing of doors.

Setting Call Request Receiving

When the intercom call is received, when an event is detected, a pop-up screen appears according to the **Instant Event - Intercom - Call Request Receiving**.



- Not Use: Do not specify the setting when a call request is received.
- Notification: Display the intercom notification popup.
- Intercom Popup: Display the intercom popup.

Intercom Notification Popup

A pop-up screen is displayed when a call request is received. The device name, site (group) name, and call request time are displayed.



- **Click answer call button:** End notification popup and display the intercom call popup.
- Clicking the left mouse button on the reject call button: End the intercom notification popup.
- Middle/Right Mouse Click on Reject Call Button: Reject the call request without exiting the intercom notification popup.



- In the following cases, the pop-up automatic shutdown function operates.
 - When a call request timeout occurs while receiving a call request
 - 10 seconds after receiving a call request cancellation while receiving a call request
 - 1 minute after receiving end of call request due to preemption of VOIP call
- If the auto-shutdown count has started, clicking the pop-up will cancel the count.

Intercom Missed Call Request Notification Popup

A pop-up is displayed per device upon receipt of a missed call request event. The device name, site (group) name, and call request time are displayed.

Intercom	Intercom Missed Call Request ×				
3 mi	3 missed call requests				
		intercom_test CALL 콜 intercom_test PM 02:35:39 2023, May 08			
No	Request Ti	me			
1	2023, May	08 PM 02:35:24			
2	2023, May	08 PM 02:35:01			

- Click the recorded video play button (including the play button in the list): Plays the recorded video of the missed call request time.
- Drag the recorded video playback button/playlist item and drop it on the camera pane: Plays the recorded video at the time of the missed call request.
- Click the Normal/Extended mode switch button: If there are multiple missed call request records, you can switch the mode and view the missed call request list.

Intercom Call Popup

You can run the pop-up of forward call mode through the **Call** button on the control toolbar of the intercom camera pane connected to the Monitoring tab or the **Call** item in the context menu.

<Before Call>



<Calling>



1 Device name: Shows the device's name.

2 Site/Group name: Shows the name of the site or group.

3 Volume control: Controls the system volume and the mute of the audio input/output device.

Unlock Door button: Click and hold to unlock the connected door.

6 Reject button

- Click left mouse button: End the call and exit the pop-up.
- Click right/middle mouse button: Stop the call.

6 Call button: Respond to the intercom call request or request a call.

Calling time: During a call, the elapsed call time is displayed.

8 Close button

- Click left mouse button: End the call and exit the pop-up.
- Click right/middle mouse button: Stop the call.
 - \checkmark
- In the following cases, the pop-up automatic shutdown function operates.
 - 10 seconds after the call request timeout while receiving a call request
 - 10 seconds after receiving a call request cancellation while receiving a call request
 - 1 minute after receiving end of call request due to preemption of VOIP call
 - If you do not click the OK button in the timeout dialog box displayed every 5 minutes when intercom call function is occupied, after 10 seconds
- If the auto-shutdown count has started, clicking the pop-up will cancel the count.
- End/Reject button: Ends or rejects the intercom call and closes the pop-up. (The pop-up does not close when clicking the right/ middle mouse button.)
- Unlock Door button: Click and hold to unlock the connected door.

Recorded Video Playback

Recorded videos can be search and played.

 Playback of videos recorded on the device and IDIS Center System are supported on up to 4 Play panels. If a Play tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Play**.



- 2 In the panel tabs, click the **Play** tab.
- In the Site list, select a site you wish to connect to. Then, drag & drop the selected site on the playback screen using your mouse.
- 4 The recorded video of the each camera will be displayed on the screen.



- You can select and move a camera playback to a desired position on the Play screen without pausing playback by selecting the camera being played and moving it using drag & drop with your mouse.
- If a layout is registered, you can select a desired layout from the Layout list and drag & drop on the Play screen to play videos using the selected layout.
- Monitoring or playing 2 or more camera videos on a PC with a low specification may cause the performance of IDIS Center system to drop.

5 Play recorded videos using Panel Toolbar, Timetable, Control Toolbar and Screen Menu.

Panel Toolbar

Video recording can be played and searched using the toolbar at the bottom of the panel.

Toolbar may vary depending on the model and version of the devices connected. Some features may not be supported.

📮 Q 🚍 🚺 🖃 📔 🕨) • 6 • •	III III III III III III III III III II	+
	or		
🚺 Q 🚍 🚺 🗐 📑	× 1.0	49 64 🔺	M • •

- 🔼 / 💽 (Event Search/Time-lapse Search): Switch search modes between Event Search and Time-lapse Search.
- Q (Search Filter): Sets search conditions for event search. For more information on search condition, refer to the devices's operation manual.
- 🔳 (Calendar): Search videos from specific dates. When a date is selected, recorded data of the selected dates are displayed on the timetable. Dates that have video recordings are activated.
- 👩 (Move To): Search videos from a specific time.
 - **Go To**: When the time setting window appears, enter the desired time of the video recording to go to the entered time. Selecting **Load Adjacent Frame** skips to the nearest time in the video recording if there are no video recordings for the desired time.
 - Move First: Go to the first video among the recording data on the timetable.
 - Move Last: Go to the last video among the recording data on the timetable.
- 🔲 (Additional Menu): Show menu.
 - Data Source: Selects the data source to be searched.

Search on Local	Search video recordings in the primary storage device of DVR.
Search on Archive	Search video recordings in the backup storage device of DVR.
	Search video recordings in the storage device that was used in other DVR.
Search on Other	External Storage Search may not be supported depending on DVR's specifications and version.

- Overwrite Protection: Checks the recorded video with overwrite protection in the device.
- Add Bookmark: Bookmarks the recorded video.
- **Remote Site Panel:** Shows or hides a site list in the floating panel or full screen. Not every panel supports this function.
- Text-In Panel: Shows the Text-In panel.
- **Select Segment**: If more than one video exists in the same timeframe due to time overlap caused by changing the time of the DVR, a desired segment can be selected.



Only supports DVR that provides a hourly timetable.

- E (Export Video File): Save video recording as a proprietary viewer file(.exe) or an AVI file(.avi).
 - Save Still Image: Saves the current frame of the video on the screen as a image file in actual size.
 - Export Image/Print Image: Save or print current image on the screen.
 - Export Panorama Screen: Save the image on the screen of all panels.
- [7] (Bookmark): Allows you to bookmark the selected recorded video, play or remove the added bookmark.

- 💽 (Event on Play): If an event recording exists during a video recording playback, a list of events are shown. Doubleclick on the event on the Event List to play the event recording.
- 🛛 (Thumbnail Search): Shows still images of videos recorded during event and pre-event in the Play panel.
- (Text-In Panel): Displays thte Text-In panel. The Text-In panel shows the text-in data of the devices currently connected to the IDIS Center. If a camera is associated with the text-in device and the video of the associated camera is displayed on the current Play screen, the text-in data is displayed on the video on the camera screen, too. You can change the length of time that the text-in data is displayed by using the **Live Text-In Time Range** setting. For more details about the **Live Text-In Time Range** setting, refer to **Instant Event on page 42**.
- (Step Playback): Skips to previous or next video by frame or time. Skip increments can be adjusted by pressing the arrow between and .
- 🛃 / 🕞 (Fast Backward/Fast Forward): Plays video recording in high-speed in reverse or normally.
- (Stop/Play): Stops or plays recorded video of the selected device.
- [Jog shuttle): Adjusts the playback method and speed. Jog shuttle's vertical indicator indicates the current playback direction and speed. Vertical indicator placement to the right of the center means the video is being played back in the forward direction. Placement to the left means the opposite. Farther away the vertical indicator from the center, faster the playback speed. Click and drag the vertical indicator to adjust the playback speed. Releasing the mouse button returns the vertical indicator to the center and stops video playback. Clicking the © (Lock) button and dragging the vertical indicator fixates the vertical indicator in the new position.
- [Jog shuttle): Adjust the playback speed. Vertical indicators on the job shuttle indicates the current playback speed.
- [I] / [I] (Play on Tab/Pause on Tab): Plays or pauses playing recorded video of all devices displayed on the current screen.
- 🚯 (Save to User Layout): Saves current screen layout.
- If the selected by clicking to button. You can switch to previous or next camera group by clicking or .

Timetable

In Time-lapse Search Mode, timetable at the bottom of the screen shows recording information of each camera. When the \blacktriangle at the upper right corner of the timetable is clicked, recording information of all cameras on the screen are shown. If the \blacksquare is clicked, only the recording information of cameras selected in the Play screen are shown.

2013-04-05							2	013-04-05(Fn)							-
03:(1):00	01	02	03	04	05	06	07	2 08	09	10	11	12	13	14	
				-											
CAM1															
CAM2															
CAM3 3								4							
Grand S				-											
CAM4															-

 \checkmark

Timetable may vary depending on the model of the connected device.

0	Date/time of video playing	Shows time and date of current playback on the timetable. Click the left mouse button and open the time setting window.
0	Recording Time	Shows the date and timeframe of the video recording. To move to the previous or following date and time, click anywhere and drag left or right, or move the mouse wheel while holding down the Shift key on the keyboard. Timeframe can be magnified by moving the scroll wheel while holding down the Ctrl key on the keyboard.

3	Camera Title	Shows the camera's title.			
		Shows the recording information in minutes or hours.			
		Second, Minut some DVR mod	e interval timetable (Applies to all devices, with exception of els)		
		 Red vertical timetable. Cli selected time 	indicator : Shows time and date of current playback on the ck on a desired time, and the first video recording of the is played.		
		- Yellow separator : Separates segment where time overlap has occurred. In this case, the data shown on the right-hand side of the timetable is newer data. Click the ((calendar) on the Play panel to go to a desired segment.			
		- Bar color: Shows the recording mode.			
		Blue	Time Lapse Recording		
		Purple	Event Recording		
4	Recorded data	Yellow	Pre-Event Recording		
		Red	Panic record		
		Green	Faulty recording due to a temporary disruption in device connection.		
		 Moves the recorded image by 1 second~1 minute according to the timetable magnification. 			
		・ Hour interval t	imetable (Applies certain DVR models)		
		- Yellow bar: Shows time and date of current playback on the timetable.			
		 Fink bar/Gray bar: Shows time and date of current playback on the timetable. Pink bar/Gray bar: If time overlap has occurred, the video segment currently shown on the screen is indicated by a pink bar and the video segment not shown on the screen is indicated by a gray bar. Video segment indicated by a gray bar cannot be played. To change the segment to play on the screen, click (Other Menu) in Play panel. 			

If the clock of the IDIS Center system or device is changed to a point in the past, overlapping recordings may be produced, which is where more than one recording exists at the same point in time. In this case, overlapped recordings have to be played as separate segments.



For example, making a recording from 1 o'clock to 5 o'clock, changing the system's clock at 5 o'clock to 3 o'clock, and then continuing to record until 6 o'clock produces two recordings that overlap between 3 o'clock and 5 o'clock. This results in two segments for the period between 3 and 5.

Event list

In Event Search Mode, event list is displayed at the bottom of the screen. When searching an SD (SDHC) memory card, only the events that occurred while SD (SDHC) memory card recording feature is enabled can be searched.



If there is an event recording, double-click on the event on the event list to play the event recording. To see the following matches, click • at the upper right corner of the event list. Click • , set the time, and select the event to go to the previous recorded data as the time you set.

Control toolbar

Select a camera screen and place the cursor over the camera screen to bring up control toolbar. Place the cursor over each button to view tooltips for the button.



- • (Fisheye Dewarping): Dewarp the fisheye camera image.
- 4 (Object/Motion Search): Object or motion changes can be searched in the video recordings of devices or panic recordings of IDIS Center system.
- 🕀 (Zoom): Magnifies the current video.
- (Color Control) : Adjust the brightness, contrast, saturation and color of the current video. Click to cancel all changes and restore image to original.

 \checkmark

These settings are only applicable to images of IDIS Center program and do not apply to images of devices.

- 🚺 (Image Effect): Applies image effects.
- (Audio playback): If audio is recorded, the recorded audio is played with the video upon playback.



Only supports 1x1 layout.

- (Google Maps): This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/NVRs.
- 🖂 (Speed Graph): This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/NVRs.

Play screen menu

Select a camera screen and right-click to bring up the screen menu.

	Fisheye Dewarping		
	Image Zoom	+	
	Image Processing	•	
	Motion/Object Search		
~	Draw Video Analysis		
	Aspect Ratio	×	
	Still Image	+	
	Save Text-In Report		
	Stream Information	Tab	
	Thumbnail Search		
	Remove	+	

- **Fisheye Dewarping:** Dewarp the fisheye camera image.
- **Image Zoom**: Functions identically clicking to the corresponding buttons in control toolbar.
- Image Processing: Applies image effects.
- Motion/Object Search: Object or motion changes can be searched in the video recordings of devices or panic recordings of IDIS Center system.
- VA Overlay: Displays video analysis data over the monitoring video.
- Aspect Ratio: Sets the aspect ratio of video output.
 - Fit to Screen: Resizes video to camera screen regardless of original aspect ratio.
 - **Fit to Screen(Aspect ratio)**: Resizes video to camera screen while maintaining original aspect ratio.



Up, down, left, and right parts of the video may be cropped depending on size of camera screen. When using Image Zoom, aspect ratio of camera screen does not apply and **Original Ratio** is applied.

- **Original Ratio**: Resizes camera screen to original aspect ratio of the video.

- Half Size (x0.5) - 4 Times Bigger (x4): Displays the camera videos in the selected size based on the original size of the video.



The menu is activated only when there is sufficient space to display the camera video in the selected size.

- **Still Image**: Saves the current frame of the video on the screen as an image file in actual size.
- Save Text-In Report: Saves the text-in information of the video as the report.
- **Stream Information:** Shows the stream information of the selected camera.
- Thumbnail Search: Shows still images of videos recorded during event and pre-event in the Play panel.
- Remove: Terminates connection.

Bookmark

allows you to bookmark the selected recorded video.

Clicking the 📔 (Bookmark) button on the panel toolbar



Add Bookmark

- No.
 Name
 Recorded Time

 4
 Bookmark 1
 2013-11-12
 18:16:19

 Image: Second Sec
- 1 Click the 💦 (Add Bookmark) button.
- 2 Enter the bookmark name and description. Clicking the Add button bookmark the recorded video.

Clicking a bookmark from the bookmark list displays the bookmark information at the bottom. Clicking the [a] (Play Recorded Data) button displays the bookmarked video on the Play screen. Clicking the [a] (Remove Bookmark) button deletes the bookmark.

Thumbnail Search



When 🖾 (Thumbnail Search) is clicked in the Panel Toolbar, still images of videos recorded which belong to the search filters are shown in the Play panel.

Recording information of the selected freeze-frame is displayed on the timetable. When user clicks anywhere on the recorded data on the time table, a freeze-frame image of the selected time is shown. Use arrow buttons or a mouse wheel scroll to move to previous/next still images.

Placing the mouse cursor over the freeze-frame brings up a popup viewer screen above the freeze-frame. In the timelapse mode, click on the selected image again to decrease the time interval of thumbnails. When the interval is 1 second, a popup menu is displayed to select the time interval.



• Use Popup Viewer: Supports popup viewer screen.

Filter Settings

Select the 🛃 (Filter Settings) button to configure search filters. Filters include event search, timelapse search and meta filtering search.



 Event Search: Select more than one event to display the recorded image of the time when the event occurred.



 TimeLapse Search: Displays the images according to the set time interval (4 Hours, 1 Hour, 10 Min, 1 Min, 30 Sec, 10 Sec, 1 Sec). When Use KeyFrame Mode is selected, only keyframe images are listed.

Thumbnail Search -								x			
		Human		Disable				Disable			
None											
None											
None											
None											
		Search Quanti	ty	12 Hours					Ignoring Interval	2 Sec	
									Search	Close	

 Meta Filtering Search: Displays meta data images which include data based on certain conditions. Conditions include object type, accuracy, amount, color and direction, and these conditions can be combined by AND or OR for search.

Motion/Object Search

Clicking the 4/2 (Motion/Object Search) on the control toolbar brings up motion/object search panel at the bottom.

Object or motion changes can be searched in the video recordings of devices or panic recordings of IDIS Center system.



- Craw Search Zone): The area of the camera screen for detecting object or motion changes can be set by dragging the mouse.
- (Erase Search Zone): Deletes the search area on the camera screen by dragging the mouse.
- Set Ref. Image): Sets current image in the camera screen as a reference image for detecting object changes.
- View Ref . Image): Shows or hides reference image as PIP screen.

Setting and viewing reference images only apply to object searches.

Find Method	Motion Search	⊻ 8	Event	Site	Device	Date/Time
Sensitivity		<u> </u>				
Num of diff. block	+	10				
Find Method	Object Search	⊻ ≈	Event			Date/Time
Sensitivity		 2				
Diff. % to ref. image		- 50				
	+	- 5				

- Find Method: Choose a scan method.
 - **Motion Search**: Compares two consecutive video recordings and detects the recording that shows changes in the search area. (e.g.: if a motion is detected)
 - **Object Search**: Compares changes in the search area to the reference image and finds videos where the change occurs and maintains until activation time. (e.g.: if an object is missing)

- **Sensitivity**: Set the sensitivity for detecting changes. Higher values will result in more sensitive detection.
- Num of diff. block: Select the minimum block for detecting changes. The change must be bigger than the defined number of blocks to be considered as a change.



• **Diff. % to ref. image**: Select the minimum ratio for detecting changes. The change must be bigger than the defined change ratio to be considered as a change.



• Activation Time: Set the duration that the change must persist to be considered as a valid change when detecting changes. A detections that do not last for the specified duration of time will not be considered as a change.

Image Zoom

Press \oplus (Image Zoom) in the control toolbar to zoom in on the current video.



- (Slider): Adjusts magnification. Magnification can also be adjusted using the mouse scroll wheel.
- (Actual Size Zoom): Enters Actual Size Zoom mode. In Actual Size Zoom mode, the video is zoomed in based on actual size of the video regardless of the size of camera screen or magnification.
- (Zoom Finder): Shows or hides PIP screen. The square of PIP screen displays the zoomed area.

PIP stands for Picture in Picture, and it refers to the small screen displayed within the bigger screen.

Image Effect

Click on 🚺 (Image Effect) on the control toolbar to bring up image effect control toolbar. Image effects to the image using each button.

These settings are only applicable to images of IDIS Center program and do not apply to images of devices.



- 👌 (Blur): Softens the image.
- \triangle (Sharpen): Sharpens the image.
- (High-Boost): Enhance image clarity by increasing brightness and sharpness.
- M (Histogram Equalization) : Makes image more natural by adjusting brightness.
- A (Edge Detection): Detect outline in the image.
- G (Revert): Cancel all changes and restore image to original.

Pixel Counter

Displays the pixel information in the selected area in the image. The number of pixels of the object's size as the distance can be calculated with the constant-sized object.

It provides quantitative information about object recognition by specifying the area of a specific type of object and measuring the density of the pixel (number of pixels per unit length). Go to **View > Pixel Counter**.





It is displayed a notification pop-up as shown below running the pixel counter. It provides how to use the pixel counter and quick control shortcuts.



The information provided by the pixel counter is shown below.



- · Width and height pixels
- · Total pixels within the area
- The pixel coordinates of the upper left corner of the area
- · Area width and height ratio to pane (UV coordinates)
- · Pane-to-area width ratio
- · UV coordinates of the upper left of the area

UV coordinates represent the minimum coordinate as 0 and the maximum coordinate as 1. The upper left is represented by (0, 0), and the lower right is represented by (1,1).

Smart Image Filter

Click on (Smart Image Filter) on the left bottom of the recorded image to apply filters to an image according to the status of the image or purpose.



- Auto, Defog, Lowlight: Applies filters and set each value.
- ROI Spot: Applies filters to the selected area only.
- **High-Boost:** Applies high-frequency enhancement filter.

Google Maps

Click (Google Maps) on the Control Toolbar to load the Google Maps panel as a popup.



This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/ NVRs.



If the video contains GPS info, the vehicle's location (\diamondsuit), direction of travel (\bigstar), and route (red line –"HDP" site only) can be looked up. "Map" and "Satellite" (Terrain On/Off) are Google Maps' display modes. From Google Maps, click on the vehicle's route (red line) or select the Vehicle Location (\heartsuit) icon and then drag and drop to see the recorded images of the location on the screen. ("HDP" site only)



When checking the vehicle's location and direction of travel, the vehicle's speed is shown on the Speed Graph panel.

Speed Graph

Click 🖂 (Speed Graph) on the Control Toolbar to load the Speed Graph panel as a popup.

This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/ NVRs.

<no name=""></no>			x
unit : Mile/h	GPS (GMT+0)	: 2005-03-31 09:5	0:5 <u>1</u> 0
	Lat: 4 Lon: 1	7° 29' 12.6764" N 19° 04' 51.9342" E	80
			60
			40
			20
2	1 1	0 0	
18:19:30	18:19:36	18:19:43	-

If the video contains GPS data, the vehicle's speed can be looked up on the Speed Graph. The speed is shown in the middle of the graph. The red, vertical line in the middle indicates the current playback location.

Right-click on the Speed Graph panel to configure graph type, graph unit, GPS info display, and HD output settings.

Click on the Speed Graph panel to see the recorded images of the location on the screen. ("HDP" site only)



When checking the vehicle's speed, the vehicle's location and direction of travel are shown on the Google Maps panel.

Vehicle Info

Click 🚔 (Vehicle Info) on the Control Toolbar to load the Vehicle Info panel as a popup.



This feature is only supported with vehicular DVRs/ NVRs.



Vehicle information is shown if contained in the video file.

Text-In Report

Text-In search results can be saved as a PDF file report. Click **Q** (Search) in the Toolbar at the bottom of the Play Panel and select Text-In from the popup window.



Search Text-In from 💽 (Search Conditions) to switch to the event search mode like the above. When search is complete, click 🗾 (Text-In Report) or double-click on the recorded image with the text-in data from the Play tab and switch it to 1x1 layout. Right click on the mouse and select **Save Text-In Report...** to bring up the following popup window.

Enter text-in information and click Save to save the text-in report as a PDF file.



- **Snapshot:** Select an image to be included in the report. Select one of the 5 images from -2 ~ +2 seconds from the text-in event.
- Transaction: Displays the text-in data for the report.
- Title, Comment, Footer: Enter the title, comment and footer of the report.
- Options
 - Auto close after save: Automatically closes the text-in report window after saving is complete.
 - Use Password: Saves the text-in report as a PDF file with a password.

Export Video File

Recorded videos can be saved as a video file. Click on the 🖪 (Export Video File) in the Toolbar at the bottom of the Play Panel to bring up Export Video File menu.



• A-B Export Video File: Set the section of the video you wish to save using the timetable. Select A-B Export Video File in the Export Video File menu. On the timetable, click the starting point and end point to specify the section you wish to save. When Export Video File window appears, the video for the selected section can be saved as a proprietary view file (.exe) or an AVI file (.avi).



- Export Video File: Set the section of the video you wish to save by manually entering the start and end points. Select Export Video File in the Export Video File menu. When Export Video File window appears, the video for the selected section can be saved as a proprietary view file (.exe) or an AVI file (.avi).
- Export Text-In Data: Exports the text-in data in a text file (.txt). Set up the range for the text-in data to save.
- **Reserved Self-Player**: The status of reserved video save can be checked in real time. Select **Site** in the Reservation List and click **Instant Start, Delete** buttons to use this function. Status of reserved save as video tasks can be refreshed by clicking **Refresh**.
- Save Still Image: Saves the current frame of the video on the screen as an image file in actual size.
- Export Image: Saves current image on the screen.
- Export Panorama Screen: Save the image on the screen of all panels.
- Print Image: Prints current image on the screen.

Save as a Self-Player File

Saves video recording as a self-player file(.exe).

Export Video File - DQA EXXO KSI	x
From : ■ First To : ■ Last ± 1 minute ± 3 minutes	 ¹¹ ¹⁰
● Self-Player ▼ C DQA EXXO KSI C C A con name>	● AVI
Save Password Save Sub Stream First Save Keyframes Only Include Text-In Data Include AVR Include VA Metadata Include Event	Spit File Size : 4GB 🗸
Include Digital Signed Player Include Watermark Exclude Player Exclude Audio Data Reservation	Setup D5/03/2023 P Use Clip Measurement Retry Interval : 10 Seconds
	Start Close

- From, To: Enter the date and time of the recording you wish to save as video.
 - **First**: Sets date and time of the first video as the start point.
 - **Last**: Sets date and time of the last video as the end point.
 - ±1 Minute, ±3 Minutes, ±10 Minutes, ±30
 Minutes, ±1 Hour: Adds or subtracts the amount of time from the time currently selected on the timetable.
- Self-Player, AVI: Select Self-Player.
- **Split File Size:** Splits and saves the file if the recorded video data exceeds the set split file size.
- **Save Password**: Set a password for playing the video. When a password is set, the viewer program asks for password while running.
- Save Keyframes Only: Saves the keyframe only as the interval you set.
- Include Text-In Data/ANPR/VA Metadata/Event: Includes text-in data/ANPR/VA Metadata/Event data when saving video if the video was recorded with this data.
- Include Watermark: Saves the specified watermark(text or text pattern) with the video.

- **Exclude Player**: Saves only the video recording without proprietary viewer.
 - Not including the player reduces the file size and time to save a video. However, the proprietary viewer (IDIS player.exe) provided in IDIS Center software installation folder (\Client\selfplayer) needs to be run to play the saved video.
 - This function may not be supported depending on device's specifications and version.
- **Exclude Audio Data:** Saves the recorded data without the audio data.
- **Reservation**: The save video function can be reserved. When a reservation period is set, the video is saved at the reserved time. If the device is disconnected during saving and saving fails, the IDIS Center system retries saving at the selected interval.
- Use Clip Measurement: Measures the clip size in advance to determine its capacity.
 - When the data file reaches 2GB or 4GB depending on the device, you will be asked to continue saving by creating multiple files.
 - If a network failure or disconnection occurs during saving, it is displayed as a list on the reserved self-player. When the network is restored, it tries exporting from the point where the saving was completed.
 - To temporarily pause saving, press the Stop button, then select Add to Reserved Self-Player and click Yes. When a saving file is displayed on the list of reserved self-player, select Instant Start to resume saving.

File Playback using proprietary viewer

Because proprietary viewer files include its own player (Clip Player), there is no need to install additional software for playback. When the file is double-clicked, the player is ran automatically and the video is displayed on the screen. The scroll bar at the right bottom of the player can be used to jump to a specific point of time in the video. Click is to exit the player.





K	Go to beginning	¥	Rewind
N	Go to end		Play at normal speed
	Rewind by frame	Â	Fast forward
	Play by frame		

- If current layout includes a video stored in the previous camera group, the panel switches to the previous camera group.
- **E**: Changes layout in the order of $4 \rightarrow 8 \rightarrow 9 \rightarrow 16$ $\rightarrow 20 \rightarrow 25 \rightarrow 1+32$.
- If current layout includes a video stored in the next camera group, the panel switches to the next camera group.
- 🛐 : Properties of player can be set.

	Fisheye Dewarping Print	4
	Frame Info	
	Image Processing	
	Play Speed Control	
	Drawing Mode	•
	Screen Size	•
	Aspect Ratio	•
	OSD Setup	
✓	Enable Audio	
\checkmark	Anti-Aliasing Screen	
\checkmark	Show Text-In	
	Continuous File Play	
	Move to Previous File	
	Move to Next File	
	File List	Þ
	Repeat Playback	
	Check Fingerprint	

- Fisheye Dewarping: Controls Fisheye Dewarping.
- Print: Prints current image.
- **Frame Info**: Shows information about the current image, including the screen number, camera title, time of recording, recording mode, file size and resolution.
- **Image Processing**: Adjust brightness or apply image filters such as soften or sharpen.



- Play Speed Control: Changes speed of Play, Fast Forward and Rewind.
- **Drawing Mode**: Select drawing mode. If the screen is not displayed correctly or not displayed at all, the problem can be resolved by changing Drawing Mode.
- Screen Size: Select screen size of the player.
- **Aspect Ratio**: Change the aspect ratio of the video displayed on the screen.

- **OSD Setup**: Change the basic settings of the video displayed on the screen.
- **Enable Audio**: If audio was recorded with the video, enabling this option plays audio upon playback.

Only supports playback in 1x1 layout.

- **Anti-Aliasing Screen**: Removes stair step (block) artifacts in magnified videos upon playback. If the playback is slow due to insufficient processing power of the PC's CPU, disabling the Anti-Aliasing option can improve overall speed.
- Show Text-In: Displays text-in data if the video was recorded with text-in data. In the single-screen layout, text-in data is displayed with images on the screen. In multi-screen layouts, click the right mouse button on a camera screen and then a text-in menu.
- Continuous File Play: Plays the files that compose the split file successively. For example, if video is split to 3 files of abc_01.exe, abc_02.exe and abc_03. exe when it is saved, you don't need to play each file one by one manually. abc_01.exe, abc_02.exe and abc_03.exe files will be played successively when you play the abc_01.exe file.
- **Move to Previous File:** Moves the previous file from the currently playing file or the file to be played when playing a split file.
- **Move to Next File:** Moves the next file from the currently playing file or the file to be played when playing a split file.
- **File List:** Lists the files that compose the split file in sequence. Selecting a file from the list moves to the selected file.
- **Repeat Playback:** Playback again after playing the recorded file.
- **Check Fingerprint:** Checks the validity of the entire file segments.

• 🖪: Save the current image.

Save as Image Save as Image (Actual Size)
Save as Clip-Copy Save as Video
Clip-Copy Log Save Frame Info

- Save as Image: Save current screen as image file.
- Save as Image (Actual Size): Save current screen as image file in actual size.

Only supports 1x1 layout.

- Save as Clip-Copy: Saves video of desired time range as an executable file.
- **Save as Video**: Save specific part of the video as AVI file(.avi).
- **Clip-Copy Log:** Saves the clip copy log information as a text file. The user information about Save As Clip Copy will be logged as **Internal-Copy.**
- **Save Frame Info:** Saves the frame information as a CSV file.
- Magnifies or shows screen in actual size. When magnified, you can click on the magnified screen and move the cursor to determine the position of the magnified screen.

✓ Only supports 1x1 layout.

- 🔳 : Shows screen in full screen.
- O , O : Displays at the lower right corner of the player. When it is confirmed that the video has not been altered, the O icon is displayed. If the video has been altered, O icon is displayed and playback is stopped.

Part 5 - Operation

Fisheye Dewarping

	Mount Type	•
	View	•
	Filter	•
	ePTZ	
	Main PIP	
<	Display Source Image	

- **Mount Type:** Chooses a position that the camera is mounted. Choose from Auto, Wall, Ceiling and Desktop. The available Screen Type changes depending on this setting.
- View: Displays the original fisheye dewarping video. Choose from Single, Quad and Panoramic view.
 When ePTZ is on, you can control Pan, Tilt and Zoom by clicing the left/right mouse button. The Main PiP is selected as a default.
- Filter: Choose a filter to improve the resolution Choose from Nearest, Linear, Cubic and Linear, NN OnPTZ filters.
- ePTZ: Controls Pan, Tilt and Zoom function. Dragging the mouse, the size of dragging indicates the speed of PTZ. The left button drag controls Left/ Right (Pan) and Up/Down (Tilt). The right button drag controls Zoom.
- **Main PIP:** Displays PiP (Picture in Picture) view to select the area easily in the main view screen.
- **Display Source Image:** Cancels the adjustment and reloads the original image.

 \checkmark

The minimum CPU requirement for running the player is 800MHz Pentium III (Intel Pentium Dual Core 2.2GHz recommended). If the CPU does not provide sufficient processing power, it may lower playback speed of high resolution recordings and high-speed recordings. Also, DirectX 9.0 or later is required for running the program and a VGA card with 16 MB or more VRAM is recommended.

- The video may not be displayed on the screen correctly depending on the PC's display settings. In such case, right-click on the desktop, go to **Display Properties** → **Settings** tab, select 32-bit as Color Quality. Then, select Advanced, go to Troubleshooting tab, and set Hardware Acceleration as Max.. If the problem persists, click Start \rightarrow Run, type in dxdiag and press Enter. In the DirectX diagnostics tool window, confirm that the DirectX version is 9.0 or higher. In the same window, go to Display tab and make sure that DirectDraw Acceleration is set as On. If running Microsoft[®] Windows[®] XP, test the settings by pressing the DirectDraw test button. Check the driver version of the VGA card. If it is not the latest version, update it with the latest version of the driver. If the problem persists after all of the attempts above, switching the PC's VGA card is recommended. VGA cards that use ATI chipsets are recommended for IDIS Center.
- If Exclude proprietary viewer option was selected when saving a recording, the proprietary viewer (IDIS player.exe) provided in IDIS Center software installation folder (\Client\selfplayer) needs to be run to play the saved video.
- The minimum operating system requirement for Fisheye Dewarping is Window Vista. Fisheye Dewarping is supported in the 1x1 layout only. You can control by clicking the right mouse button on the screen.

Save as AVI File

Saves video recording as AVI file(.avi).

Export Video File ·					2
From : 🔳 f	First	······································	3 🗢	02:02:28 PM	\$
To : 🔳 L	.ast	05/04/202	3 🌲	02:02:28 PM	\$
± 1 minute	± 3 minutes	± 10 minutes	± 30 minu	ites ± 1 h	our
 Self-Player 	(• AVI			
	:OKSI hame >				- 11
	iume v				- 11
					- 11
					- 11
					- 11
	Eichene Deu				
	Include Aud	warping lio Data			
Codec :	WebM VP8			×	
	Encoding Base	d on Bitrate		~	
Size :	1920 × 1080 ((EHD)	~	Anti-Alias	sina
	Eit to Screen/S	(mart)			,g
	The to screen(s	aniar ()			
Bitrate :		-0		8,000 💠	kbps -
Keyframe : Ouality :				60 🐳	Frames
Max File Size :			- 	2,000 🔶	MBytes
	Save Solit F	File			
	View Proce	eding Frames			
	Include Wa	termark		Setup	
				Charak	Class
				start	Close

- From, To: Enter the date and time of the recording you wish to save as video.
 - First: Sets date and time of the first video as the start point.
 - Last: Sets date and time of the last video as the end point.
 - ±1 Minute, ±3 Minutes, ±10 Minutes, ±30 Minutes, **±1 Hour**: Adds or subtracts the amount of time from the time currently selected on the timetable.
- Self-Player, AVI: Select AVI.
- Fisheye Dewarping: Saves the video as dewarped image displayed on the screen. This function is only activated in a single camera with the activated dewarping function. The video can be saved in panoramic or VR mode.
- Include Audio Data: Only a single channel is supported if the video was saved with audio.



If the video is recorded at a size smaller than 1ips, saving audio may not be successful.

- Codec, Bitrate, Quality: Set the appropriate value for video compression.
 - Encoding Based on Bitrate: Encodes video based on bitrate.
 - Encoding Based on Video Quality: Encodes video based on video guality.
- Size: Set the file size for the compressed video, then select aspect ratio.
 - Original Ratio: Resizes camera screen to original aspect ratio of the video.
 - Fit to Screen: Resizes video to camera screen regardless of original aspect ratio.
 - Fit to Screen(Aspect ratio): Resizes video to camera screen while maintaining original aspect ratio.

Up, down, left, and right parts of the video may be cropped depending on size of camera screen. When using Image Zoom, aspect ratio of camera screen does not apply and Original Ratio is applied.

- · Anti-Aliasing: Removes stair step effect (blocks) that are caused when zooming a video to improve overall quality of video output.
- Keyframe: Set the interval of key frames for video compression.
- Max File Size: Set the maximum size of the file.
- Save Split File: If the file size of the saved recording exceeds Max File Size, the video is saved into multiple files while not exceeding the maximum file size.



If Save Split File is not enabled, output file will be limited to the maximum file size.

- View Proceeding Frames: Shows the current frame being saved in a popup screen while saving.
- Include Watermark: Saves the specified watermark with the video.

AVI File Playback

The AVI file can be played by using a video player.



If the codec for the compression method used to save the AVI is not installed on the PC, the codec must be installed manually.

Event Handling

The video of the camera in which event is detected can be monitored live. If the event detection video is recorded, the video recording can be played.

Event 🔎		
Event	Site	Time
🏓 [JASPER]N	[JASPER]NC-S1	06-18 14:13:19
₩ NC-D120-V	NC-D120-VD_#1	06-18 14:13:19

Events will be displayed on the list when Instant Event is detected on registered devices.

If Callback Event is detected on registered devices,

Emergency Event Panel will be displayed automatically or bring up manually.

To bring up Emergency Event Panel manually, Click **View** -> **Emergency Event Panel** or Click **W** button on Event list.

	_	IDIS Cent	ler Remole Administration System adr	nin (Live 1	_	X
System We	w Live Elapteck	Abox				4101S
	Screen Ctriebter					
H Alexan M	Screen + Tgollar Ocl+AL+Entar					
• Deste Baa	et Floring Table					
* Dougt Sou	een Romat Colv#					
* Dighted on	w Brendus Sitoup (1214-AgO) w Next Convert					
DOLIGANS DO	w format 1+1 Shift-Enter					
	ect Previous Pane RgOn					
■ 0×24p+12+4	nt Next Pane PgUp					
- 10.4 S 10	een Refresh wen Manufaur - Fil					
E Lent Parere	Counter Ctri+Q+Orag					
🖉 Camera Sequenze 👗 🊈	Rein Hover Toolke					
	rgency Event Panel CtrfwAlt+E					
New SP	REvert Panel +					
per se a la companya de la comp	1218 528 7316					
Ser.	rice File Transfer Nonitor					
	a line					
Event Ste Time						
🎽 18 2013 DQ82003 15-25 AH 1.						
# #803 204200 1526 #41						
# 16.66 1/hDek 11.26.043						
H 803 D04200152441. # 145610048 T255441.						
🍇 18.000 098000 1505.001						
 N BOI3 DQN200 1328 AH1. N BOI3 DQN200 1328 AH1. 						
# 1986. bittek 11-26.0%.						
Canva Desta						

Emergency Event Panel will be displayed.

Emergency Event				_ = :
vent Count : 9, Last Ever		36 (Info.Desk)		Auto Popup
Event	Device	Site	Date/Time	•
🛠 Motion Detection				
🛠 Motion Detection				
🛠 Motion Detection				-
🛠 Motion Detection				-
🛠 Motion Detection				
🛠 Motion Detection				
🛠 Motion Detection				
🛠 Motion Detection				

Emergency Event list will be displayed when Emergency Event is detected.

- Auto Popup: Emergency Event Panel will be displayed automatically when Emergency Event is detected on client system.
- Event Count: Shows the count of displayed event.
- Last Event: Shows the information of latest Emergency Event.

\checkmark

Callback events are only displayed if the callback feature is enabled on the device. Event list indication options can be changed in **Settings > Report**. For more details, refer to **Report on page 42**.

Event Icons Indicated on the Event list

	~		
4°	Motion Detection	<mark>ل</mark>	System Action
۲	Video blind	*	Restart
C,	Video loss	0	System shutdown
2	Object detection	₽ <mark>.</mark> []	Malfunction in recording function
£.	Video-analytic detection		Disk full
2	TripZone		Disk almost full
ija	Tampering	D	Bad sector on disk
Ē	Text-in detection		Disk setting change
0 / 🔒	Activate/ Deactivate alarm-in detection	ū	No error on S.M.A.R.T. diagnostics.
0 / 0	Alarm-in error/ no error	Ы	High disk temperature shown on S.M.A.R.T. diagnostics
🗋 / 📮	External storage inserted/ removed	• / 🕵	Start/end panic recording
党 / 党	Device Disconnection/ Device Connection Failure	æ / æ	Fan error / No fan error
Q	System boot	2	Face Detection
813	Exceed People Limit On/Off	© / ©	Exceed Time Limit On/Off
-	VA Loss / No VA Loss	\$ / \$	PIR Detection On/Off
🚘 / 🚘	ANPR Detection On/Off	₽/₽	Auto-tracking Detection On/Off
e . / e.	Main Stream Recording/Error	• / 🗞	Sub Stream Recording/Error
i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	Alarm Box Error/Off	õ i /õi	Exceed Occupancy Limit/ Off
කී/කී	Crowd Detections/Off	<mark>ನಿಧಿ</mark> / <u>ನಿಧಿ</u>	Social Distancing Violations/Off

8/8	Mask Rule Violations/Off	83./8 <mark>3</mark>	Queue congestion detection/Off

Certain event icons may not be supported depending on device's specifications and version.

 \checkmark

Live Video

Monitoring live video from event detection cameras are supported on up to 4 Live panels. If a Live tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Live**.



- 🛞	s	ystem	View	Playback
Live 1		Live 2	Play 1	Play 2
1				

- 1 In the panel tabs, click the **Live** tab.
- 2 In the Live Event list, select an event you wish to monitor. Then, drag & drop the selected event on the Live screen using your mouse. The live video of the camera in which selected event was detected will be displayed on the screen.



Video Playback

Playback of recorded event videos is supported in the Play panel. If a Play tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Play**.



	System	View	Playback
Live 1	Play 1	× Map 1	Report
1			

- 1 In the panel tabs, click the **Play** tab.
- 2 In the Live Event list, select an event you wish to monitor. Then, drag & drop the selected event on the Play screen using your mouse. The recorded video of the selected event will be displayed on the screen.

Briten View G				105
1 ∰ 450mm • ∰ Inpertman 1 ∰ Inpertman 2 ∰ Inpertman 2 ∰ Inpertman 1 ∰ Inper	**ibis			Pitors
	et ions			Pitos
Hand Hin Dom D → Lang, No. (ang., No. (a), (a), (a), (a), (a), (a), (a), (a),				
Con Paperson - Con Tables				

System Status Monitoring

The system status of registered devices can be monitored live.

System status monitoring is supported in the Status panel. If a Status tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Health**.

	Syste	m	View		Playbac	k	Ab
Play 1	New	Tab	•	Live		2	
	Remo	ove	•	Play	r i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i		
Total	Expo	rt	Ctrl+E	Мар)	nable	
5	Print.		Ctrl+P	Rep	ort		
Status	IDIS	Center S	etup 🕨	Hea	lth		Addr
Healthy	Login	l		Sta	tus		10.0
Healthy	Logo	ut		Inf	o.Desk		10.0
Problem	Lock	Ch	rl+∆lt+I	InS	ide1		10.0
Healthy	LUCK		TTT GETE	InS	Side3		10.0
Healthy	Exit	•		InS	ide2		10.0
				1	DIS Center	Remote A	dministra
<u>S</u>	ystem	<u>V</u> iew	<u>P</u> layback	About			
Play 1				Heal		Report	Sta
Total	Problem		Unreachabl	0	Healt	hv	

Once **Health** tab is added, the health monitoring results are automatically displayed.



- **Summarized list**: Summarizes status of all devices added to the device group.
 - **Total**: Shows the total number of devices added to all device groups.
 - **Problem**: Snows the number of malfunctioning devices.
 - **Unreachable**: Snows the number of disconnected devices.
 - **Healthy**: Shows the number of devices that are operational without malfunctions.
- **Detailed list**: Shows the status of each device in detail (The status may not be displayed depending on the device).
 - Status: Shows status.

Haalthy	No malfunctions have been
пеанну	detected.

Problem	Video loss, event detection, alarm-in device error, recording error
Unreachable	Device is not connected.

- **Problem**: Shows the cause of the malfunction.
- **Group**: Shows the device group in which the device is registered to.
- Address: Displays the device's IP address.
- MAC Address: Displays the device's MAC address.
- Site: Shows name of the device.
- Version: Shows device's software version.
- **Cameras**: Shows status of the cameras used by the device.
- **Alarm In**: Shows status of the alarm-in device used by the device.
- Fan: Shows fan error status.
- Record: Shows recording status.
- Record Check: Shows recording check status.
- Record Period: Shows recording period.

• Function buttons

- 🕜 (Refresh): Displays the newest information of the health monitoring panel.
- 🔲 (Event Condition): Sets the conditions for events to display. The data of the health monitoring which belong to the selected condition is displayed.
- **[** (Save): Saves the data of the health monitoring panel in .txt, .csv, .html and .pdf formats.
- 📧 (Full Screen): Shows the Status Panel in full screen.

Device Status Monitoring

The device status of registered devices can be monitored live. Device status monitoring is supported in the Device Status Panel. If a Device Status tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Status**.





In the **Site** list, select a device you wish to monitor. Then, drag & drop the selected device on the Device Status Panel using your mouse. The status of the selected device will be displayed.



- Status Indicator Window: Shows the status using icons.
 - Version: Shows system version.
 - Camera: Shows camera number
 - **Event**: Shows event detection status. Colored event icon indicates that an event was detected. When the cursor is placed over the icon, the type of the event is shown in tooltips.
 - Alarm Out: Shows Alarm-out status.
 - **System Check**: Shows status of device and recording function.

Function buttons

- 💋 (Disconnect): Disconnects current connections in the Device Status Panel.
- E (Panic Recording): Remotely starts or stops panic recording of the device.

Only supported for DVRs with panic recording support.

- Rec. From/Rec. To: Shows recording period.
- **Status**: Shows device's recording, playback, backup and clip copy statuses.
- 🔢 (Full Screen): Shows the Device Status Panel in full screen.

Self-Diagnosis

Self-diagnosis is supported for overall diagnosis and reporting of a recorder's system, network and camera status. If a Self-Diagnosis tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Self-Diagnosis**.



In the **Site** list, select a device you wish to monitor. Then, drag & drop the selected device on the Self-Diagnosis Panel using your mouse. The self-diagnosis of the selected device will be displayed.



• **Self-Diagnosis**: Shows the overall status of a recorder in a report format.



- **Reports**: Shows the results of self-diagnosis with date and summary.
- **Troubleshooting Reports**: Creates and saves a selfdiagnosis report dumb file to send it to the partner site.
 - 💽 (Request Troubleshooting Reports): Creates troubleshooting reports.
 - Ole (Delete): Deletes the selected troubleshooting report from the list.
 - If (Save as File): Saves troubleshooting reports as a dumb file. After saving is complete, click Register Partner Portal and enter the partner site account if connected to the external network, to report the dump file to the partner site.
 - **W** (Refresh): Shows the newest list of the troubleshooting reports.

• Function buttons

- Disconnect): Disconnects current connections in the Self-Diagnosis Panel.
- 💽 (Refresh): Reloads the self-diagnosis report.
- **Save**: Saves the self-diagnosis report as an HTML file (.html).
- 🔄 (Print): Prints the self-diagnosis report.
- 🔀 (Full Screen): Shows the Self-Diagnosis panel as a full screen.

Log search

Searches the log of IDIS Center program and devices. Log search is supported in the Report Panel. If a Report tab doesn't exist in the panel tabs, you can add them by selecting **New Tab** in the **System** menu and clicking **Report**.

	System	View		Playbac	k A
Play 1	New Tab	+		Live	2
_	Remove	•		Play	_
💄 User I	Export	Ctrl+E		Мар	×.
Drag	Print	Ctrl+P		Report	
Date/Tim	IDIS Center	Setup 🔸		Health	Device
2013-04-(Login		ay ta	b	Info.Desk (
2013-04-0	Logout		ay ta	Ь	Info.Desk (
2013-04-0	Lock C	trl+Alt+L	ay ta	Ь	Info.Desk (
2013-04-0	Exit		ay ta	Ь	Info.Desk (

				1015	Center Remote	Administration 3	iystem [admin] - Report			- # - # X
.			Playback							IDIS
Q. David							O Enter land in second for here			_
A Operts	9		×				Construction and and and		Naviras	
Drag a	column header her	to group by that cates	pory							
Date/Time		Log	Device		User	Description		→ m)	ofo.Desk	
2013-04-08	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Info.De	HSK (CAM1)	admin			- ÷ ¢ 1		
2013-04-08	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Info.De	isk (CAM8)	admin			> 101		
2013-04-08	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Infe.Do	isk (CAM2)	admin					
2013 04 08	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Infe.De	isk (CAM6)	admin				ce ereno	
2013-04-08	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Infe.Do	isk (CAM3)	admin			E CAN	out Sequence	
2013-04-08	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Info.De	isk (CAM4)	admin			 Car 		
2013-04-05	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Infe.De	isk (CAM5)	admin			V 👥 Haj		
2013-04-08	16:29:22	Add to Play tab	Infe.Do	isk (CAM7)	admin					
2013 04 08	16:29:16	Remove from Play	tab Desk.(CAM1)	admin	Logout.				
2013-04-08	16:29:16	Add to Play tab	Desk (CAM1)	admin			-	IFFICE	
2013-04-08	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Infe.De	isk (CAM1)	admin	Logout.		- 140		
2013-04-05	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Infe.De	isk (CAM8)	admin	Logout.				
2013-04-08	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Infe.De	isk (CAM2)	admin	Legout.		Court .		
2013-04-08	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Info.Do	isk (CIM6)	admin	Logout.		- Averat		1000
2013-04-08	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Info.Do	isk (GM3)	admin	Logout.		# C/H	bioDesk	04-01 16-05 E
2013-04-08	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Info.Do	isk (CAM4)	admin	Logout.		# 000		04-08 16:45
2013-04-05	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Infe.Do	isk (CAM5)	admin	Logout.		# CH45		04-08-16145
2013-04-08	16:29:09	Remove from Play	tab Infe.De	isk (CAM7)	admin	Legout.		2 000	Info.Desk	04-00 16:45
2013-04-08	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Info.De	isk (CIM1)	admin			ALCONT		04-08 16-45-
2013-04-01	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Info.De	HIK (CIMI)	admin			at care		04-08-16-45
2013-04-00	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Info.De	rsk (CAM2)	admin			\$ 000		04-08 16:45
2013-04-05	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Infe.De	isk (CAM6)	admin			2 COVE	Desk	04-00 10:45
2013-04-08	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Info.De	isk (CAM3)	admin			AF CANL		01 08 16rt5
2013-04-03	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Info.De	nsk (CIM4)	admin			af CANT		01-08-16115
2013-04-08	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Info.D	HSK (CAM5)	admin			A CAME		04-00 16:45-
2013-04-00	16:29:01	Add to Play tab	Info.De	rsk (CAM7)	admin			10 ONG		
2013-04-08	16:28:59	Remove from Play	tab Info.Ox	rsk (CAM1)	admin	Logout.		Live P		
2013-04-08	16:28:59	Remove from Play	tab Infe.De	isk (GAME)	admin	Logout		Carriera		
All Devices			🖂 📰 🔎				8 🖬 👼 💷	•		
			304							
From	2013-01-04	10-56-50	and the second s	To : E NO	01.01	10-56-50	=			
	E First			M Last						

When a log list is displayed, you can right click on the column data to bring up a menu, which can be used to categorize the data to your preference.

- Log type: Select the type of log to search in the list.
 - User Log: Shows IDIS Center Program's log.
 - Health Log: Shows the system status log of registered devices.
 - Device System Log: Shows device's system log.
 - **Device Event Log**: Shows device's event log. If the device is a network camera or a network video server, only the events that occurred while SD (SDHC) Memory Card Recording feature is enabled can be searched.
 - Admin Service Log: Shows maintenance service log. For more information, contact your IDIS Center software retailer.
 - Monitoring Service Log: Shows monitoring service log. For more information, contact your IDIS Center software retailer.
- (Search): Search log.

Report toolbar

The specific logs can be searched by using the toolbar at the bottom of the panel.



• From, To: Set the date and time of the logs to search for. Enter a specific date and time or select **First** or **Last** options.

 \checkmark

• Click the **1 Hour, 6 Hour, Today, 3 Day**, or **7 Day** buttons to adjust the **From** and **To** by the amount of time that corresponds to each button.

- Selecting the **First** or **Last** options will search every log from the oldest to the most recent.
- 🙆 (Condition): Select the type of log to search for.
- 🔄 (Search): Begin search according to the search criteria.
- 🖪 (Full Screen): Shows the Report Panel in full screen.
- **E** (Save): Saves the search results as as a text file(.txt) or a CSV file (.csv).



System and service logs can be saved as passwordprotected HTML files (.html). Password must be entered to view HTML files.

- 🖨 (Print): Print the search result.
- More: Shows next results.

Browser

Web browser is available in the Browser panel, and panels can be added up to 8 in maximum.

Browser Screen



0	Browser Panel Name	Each browser panel name is displayed. Panel names are maintained for every login and different panel names can be saved for each user.
2	Browser Page	Displays a web page. Empty address displays the default page.
3	Browser Toolbar	Basic browser functions are provided.
4	Browser Device	Select System > IDIS Center Setup > Device and add browser device to the Browser under Site. Drag and drop the device to the browser page to move to the address set in the device.

Default Page



- **1** When a Browser tab is added without a start page, the default page is displayed.
- 2 Enter a blank URL in the address bar and press Enter to move to the default page. If you move to the default page with a start page set up, a message which says "Enter URL" is displayed.
- 3 Select Browser Setup from the default page to bring up the browser setup screen to assign the start page.

Browser Toolbar

← → O 🖬 • • • 📲 https://www.idisglobal.com

 ← / → (Previous/Next Page): Moves to the previous/ next page.

Ö 🔡

- 🖸 (Refresh): Reloads the current page.
- 🗙 (Stop): Stops loading a page.
- Moves to the set homepage.
- URL address): Enter an address.
- Jacobia (Save as PDF): Saves the current page as a PDF file.
- (Browser Setup): Configures the current browser's panel information settings.
- 🔀 (Full Screen): Displays the browser panel in full screen.

Browser Setup

Configures settings of the current browser panel. Browser settings are managed for each user, and the settings are retained for relogin.

Brows	ser 1	x
Вг		
		Ŀ
	Enable Popup	
	Allow Custom URL Schemes	
	ОК Салс	el

- Tab Name: Enter a browser tab name.
- Start Page: Sets the start page of the browser panel. Entering a blank URL displays the default page. Click on the ^[] (Current Page) button to set the current page URL as the start page.
- **Enable Popup:** Enables a popup in a browser page. A popup is blocked when this option is not selected.
- Allow Custom URL Schemes: Allows custom URL

schemes to bring up a specific web page.

MapVue Search

You can search and play recorded video of a specific object, and use a map to check the location of playback device. The bookmark feature can build up a scenario to track the object's actions and movements. MapVue search is supported on the MapVue Search panel. Select **New Tab** from the **System** menu and click **MapVue Search** to add a tab.

MapVue Search Screen

🛜 IDIS Center Remote Administration System admin MayVue Search 🖉 = 🕫 🗙								
System View	Live Playback About							IDIS
Site	Vue Search × Browser 1 Live 1 Play 1	\bigcirc						
ρ.	Man1		DOA EXXX KSI					
a Lievices iiii Device Group		CAM6						
🖬 Laynot	2000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0					No Title	Recorded Time	×
Layout Sequence Camera Sequence	E Constant and the second					1 Test		
* 🐻 Map	A ENT M L'AND A COM							
名 [202] ■ HDP f+								
Rowser								
			el tota el T ota el traversa					
		5)	2030-1 Development					
Event _0 (3	Goto	History		1	1/1000			
Event Site Time	2024-11-22 📕 PM 03:54:00 🔅 🛃 H	* Device	Site	Recorded Time	×			
	Load Adjacent Frame	* CAM1	10.0.131.25 JSS OEM	2024-10-24 AM 04:25:00				
	Ontione	★ CAM1						
	options	★ 132.99						
	 Autoplay on double-clicking the map device Autoplay always on running the history 	* CAM3						
	Autoplay on running the bookmark	* CAM6						
	Device focusing on running the bookmark	☆ CAM5						
		* CAM1						
		± CAM2						
Live Popup 👻		* CAM3						
Camera Device		* D4536HRX #1 5459						
		* CAM6	DQA EXXO KSI	2024-11-22 PM 03:54:12	2			

0	Мар	Monitors the status of registered devices on a map.
2	Playback Screen	Plays all of recorded data related to MapVue search.
3	Goto	Searches video of specific date and time.
4	Options	Select map/playback options.
6	History	Displays history of camera registration and recorded time of the playback screen
6	Bookmark	Saves map and playback video of selected time as bookmarks.

You can adjust the size of each section by dragging the corner.

MapVue Search Toolbar



- Copen MapVue Search File): Opens a MapVue Search data file. The current MapVue Search status of the data file is applied. Click the arrow button to display the list of recently opened MapVue Search files.
- 🛃 (Save MapVue Search File): Saves the current MapVue Search file.
- 🛃 (Save MapVue Search File As): Saves the current MapVue Search file with a different name or location.
- XI (Save As Excel): Saves the bookmark data as an Excel file.
- 🛃 (Close MapVue Search File): Initializes all of the data.
- 🔣 (Full Screen): Displays the MapVue Search panel in full screen.

Device Registration and Recorded Video Playback

Drag&drop a device from the site tree to the map section to register a map. For the playback screen, you can register the camera devices from the map and devices from the site tree by drag&drop. When the MapVue Search panel is activated, double-click on a device of the site tree to easily register the device.

Мар

Monitors the status and location of the registered devices, and tracks the movement of an object. It supports all of features from <u>Map Monitoring on page</u> <u>59</u> and <u>Map Control on page 74</u> except for Event Action of Map Monitoring. Double-click on the device to display the recorded video on the playback screen.



The background of the device blinks when the bookmark or history is played.



Device Context Menu

Use the context menu to check the device or playback status.



- **Play Recorded Data**: Displays the recorded data of the device on the playback screen.
- Instant Viewer: Displays a popup with a real-time monitoring video.
- Information: Displays the device status information.
Device Tooltip

Brief device information is displayed in a tooltip when you put a cursor on a device.



- Device Name: Displays the selected device name.
- **Site**: Displays the name of the highest device that includes the selected device on the site tree.
- Number: Displays the channel number.
- **Model**: Displays the model type or name of the site device.
- Address: Displays the address and port number of the site device.

Playback Screen

Plays the recorded video from the MapVue Search. Use a control toolbar to use **<u>Recorded Video Playback on</u> <u>page 80</u>** features. You can switch to 1x1 screen layout by a double-click on the playback screen.



• The device cannot be simultaneously registered on the Play panel and MapVue Search panel.

• Use the context menu to add history and bookmark.



ROI Connection

Connect the Region Of Interest (ROI) of the registered camera video on the playback screen to use the features.



For fisheye cameras, the displayed screen becomes the ROI when ePTZ is on by the dewarping function (Client-Side Dewarping). For general cameras, the displayed screen becomes the ROI when the dynamic zoom function is activated.

When saving history/bookmark, ROI is saved and the backed up ROI is displayed for the playback. Bookmark snapshots and thumbnails of the dewarping video are saved as ROI images. If the dewarping mode is select mode or spot mode, the selected ROI pane is used as the bookmark image.

\checkmark

The ROI connection is effective for fisheye camera videos and high resolution videos such as UHD.

Goto and Options

Goto

You can search for the specific time of the recorded video on the playback screen.



<Calendar Widget>

<Time Widget>

- 🚺 (Move Time): Displays the recorded video of date and time selected on the playback screen.
- Move To Last): When the dynamic zoom function is on, the displayed image becomes the ROI.
- Load Adjacent Frame: Displays the most adjacent frame if there is no available image for the selected time.
- Date/Time: Select date and time to search the image. You can use mouse wheel, number keys and arrow keys to enter the date/time. Click the button or right mouse click on the date to bring up the calendar widget, and right mouse click on the time to bring up the time widget.

Options

Select MapVue Search playback and map options.



- Autoplay on double-clicking the map device: Select to register on the playback screen and automatically play when you double-click the map device.
- Autoplay always on running the history: Select to play the video at the same time the recorded video is registered on the playback screen.
- Autoplay on running the bookmark: Select to register the recorded image on the playback screen and automatically play when you run the bookmark.
- Device focusing on running the bookmark: Select for device focusing on the map when you run the bookmark.



Registering camera devices on the playback screen or moving to other recorded time are added to the History section. You can track the past search history and register to the bookmark.

History List

Device	Site	Recorded Time ×
CAM5	RND5.EXX0	2020-04-21 12:
CAM1	RND5.EXX0	2020-04-21 13

Time search from the Goto section and time table search are added to the History list. Running thumbnail search or event search results adds to the History list as well.

A history item is added to the end of the list and the scroll automatically moves to the added item unless another selected item is being played.

The number of current and maximum history items is displayed on the right top of the list. If the number of items exceeds the maximum number (up to 1000), the oldest item is automatically deleted.

Inaccessible devices or deactivated devices are colored dark and cannot be played.

Context Menu

Mouse right click on the History item to bring up the following context menu.

	Run
	Add Bookmark
	Add
	Delete
	Give an asterisk
	Remove all asterisks
	Delete items without an asterisk
	Use Tooltip

- **Run**: Displays the recorded data of the device from the History list on the playback screen.
- Add Bookmark: Adds the history to the bookmark.
- **Add**: Adds the current MapVue Search history under the selected item on the list.
- **Delete**: Deletes the selected item.
- Give an asterisk: Gives an asterisk to the selected item.
- **Remove all asterisks**: Removes all asterisks from the items with an asterisk.
- **Delete items without an asterisk**: Deletes all of the items without an asterisk.
- Use Tooltip: Select to use a tooltip for the History list.

History List Tooltip

Hover a mouse cursor on a History item to bring up the information in a tooltip.



- **Device Name**: Displays the selected device name.
- **Site**: Displays the name of the highest device that includes the selected device on the site tree.
- **Map**: Displays the map device connected to the selected device.
- **Recorded Time**: Displays the recorded time of the image of the selected device.

• **Date Created**: Displays the date and time when the History item was added.

List Item Control

- Add History: Select Add History from the playback screen context menu, or select Add from the History context menu to add a history according to the current playback status and time. Map device information is also saved if the playback device is connected to the registered map device. When the items are listed with the Sort by asterisk filter, a history item is added with an asterisk when a user manually adds one.
- Delete History: Select X (Delete) button from the History list or select Delete from the context menu.
 The X (Delete) button is displayed when you put a mouse cursor on a History item. Click the button on the top right of the list to delete all of History items.
- Run History: Double-click on the History item or select Run from the context menu to run a history. When you run the history, the camera is registered and the selected time data is displayed on the playback screen. The history with map device information registers the map device on the map section. Double-click on the map device with the Autoplay on double-clicking the map device option or select Play Recorded Data from the Map context menu to add a history item with automatic playback.
- Asterisk Option: An asterisk feature is for managing priority of history items. Click the
 button on the left of each history item to enable/disable an asterisk. Select the
 (Sort by asterisk) button on top of the history list to filter items with an asterisk only (
). The History context menu suggests asterisk options: Give an asterisk, Remove all asterisks and Delete items without an asterisk.

Bookmark

You can add the current status of MapVue search or history to the bookmark. Bookmark recorded video and route of the specific object to form up a scenario. Bookmarks can be saved as Excel files.





<List Mode>

<Thumbnail Mode>

- 💽 (Add Bookmark): Adds the current MapVue search status to the bookmark.
- 🕑 (Edit Bookmark): Edits the bookmark information.
- (Run Bookmark): Displays the selected bookmark's map and recorded data on the screen.
- (Thumbnail List): Displays the bookmark list with thumbnails.

Inaccessible devices or deactivated devices are colored
dark and cannot be played.

Context Menu

Mouse right click on the Bookmark item to bring up the following context menu.



- **Run**: Displays the selected bookmark's map and recorded data on the screen.
- Add Bookmark: Adds the current MapVue search status to the bookmark.
- Modify: Edits the bookmark information.
- Delete: Deletes a bookmark.
- Save Snapshot: Saves a thumbnail saved in the bookmark as a file.
- **Save as Excel**: Saves the bookmark list information as an Excel file.
- Use Tooltip: Select to use a tooltip for the Bookmark list.

Bookmark List Tooltip

Hover a mouse cursor on a Bookmark item to bring up the information in a tooltip.



- Title: Displays the selected bookmark name.
- **Thumbnail Image:** Displays a playback screen snapshot of the time (± 2 seconds) when the bookmark was created.
- **Device**: Displays the device name of the selected bookmark.
- **Site**: Displays the name of the highest device that includes the selected device on the site tree.
- **Map**: Displays the registered map device included in the bookmark.
- **Recorded Time**: Displays the recorded time of the video.
- **Date Created**: Displays the date and time when the bookmark was created.
- **Date Modified**: Displays the latest date when the bookmark information was modified.
- **Comment**: Displays a comment that describes the bookmark.

List Item Control

 Add Bookmark: Select the Add Bookmark) button at the top of the bookmark list, or Add from the bookmark list context menu, or Add Bookmark from the playback screen context menu to add the current map and playback status to the bookmark. Select Add Bookmark from the History list context menu, or drag&drop a history item to the Bookmark list to add as a bookmark (up to 1000 bookmarks).

When adding a bookmark, the following window is displayed. An item is created on the Bookmark list after configuring the setting.



- **Snapshot:** Displays the selected image from the thumbnail list. Thumbnails show images of recorded time in the range of -2 sec, -1 sec, 0 sec, +1 sec, +2 sec.
- Title: Enter the bookmark title (up to 64 characters).
- **Comment:** Enter the bookmark description (up to 256 characters).
- **Information:** Displays the device, site and recorded time of the bookmark.
- Run Bookmark: Select the Select the Run Bookmark) button, or double-click on the bookmark item, or select Run from the context menu to load the map and recorded data of the bookmark. If the Autoplay on running the bookmark option is enabled, the bookmark automatically plays the recorded data. If the Device focusing on running the bookmark option is enabled and a map device is connected to the playback device, the device focusing is automatically activated. Drag&drop the bookmark item to the playback screen to register the device and play the recorded data.
- Edit Bookmark: Select a bookmark and click the (Edit Bookmark) button at the top of the bookmark list, or select **Modify** from the context menu to edit the bookmark information.
- Delete Bookmark: Select X (Delete) button from the Bookmark list or select Delete from the context menu. The X (Delete) button is displayed when you put a mouse cursor on a bookmark item. The popup window is displayed when you select Delete, and press

Shift and Delete to delete the item without the popup window. Click the button on the top right of the list to delete all of bookmark items.

- Arrange Bookmark List: Drag&drop the bookmark list item within the Bookmark section to rearrange. Press Ctrl and drag the item, and drop it on the Bookmark list area to switch the position in the list. Click the name at the top of the bookmark list to arrange the items in ascending/descending order.
- Save Bookmark as an Excel file: You can save the bookmark list information as an Excel file. Select the XII (Save As Excel) button on the MapVue Search toolbar, or Save as Excel from the context menu.

Exc	el File Exportin	g Test		
No	Snapshot	Title	Recorded Time	Site
1		Thumbnail List Mode Test	2019-12-03 AM 11:50:25	LUFFY QA IRAS
2	Terr	Delete Test	2019-12-05 AM 10:54:06	RND5.EXXO-124.208

Map Editor

By registering a map, camera videos, events, and status of connected I/O devices can be monitored on a map.

Map Registration

- Select Setup in System menu and select the Device menu.
- On the Site panel, click on Map, then click on the
 + button at the bottom of the Sites List panel on
 the right. A Map Editor window will appear on the
 screen.





- 3 On the Site panel, select the I/O devices connected to the device and subordinate map. Then, drag & drop them to the desired position on the canvas.
- **4** Configure the map.
- **5** Enter a name for the map and click **OK** to complete map registration.
- On the Site panel, click on Map, then click on the + button at the bottom of the Site panel on the left. An

Add Map Group window will appear on the screen.

Map Settings



0	Site	Shows a list of registered devices and maps. Registered devices and maps can be searched by typing search query in the \mathcal{P} field.	
2	Canvas	Create a map by inserting a background image and positioning desired I/O device icons and map links from the Site List.	
0	 Settings Buttons Configures the map. Alignment: The I/O device icons or map links positioned on the canvas can be user's preference. (Text box): Inserts a text-box for entering text. (Route sequence): Sets route sequence. (Map object name sync): Automatically syncs names of I/O devices depend devices' settings. (Insert background image): Inserts a desired background image to the can (Status color): Designates colors to indicate event detection and I/O device the map. (Delete): Select I/O device icons or map links you wish to delete from the c click the Delete button to delete the selected I/O device icons or map links fro canvas. 		
4	Properties	Sets the properties of map, the canvas of the map, and I/O device icons or map links positioned on the canvas.	
6	Event Action	Set the event action for the I/O device icons positioned on the canvas. When an event is detected on the map, the user is notified by the defined actions.	

Icon Alignment

After selecting more than one I/O device icon or map link, you can click the Align buttons to modify their position on the canvas and size at once.

- • / 😫 (Positioning): Aligns one or more icons to the horizontal / vertical center of the background image.
- Image: Im
- **1** / **1** (Spacing): Adjusts the spacing between three or more selected icons to be regular.
- Image: Image: A start of the st

Properties

The properties of canvas, I/O device icons or map links on the canvas can be set. After selecting a canvas, an icon or a map link, select each property, and manually enter the desired value or select a desired value from the drop down menu.

	Property		
V	Map Attributes		
	Root Map	Not Use	
T	Canvas		
	Width	1920	
	Height	1080	
	Color	255; 255; 255	
	Image Position	Original Ratio	
	Image Width	0	
	Image Height	0	

	Prop	erty
T	General	
	Name	CAM1
	Icon	Camera
	Ratio	75
	X Coordinate	130
	Y Coordinate	289
	Width	48
	Height	48
	Halo effect	Not Use
	Camera View	Not Use
v	Information	
	Name	CAM1
	Site	<no name=""></no>
	IP Address	NVR_WAN_00032260D5
	Number	1

	Prop	erty
T	General	
	Name	Map1
	X Coordinate	113
	Y Coordinate	190
	Width	128
	Height	32
	▼ Fill	Use
	Icon	Use
	Font Size	8
	Font Style	Regular
	Text Color	255; 255; 255
	Background Colo	85; 110; 215
	Opacity	80
	Align Text	Left
V	Information	
	Name	Map1

	Prop	erty
V	General	
	X Coordinate	583
	Y Coordinate	324
	Width	126
	Height	81
T	Text	
	Text	test
	Font	Microsoft Sans Serif
	Font Size	9
	Text Color	0; 0; 0
	Background Color	255; 255; 255
	Margin	2; 2; 2; 2
	Align Text	Left, Top
	Bold	Not Use
	Italic	Not Use
	Underline	Not Use

 Map Attributes: Sets the map properties. When Root Map is set as Use, a list of devices registered to the map is displayed on the right-handside of the Map Panel when monitoring a map.

- **Canvas**: Sets the properties of canvas or background image inserted to the canvas.
 - Width, Height, Color: Sets the width, height, and color of the canvas.
 - **Image Position**: Sets the position of background image inserted to the canvas.
 - **Information**: Shows the width and height of the background image inserted to the canvas.
- Device: Sets the properties of selected I/O device icon.
 - Name: Sets the name of the device icon.

Only applies to Map Panels.

- Icon, Ratio: Sets the shape and ratio of the device icon.
- X Coordinate/Y Coordinate, Width/Height: Sets the position and size of the device icon. These values can be adjusted by dragging the icon on the canvas with your mouse.
- **Associated Camera**: Cameras can be connected to a device. When a camera is connected, the video from the connected camera can be watched when the event is detected. Map link can be set for an alarm-in device.



Only supports Alarm-in or Audio Input devices.

- **Halo effect**: Sets background color of an icon for locating the icon easier on the map.
- **Camera View**: Configure viewing angle, pan, and distance.

 \checkmark

Only supports camera devices.

- Information: Shows the device information.
- Map link: Sets the properties of the selected map link.
 - **Name**: Sets the name of the map link. The name entered is displayed on the map link.
 - X Coordinate/Y Coordinate, Width/Height: Sets the position and size of the map link. These values can be adjusted by dragging the map link on the canvas with your mouse.
 - Text Color, Background Color: Sets the font color and background color of the map link.
 - **Opacity**: Sets the opacity of the background color of the map link.
 - Align Text: Aligns the text of the map link.
 - Information: Shows name of the map.
- Text Box: Sets the properties of the selected text box.
 - **Text**: Sets text. The set text is displayed on the map.
 - Font, Font Size: Sets font and font size.
 - **Text Color, Background Color**: Sets the font color of the text and background color of the text box.
 - Align Text: Aligns text.
 - **Bold, Italic, Underline, Strikethrough**: Applies bold, italics, underline or strike-out to the text.

- X Coordinate/Y Coordinate, Width/Height: Sets the position and size of the text box. These values can be adjusted by dragging the text box on the canvas with your mouse.

Path Sequence

By setting a sequence route, videos from multiple cameras can be monitored sequentially on the same camera screen when using Map monitoring. A path sequence must be registered to each camera on the canvas to use.

- 1 Click the 🔯 (Path Sequence) button.
- 2 On the canvas, click on the camera icons in the order you wish to monitor them.
- 3 Complete path selection by right-clicking your mouse. Once a path is set, select the path and set the properties.

	Prop	erty
W	General	
	Name	Path Sequence 1
v	Path Sequence	
	Color	5; 159; 175
	Opacity	80
	Width	5
	Shape	Ellipse
	Background Color	0; 241; 252
	Opacity	65
	Reverse	
	Margin	4; 4; 4; 4
	Associated Device	
	CAM1	Disconnect
	Duration	20
	TCAM2	
	Duration	20

- Name: Sets the name of the path.
- **Color/Opacity/Width**: Set the color/opacity/width of the path displayed on the map.
- **Shape**: Set the shape of the icon for identifying the camera when a video from a path sequence camera is displayed while monitoring a map.
- **Background Color/Opacity/Margin**: Set the color/ opacity/margin of the icon displayed when a video from a path sequence camera is displayed while

monitoring a map.

- **Reverse**: Changes direction of the path.
- Associated Device: Shows a list of cameras selected for path sequence. When monitoring a map, the path sequence will show the videos from each camera in the defined order for the Dwell Time value.
- 4 By selecting a camera from the list and clicking Remove, the camera can be removed from the path sequence.

Event Action

Sets the event actions to be performed when events are detected in the I/O devices positioned on the canvas. Select an icon, item, and select the desired value from the drop down menu.

	Eve	ent
V	Action	
	Click	
	Instant Viewer	Use
	Device Informati	Not Use
T	Action	
	Motion Detection	
	Live Popup	Not Use
	Event Sound	Not Use
	Event Spot	Use
	Object Detection	
	Live Popup	Not Use
	Event Sound	Not Use
	Event Spot	Use
	Video Loss	
	Live Popup	Not Use
	Event Sound	Not Use
	▼ TripZone	
	Live Popup	Not Use
	Event Sound	Not Use
	Event Spot	Use
	Tampering	
	Live Popup	Not Use

- Click: You can configure event actions so that clicking the device icon on the map brings up Instant Viewer window. If the device is the alarm-out device, you can configure it so that clicking the icon activates or deactivates the alarm and delays activation/ deactivation during the specified time.
- Motion Detection, Object Detection, Video Loss, Video Blind, Alarm In, etc: Set or cancel the actions to be performed when each event is detected.
 - Live Popup: Pops up the video of the camera (a connected camera if the device is not a camera).

- **Event Spot**: Shows the video of the camera (a connected camera if the device is not a camera) on the Event Spot Screen.
- **Event Sound**: Plays audio if audio file(.wav) is selected.
 - If the map is configured to ignore event actions of I/O devices, the event actions will not be performed regardless of the settings in this window.
 - To change settings to ignore event actions, rightclick on the Map I/O Device and select **Ignore Event Action**.

FEN Service Use Agreement

According to the privacy protection policy of GDPR (General Data Protection Regulation) and CCPA (California Consumer Privacy Act), you should agree with the IDIS privacy policy (https://www.idisglobal.com/index/ privacy) in order to use the FEN service.

Click **About** menu and select **Privacy Policy** and configure FEN service use agreement setting for each device.

FEN Service Use Agreement

Select to agree with the IDIS privacy policy. Each of FEN service registered device can have an agreement respectively, and these devices can use the FEN service.

- **1** Click **About** menu and select **Privacy Policy**.
- **2** Press **Learn More** from the window below.



3 Read the FEN service terms and click the **Accept and Use** button. Click the link below the terms to check the IDIS privacy policy.



4 Select a device to register for the FEN service use agreement and click Accept.



5 Successfully registered devices are displayed Completed under Status. Failed devices are displayed with descriptions under Status and Reason.

Privac	ry Policy						
_	1)		2		3	
 	You have selected "	Accept and Use".	Select the device a	nd click the "Accept" Type	button. Status	Resson	
	RNDS.HELPER		IDIS-OVR-FEN-1			You de not have authority.	
				Accept			

6 When the logged in device account is not an administrator, Account verification required is displayed under Status with a below popup message. Enter the administrator user information and click OK to register the device under the agreement.

Acco	unt verifica	tion required
	You shoul	d be logged in as an admin group user
	If you clicl informatic	t *OK* after entering the user account, the related in will be deleted and will not be restored.
		RND5.HELPER
		IDIS-DVR-FEN-1
		DVR (8CHs)
		ОК Сапсе

7 The message pops up when the agreement is complete. Click OK for additional agreement or click Exit to close the privacy policy window.

1	You have completed the ag	reement for the se	lected device.
	For devices that require admin agreement, additional setting About < Main Menu.	n account verificatic s are available in "Pr	n or additional ivacy Policy" <
		ОК	Exit

8 Pressing the (Refresh) button after clicking OK,or opening the privacy policy again after clicking Exit hides completed devices from the list.

FEN Service Decline

Select devices to decline using the FEN service. Each of FEN service registered device can be declined respectively.

- **1** Click **About** menu and select **Privacy Policy**.
- **2** Press **Learn More** from the window below.



3 Read the FEN service terms and click the **Decline** button. Click the link below the terms to check the IDIS privacy policy.



4 Select a device to delete from the FEN service and click **Do not use**. Clicking **Go back** returns to the FEN service use agreement page.



5 Enter the administrator user information for each device and click OK to delete from the FEN service. If you do not know the administrator account, click Skip to move on to the next device.

Acco	unt verifica	tion required	
	You shoul If you clicl informatic Name Address	d be logged in as an admin group user k"OK" after entering the user account, the related m will be deted and will not be restored. RNDSHELPER IDSOVAFEN1	
		DVR (8CHs)	
		OK Cancel	

6 The message pops up after the verification is complete. Click OK for additional deletion or click Exit to close the privacy policy window.



Pressing the (Refresh) button after clicking OK,or opening the privacy policy again after clicking Exit hides deleted devices from the list.

Control Using Network keyboards

IDIS Center program can be controlled using network keyboards which needs to be purchased separately.



Only network keyboards of a certain model are supported.

Registration

Register the network keyboard to IDIS Center program.

- 1 Select Settings in System menu and select the Device menu.
- Press the (Network Keyboard Setup) button and Network Keyboard Scan window will appear. Registering a network keyboard is identical to registering devices. For more details, refer to Device Registration on page 12.



Scan Mode	Auto Scan (LAN)	_	-	~		
					Start Scar	n
	Name		Address		Status	
□ 🚔 <no name=""></no>						

3 IDIS Center system can be registered on the network keyboard. For more details, refer to the network keyboard user manual.

Add - Video Management System	×
ID	
Name	Video Management System
Connection	Ethernet -
IP Address	
	Use FEN
Control Port	8010
User ID	
Password	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
	OK Cancel

• ID (IDIS Center System ID): It is automatically assigned during IDIS Center System registration, and can be changed.



The ID is used to identify the system from other IDIS Center Systems. Therefore, a unique ID must be set.

- Name: Set a name for the IDIS Center System for user convenience.
- IP Address: Enter the IDIS Center System's IP address. Do not select Use FEN.
- Control Port: Enter the Control Port set in IDIS Center System. Control Port settings can be checked in System > Settings > Network > Network Keyboard.
- User ID, Password: Enter the User ID and Password used to login to IDIS Center System.
- 4 In System menu, select IDIS Center Settings, and then select Setup Network.

5 Select **Use Network Keyboard** option to enable network keyboards on IDIS Center System.





Connect

 On the network keyboard, enter the IDIS Center System ID.



Press DEV button to connect the network keyboard to the IDIS Center System. If the connection is established, a unique ID will be displayed on each camera screen and panel Tab as shown below.



3 You can terminate connection by pressing the SHIFT button and DEV button simultaneously.



Run

Live Video

1 On the network keyboard, enter Live panel Tab ID.



2 Press the **DEV** button.



3 Enter Camera Screen ID.



4 Press the **PANE** button.



5 In the **Site** list, select a site you wish to connect to using the mouse connected network keyboard. Then, drag & drop the selected site on the live screen using your mouse. The live video of the selected site will be displayed on the screen.

6 Pressing the image (Menu) button will bring up Live Menu.

D001	
	-
Fisheye Dewarping	
Instant Playback	+
Play 50 Seconds Before	I
Play 30 Seconds Before	Shift+I
PTZ Control	
Color Control	
Image Zoom	•
Image Processing	•
Alarm-Out	•
Text-In Viewer	
Listen	
Talk	
NVR Listen	
NVR Talk	
Audio Broadcast	
Panic Recording	
MultiStream	+
Hotspot	
Event Spot	
Map Event Spot	
Draw Motion Block	
Draw Face Detection	
Aspect Ratio	+
Save Still Image	
Browser	
Stream Information	
Remove	•

Navigate to the desired menu using the arrow buttons on the network keyboard and press Enter to select or deselect the menu. To leave the current menu, press the B (Menu) button and deselect the menu.

Video Playback

On the network keyboard, enter Play Tab ID.



Part 5 - Operation

2 Press the **DEV** button.



3 Enter Camera Screen ID.



4 Press the **PANE** button.



- 5 In the Site list, select a site you wish to connect to using the mouse connected network keyboard. Then, drag & drop the selected site on the Play screen using your mouse. The recorded video of the selected site will be displayed on the screen.
- 6 Pressing the 📾 (Menu) button will bring up Play Menu.



Navigate to the desired menu using the arrow buttons on the network keyboard and press Enter i to select or deselect the menu. To leave the current menu, press the i (Menu) button and deselect the menu.

Network Keyboard Buttons

Followings are the network keyboard buttons used to control the IDIS Center System.

For more details on PTZ control-related buttons, refer to the network keyboard user manual.

Command Buttons

Button	Description	Action
1	Numbers (1-9)	ID \rightarrow MON , PANE , DEV : Selects the monitor, camera screen, panel tab and IDIS Center system to control.
0	Number (0)	Not used as a command button.
SHIFT	Shift	SHIFT \rightarrow Button: Runs the second function if the button has two functions.
ESC	Esc	ESC : Cancels a command while it is running.
	Connect	IDIS Center System ID → DEV : Controls IDIS Center System.
DEV	Disconnect	SHIFT & DEV : Disconnects from IDIS Center System.
	Panel Tab	Tab ID \rightarrow DEV : Selects corresponding panel.
PANE	Camera Screen	Camera Screen ID $\rightarrow \text{PANE}$: Selects corresponding camera screen.
MON	Monitor	Monitor ID \rightarrow MON : Selects corresponding monitor.
-	_	\bigcirc : Disconnects from the currently selected camera or device.
F1	Function (1-8)	 F1: Shows monitor ID if two or more monitors are used. F7 (SHIFT & F3): Shows or hides System menu → Settings window. F8 (SHIFT & F4): Shows or hides IDIS Center program's software version.

 \checkmark

IDIS Center System Control Buttons

Certain functions may not be supported depending on type and version of the connected device.

Button	Description	Action
	Panic Recording On	Camera Screen ID \rightarrow $\boxed{1}$: Begins panic recording of the camera screen.
<u> </u>	Panic Recording Off	Camera Screen ID → SHIFT & I : Stops panic recording of the camera screen.
	Alarm Output On	 Camera Screen ID → Q : Activates No.1 alarm output of the device connected to the current camera screen. Alarm Output Device Number → Q : Activates the selected alarm output.
<u></u>	Alarm Output Off	 Camera Screen ID → SHFT &): Deactivates No.1 alarm output of the device connected to the current camera screen. Alarm Output Device Number → SHFT &): Deactivates the selected alarm output.
	Layout	 Image: Changes screen layout. Select a layout by using the arrow keys and Enter Jutton. Image: Switches to 1x1 layout. Returns to previous layout if button is pressed again.
開	Group	围 : Switches to next screen group.
	Freeze-frame	👔 : Freezes Live screen.
*	Zoom	জালা & 🐮 : Magnifies certain area of the Live screen. Magnified area can be moved by using the arrow keys and Enter 🚽 button.
	Full Screen	Panel Tab ID → □: Shows the corresponding panel Tab in full screen.
ta ta ta ta ta ta ta ta ta ta ta ta ta t	Search/Monitor	 F3 : Shows the Play Panel and can search or play recorded videos on the device connected to the camera screen selected on the Live Panel. SHIFT & F3 : Go back to previous Live Panel.
	Rewind	: Rewinds video recording.
	Rewind by frame	SHIFT & < IRewinds video recording by one frame at a time.
►/II	Play/Pause	▶ I Plays video recording. Pressing the button again while playing pauses the video.
	Fast Forward	▶ : Fast forwards video recording.
	Fast Forward by frame	SHIFT & 🕨 : Fast forwards video recording by one frame at a time.
E	Menu	Shows the screen menu for the selected camera screen.

	Enter 🗐	Selects the screen menu item of the selected camera screen.Changes zoom ratio in Zoom Mode.
٩	Arrow Keys	 Navigates to screen menu item of the selected camera screen. Moves magnified area in Zoom Mode. Only operates in Play Mode. Plays video by one frame at a time when the video is paused in Play Mode. Plays or rewinds video by rotating the jog dial clockwise or counter clockwise.
$^{\odot}$	Jog Dial	 Zoom in/out the image by turning the jog dial. Changes playback speed when playing video recordings of a device.
Õ	Shuttle Ring	 Zoom in/out the image repeatedly by turning the shuttle ring. Changes playback speed when playing video recordings of a device.

Hotkey

System Menu

System

Hotkey	Operation
Ctrl + E	Save screen capture image file, execute log file save if other log save is supported
Ctrl + Alt + P	Execute the print output function in tabs that support screen capture image output and other print output
Ctrl + Alt + L	Manual execution of Client S/W lock function
Ctrl + Shift + P	Run the Preference Device page

PgUp	Select the next pane of the selected camera pane
F3	Run the screen magnifier
Ctrl + Q + ROI-Drag	Selected camera pane video image drag designated area pixel counter display
Ctrl + Alt + E: (IDIS Center)	Toggle Panic Event Manager panel popup
Ctrl + Alt + E: (ISS)	Toggle Event Manager panel popup
Alt + F6	Select the tab on the right side of the tab docked in the main frame
Alt + Shift + F6	Select the tab on the left side of the tab docked in the main frame

Monitoring

Screen

Hotkey	Operation
Ctrl + Enter	Toggle selected tab full screen
Ctrl + Alt + Enter	Toggle full screen with selected tab toolbar
Ctrl + F	Screen division selection/creation dialog box pop up
Ctrl + PgDn	Go to the previous group of the screen format
Ctrl + PgUp	Go to the next group of the screen format
Shift + Enter	Toggle selected camera pane 1x1 format
PgDn	Select the previous pane of the selected camera pane

Hotkey	Operation	
Т	Toggle two-way audio	
Shift + Home	Toggle full screen including toolbar of selected tab	
Home	Screen division selection/creation dialog box pop up	
Pause(Break)	Move the previous group of the screen format	

Play

Hotkey	Operation	
Ctrl + Space	Toggle play/pause playback sessions for selected camera pane.	
Ctrl + Shift + Space	Toggle batch play/pause of selected playback sessions.	

			-
Ctrl + L	Increase playback speed	(Play or stop button) Scroll the mouse wheel	Jogging frame by frame
Ctrl + J	Decrease playback speed	(Step playback	
Ctrl + K	Reset playback speed (stop playback)	or previous/next button) Scroll the mouse wheel	Jump to the specified time
Ctrl + P	Normal speed playback	(Jog shuttle) Scroll the mouse	Shuttle step control
Ctrl + H	Fast forward play	Wheel (Jog shuttle) Right-	
Ctrl + G	Fast Backward play	click on the mouse	Shuttle lock
Ctrl + T	Jump to time	(Jog shuttle) Click the mouse wheel button.	Shuttle reset (pause, unlock)
Home	Jump to the start		
		Monitoring	
End	Jump to the most recent point	Monitoring	
End F	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward	Hatkay	Operation
End F	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame)	Hotkey	Operation
End F D	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame)	Hotkey	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane
End F D	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame)	Hotkey L Tab	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane video stream information
End F D Ctrl + Right Arrow	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame) 1 sec. forward	Hotkey L Tab (Live popup) F4	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane video stream information Cancel the Ignore Live Popup function
End F D Ctrl + Right Arrow Ctrl + Left Arrow	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame) 1 sec. forward 1 sec. backward	Hotkey L Tab (Live popup) F4	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane video stream information Cancel the Ignore Live Popup function
End F D Ctrl + Right Arrow Ctrl + Left Arrow Shift + Right Arrow	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame) 1 sec. forward 1 sec. backward 1 min. forward	Hotkey L Tab (Live popup) F4	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane video stream information Cancel the Ignore Live Popup function
End F D Ctrl + Right Arrow Ctrl + Left Arrow Shift + Right Arrow Shift + Left Arrow	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame) 1 sec. forward 1 sec. backward 1 min. forward 1 min. backward	Hotkey L Tab (Live popup) F4	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane video stream information Cancel the Ignore Live Popup function
End F D Ctrl + Right Arrow Ctrl + Left Arrow Shift + Right Arrow Shift + Left Arrow	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame) 1 sec. forward 1 sec. backward 1 min. forward 1 min. backward	Hotkey L Tab (Live popup) F4 Screen Hotkey	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane video stream information Cancel the Ignore Live Popup function Operation
End F D Ctrl + Right Arrow Ctrl + Left Arrow Shift + Right Arrow Shift + Left Arrow Alt + Right Arrow	Jump to the most recent point Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame) Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame) 1 sec. forward 1 sec. backward 1 min. forward 1 min. backward 10 min. forward	Hotkey L Tab (Live popup) F4 Screen Hotkey	Operation Toggle two-way audio Display OSD with camera pane video stream information Cancel the Ignore Live Popup function Operation Change the position of the pane /

C + After dragging pane (A), drop it onto pane (B).	Clone the device registered in A to B
After dragging pane (A), drop it onto pane (B) on a different screen.	Clone the device registered in A to B / Device registration and Goto (A: Instant playback, B: playback screen)

Message Box

Hotkey	Operation		
Ctrl + C	Copy the string from the message box to the clipboard and then press Ctrl + V to paste the content into a text editor such as Notepad.		

Sequence

Hotkey	Operation
Shift + PgDn	Go to the next layout
Shift + PgUp	Go to previous layout
Ctrl + Shift + PgDn	Go to the next camera sequence
Ctrl + Shift + PgUp	Go to the previous camera sequence

Hover Toolbar

Hotkey	Operation
(Hover toolbar) Scroll the mouse wheel	Scroll left and right

Device		Shift + I	Toggle the instant playback for 1 minute
Hotkey	Operation	Space	Toggle play/stop
NumericID, Ins	Register a NumericID device to the selected camera pane (root device, camera supported)	L	Increase playback speed / Step- by-step control / Continuous run during keystroke
NumericID, L + Ins	Register a NumericID layout to the selected screen	J	Decrease playback speed / Step- by-step control / Continuous run
Del	Unregister a device registered to the selected camera pane	K	Reset the playback speed
Ctrl + Del	Unregister the camera pane device associated with the previously registered root device	н	Fast forward play / Step-by-step control
Shift + Drag&Drop	Unregister a device registered to the selected camera pane	G	Fast Backward play / Step-by-step control
Shift + A + Drag&Drop	Bulk disconnect the devices registered on the screen	Р	Normal speed playback
Ctrl + Alt + A + drop the	Register the screen format auto extender	Home	Jump to the start
device to the camera pane	device to the camera pane		Jump to the most recent point
Drop to the live popup panel	Force a live popup when dragging and dropping a device with a live popup under the site tree	F	Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame)
Drop to the	Focusing on the device location when dragging and dropping a device on the	D	Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame)
map pane	map page pane	Ctrl + Right Arrow	1 sec. forward / Continuous run

Space	Toggle play/stop
L	Increase playback speed / Step- by-step control / Continuous run during keystroke
J	Decrease playback speed / Step- by-step control / Continuous run during keystroke
К	Reset the playback speed
Н	Fast forward play / Step-by-step control
G	Fast Backward play / Step-by-step control
Р	Normal speed playback
Home	Jump to the start
End	Jump to the most recent point
F	Jump to the next frame (Forward Frame)
D	Jump to the previous frame (Backward Frame)
Ctrl + Right Arrow	1 sec. forward / Continuous run during keystroke
Ctrl + Left Arrow	1 sec. backward / Continuous run during keystroke
Shift + Right Arrow	1 min. forward / Continuous run during keystroke
Shift + Left Arrow	1 min. backward / Continuous run during keystroke
Tab	Toggle the widget display
Shift + Tab	Toggle the widget display mode change (vertical / horizontal)

Smart UX

Instant Playback

Device

Hotkey	Operation
I	Toggle the instant playback to previously run time interval

В	Add bookmark	Ctrl + Drag right button of the mouse (up/down)	Zoom In / Out control based pointer offset speed
R	Refresh based on the current time/ Update recording time range	Ctrl + Scroll the mouse wheel	Zoom In/ Out control
Shift + PgUp	Go to the previous <time interval=""> of the recording time range</time>	Ctrl + Shift + Click the mouse wheel	Maximum zoom out
Shift + PgDn	Go to the next <time interval=""> of the recording time range</time>	Ctrl + Shift + Drag left button of the	Move Pan/Tilt so that the designated position in the video is in the center
(Caption time bar) Right-click on the mouse	Toggle thumbnail mode	mouse Ctrl + Alt + Drag the left mouse	Move Pan/Tilt/Zoom to the designated area in the video
Scroll the mouse wheel on the play button	Jogging frame by frame	button area Ctrl + Alt + Click the mouse wheel	Toggle area zoom history popup
(On the previous/		Esc	Disable control mode if running in PTZ control mode
next button) Scroll Move by 1 sec the mouse wheel		Direction keys on the keyboard	Control PTZ 8 directions
(On the previous/	Move by 1 min / Move by 5 sec if the	Number pad 1~4, 6~9	Control PTZ 8 directions
next button) Shift + Scroll the mouse wheel	recording time section is 3 minutes or less	Number pad 5	PTZ preset popup
(Caption time bar) Scroll the mouse	Move by 1 sec	+	Zoom In
wheel		Z	Zoom In
(Caption time bar) Shift + scroll the mouse wheel	Move by 1 min / Move by 5 sec if the recording time section is 3 minutes or less	-	Zoom Out
		х	Zoom Out
Quick PTZ		/	Focus far

*

Number pad 0

Focus near

Open aperture

Hotkey	Operation
Ctrl + Drag left button of the mouse	Pan/Tilt control based pointer offset speed

	Close aperture	Ctrl + Click the mouse wheel	Zoom reset
S	PTZ control speed setting	Esc	Disable zoom mode if running in dynamic zoom mode

Quick Dewarping

Quick Save

Hotkey	Operation	Hotkey	Operation
(In the original video) Ctrl + Drag the left mouse button area	Dewarp to the designated area in the video	Ctrl + S	Automatically save the still image with the path and file name set in the Settings -> Save -> Still Image
Ctrl + Drag left button of the mouse	Move Pan / Tilt to the designated area in the video	Ctrl + Shift + S	Save as a still image
Ctrl + Drag right button of the mouse (up/down)	Fine control of zooming in/out	Ctrl + C	Save to clipboard
Ctrl + Scroll the mouse wheel	Zoom In/Out control		
Ctrl + Click the mouse wheel	Dewarping rset		
Esc	Disable control mode if running in ePTZ control mode		

Quick Dynamic Zoom

Hotkey	Operation
(In the original video) Ctrl + Drag the left mouse button area	Zoom in to the designated area in the video
Ctrl + Drag left button of the mouse	Move the zoom area
Ctrl + Scroll the mouse wheel	Zoom In / Out control

Troubleshooting

Problem	Solution
Unable to monitor live video.	 Make sure that the device has been added to the device group. Make sure you have Live monitoring authorization.
I keep losing connection while monitoring Live video and program continues to attempt to reconnect.	Check the device status and the network connection between the device and the IDIS Center System.
l cannot see Live videos.	 Check device's connection to the camera. System or network overload may cause delays in the Live videos.
Event functions are not working.	Make sure that Device Real-Time Monitoring option is selected in Edit Device menu. If the option is not selected, event-related features are only supported in the device currently being monitored.
l cannot run IDIS Center program because I forgot my User ID and password.	Remove and re-install IDIS Center program. However, all data stored on the system will be deleted upon uninstallation. Deleted data cannot be recovered.



IDIS Co., Ltd.

For more information, please visit at www.idisglobal.com